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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate
discretely presented component units of Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority (the "Authority") as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2019 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of Springdale Senior, LP; Reserve on South Martin, LP; West Union Square, LLC; and Carry
Crossing, LLC, which represent 100 percent of the assets, net position, and revenue of the aggregate discretely
presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Springdale Senior, LP; Reserve
on South Martin, LP; West Union Square, LLC; and Carry Crossing, LLC, is based solely on the report of the
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Springdale Senior, LP; Reserve on South Martin, LP; West Union Square, LLC; and Carry Crossing, LLC were
not audited under Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the
aggregate discretely presented component units of Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority as of June 30, 2019
and the respective changes in its financial position and its business-type activities cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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To the Board of Commissioners
Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Other Matters
Required Supplemental Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and other required supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority's basic financial statements. The financial data schedules,
closed grant schedules, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The financial data schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the financial data
schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

The closed grant schedules have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 19, 2019 on
our consideration of Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority's internal control over

financial reporting and compliance.
7424&/ f M, PLLe

December 19, 2019
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

This discussion and analysis provides the reader with a narrative overview and financial analysis of the Cincinnati
Metropolitan Housing Authority's (the “Authority”) financial activities and performance for the year ended June 30,
2019. This section should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and accompanying notes.

Financial Highlights

e The Authority's total assets and deferred outflows of resources were $315.3 million and total liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources were $74.9 million; therefore, net position was $240.4 million as of June 30,
2019.

e Total revenues, including capital contributions, and total expenses were $138.4 million and $140.4 million,
respectively, is resulting in an $2.0 million reduction in net position for fiscal year 2019.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management's Discussion and Analysis - The Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an
introduction to the Authority-wide financial statements. The Authority- wide financial statements and Notes to the
Financial Statements included in the Audit Report were prepared in accordance with GAAP applicable to
governmental entities in the United States of America for Proprietary Fund types and in compliance with the
regulations set forth in GASB Statement No. 34.

Authority-wide Financial Statements - The Authority-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the Authority's finances, in a manner similar to a private- sector business. The
statements consist of the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows.

Notes to Financial Statements - The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the Authority-wide financial statements.

The Authority’s Programs

The Authority has many programs that are consolidated into a single enterprise fund. The major programs consist
of the following:

Conventional Public Housing - Under the Conventional or Low Rent Housing Program, the Authority rents units
that it owns to low income households. The Conventional Public Housing Program is operated under an Annual
Contributions Contract (ACC) with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and HUD
provides Operating Subsidy and Capital Grant funding to enable the Authority to provide the housing at a rent that
is based upon approximately 30 percent of household income.

Capital Fund Program - The Conventional Public Housing Program also includes the Capital Fund Program,
which is the primary funding source for physical and management improvements to the Authority's properties. The
formula funding methodology used is based upon the number of units, including the bedroom sizes and the age of
the buildings/units.

Choice Neighborhood Grant - In 2011, Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority applied for a Choice
Neighborhood Planning Grant for the Fairmount neighborhood, which included the former English Woods public
housing site, as well as the Cincinnati neighborhoods of North and South Fairmount. The awarded grant of
$201,844 supports the development of a comprehensive revitalization plan focused on the following three goals:
Housing, People and Neighborhoods. As of the end of fiscal year 2016, the Authority and the Community Building
Institute, its planning partner, significantly completed most of the activities associated with this plan.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 (NSP2) - During fiscal year 2010, the Authority, as part of a consortium
with Hamilton County, the City of Cincinnati, and the Local Initiative Support Corporation was awarded funds
through the competitive NSP2. Of the $24 million award to the consortium, the Authority expended $11.2 million
of which was for the primary use to purchase foreclosed and abandoned property and replace with a new
development of senior housing in Mt Healthy along with program administrative costs. Activities under this grant
were completed as of June 30, 2013.

Hope VI Grant - The Hope VI grants are programs funded by HUD for redevelopment of the Authority's properties.
It is a mixed financing and mixed-use development with homeownership opportunities for public housing
residents.

Housing Choice Voucher Program - Under the Housing Choice Voucher Program, the Authority administers
contracts with independent landlords who own the properties. the Authority subsidizes a participants' rent through
a Housing Assistance Payment made to the landlord. The program is administered under an Annual Contributions
Contract (ACC) with HUD. HUD provides Annual Contributions Funding to enable the Authority to structure a
lease that sets a participants’ rent at approximately 30 percent of household income.

Component Units

As defined by GAAP, the reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its component units,
which are legally separate organizations for which the officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of the component units’ board,
and either (a) the ability to impose will by the primary government, or (b) the possibility that the component unit
will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government, or (c) the component
unit is financially dependent on the primary government.

Component units are reported as part of the reporting entity under either the blended or discrete method of
presentation. The discrete method presents the financial statements of the component unit outside of the basic
financial statement totals of the primary government.

The Authority has established six component unit entities as of June 30, 2019.

One is wholly-owned by the Authority and, as such, is considered a non-profit blended component unit. The other
component units are mixed-finance. Two as limited partnerships and two are limited liability companies. The
Authority has 0.1% or less ownership interest in these three organizations. Therefore, these organizations are
considered discreet component units of the Authority. A description of each of the component units are included
below.

Blended Component Unit

e Touchstone Property Services, an Ohio corporation for non-profit, was established by the Authority as a
wholly-owned subsidiary. Touchstone Property Services, Inc. was established for public, charitable, and
educational purposes to revitalize neighborhoods in Hamilton County, and, in particular, the City of
Cincinnati, through planning and rebuilding, to assist the Authority in the planning, undertaking,
developing, construction, and operation of housing for families who are low income; to develop, construct,
renovate, acquire, own, lease, manage, and sell interest in real and personal property; and to promote
and participate in other housing related or educational activities that assist residents of the Authority.
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Discretely Presented Component Units

Springdale Senior Limited Partnership (the "Partnership"), an Ohio Limited Partnership, was formed under
the laws of the State of Ohio to construct, own, and operate Baldwin Grove, (the "Property"), a 100-unit
apartment community located in Springdale, Ohio. The Property is intended to serve seniors with low and
moderate income located in Hamilton County, Ohio. The Property is developed and operated under the
low-income housing tax credit program as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Reserve on South Martin (the "Partnership"), an Ohio Limited partnership, was formed under the laws of
the state of Ohio, to acquire, rehabilitate, and manage the Reserve on South Martin property, (the
"Property"), which consists of 60 rental units in Mt. Healthy, Ohio. The Property is developed and
operated under the low-income housing tax credit program as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal
Revenue Code.

Cary Crossing, LLC (the "LLC"), a Domestic Limited Liability Company, was formed under the laws of the
state of Ohio, to construct, own and operate Cary Crossing, (the "Property"), which consists of 36 rental
units in Mt. Healthy, Ohio. The Property is intended to serve the disabled with low and moderate income
located in Hamilton County, Ohio. The Property is developed and operated under the low-income
housing tax credit program as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.

West Union Square, LLC (the "LLC"), a Domestic Limited Liability Company, was formed under the laws
of the state of Ohio, to construct, own and operate West Union Square, (the "Property"), which consists of
a 70-unit apartment community located in Colerain Township, Ohio. The Property is intended to serve
seniors with low and moderate income located in Hamilton County, Ohio. The property is developed and
operated under the low-income housing tax credit program as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal
Revenue Code.

Sutter View, LLC (the “LLC”), a Domestic Limited Liability Company, was formed under the laws of the
state of Ohio, to construct, own and operate Sutter View, (the "Property"), which consists of a 114-unit
apartment community located in North Fairmount, Ohio. The Property is being developed and operated
under the low-income housing tax credit program as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue
Code. On June 26, 2019, the LLC purchased the Property from the Authority in exchange for a seller note
in the amount of $5,097,000 and cash proceeds to pay down a portion of the EPC note payable. The
Property will be developed using proceeds from a mortgage insured by the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) under Section 221(d)(4) of the National Housing Act. Operations of the
LLC have not begun as of June 30, 2019. The reporting period of Sutter View, LLC is December 31.
Given the timing of the reporting period, financial results for Sutter View, LLC are not included in the
accompanying combining statements as of June 30, 2019; however, the closing activity affecting the
Authority that has taken place as of June 30, 2019 has been reflected in the financial statements of the
Authority.

For purposes of this report, the discretely presented component units report financials at calendar year end
December 31, 2018, rather than fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Overview of the Authority's Financial Position and Operations

Statement of Net Position

The Authority’s total assets increased by $6.0 million during fiscal year 2019 mainly due to the net effect of a
decrease in investment in net capital assets by $7.7 million, an increase in other assets by $10.8 million, and an
increase in deferred outflows of resources related to pension and OPEB of $3.1 million.

Total liabilities increased in fiscal year 2019 by $8.0 million. This was primarily attributed to the increase of net
pension and OPEB liabilities by $9.2 million.

Statement of Net Position (in Millions)

(Condensed)
2019 2018 Change
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets $ 23.9 $ 241 $ (0.2)
Other Assets 49.0 38.2 10.8
Capital Assets - Net 236.8 244.5 (7.7)
Deferred Outflows of Resources 5.6 25 3.1
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 315.3 309.3 6.0
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
Current Liabilities $ 15.0 $ 9.8 $ 5.2
Long-term Liabilities 31.4 34.7 (3.3)
Net Pension and OPEB Liability 27.6 18.4 9.2
Deferred Inflows of Resources 0.9 4.0 (3.1)
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 74.9 66.9 8.0
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 223.8 $ 229.8 $ (6.0)
Restricted Net Position 3.5 2.8 0.7
Unrestricted Net Position 13.1 9.8 3.3
Total Net Position 240.4 242.4 (2.0)
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 315.3 309.3 6.0
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The Authority's operating revenues for fiscal year 2019 increased by $9.9 million. Operating expenses increased
by $12.4 million, net non-operating revenue decreased by $3.2 million and capital grants increased by $5.4 million
from prior year. The changes in operating revenues and expenses resulted in a decrease in total change in net
position of $1.6 million on a consolidated basis.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position (Millions)

(Condensed)
2019 2018 Change
Operating Revenues

Rental Revenue $ 10.4 $ 10.3 $ 0.1
Governmental Revenue 106.3 101.4 4.9
Other Revenue 7.8 2.9 4.9

Total Operating Revenue 124.5 114.6 9.9

Operating Expenses

Administrative $ 285  § 23.7 $ 4.8
Utilities 9.3 9.4 0.1)
Operating and Maintenance 17.1 13.5 3.6
Insurance and Taxes 1.6 1.4 0.2
Housing Assistance Payments 74.8 71.8 3.0
Depreciation Expense 9.1 8.2 0.9

Total Operating Expenses 140.4 128.0 12.4

Net Operating Income (15.9) (13.4) (2.5)
Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 1.0 4.2 (3.2)
Capital Grants 14.3 8.9 5.4
Distributions (1.4) 0.1) (1.3)

Total Change in Net Position (2.0) (0.4) (1.6)
Net Position, Beginning of Year $ 242.4 $ 242.8 $ (0.4)
Restatement - Change in Accounting Principle - - -

Net Position, Beginning of Year As Restated 242.4 242.8 (0.4)

Net Position, End of Year $ 240.4 $ 242.4 $ (2.0)
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

As of June 30, 2019, the Authority’s net investment in capital assets balance for its Proprietary Fund was $223.8
million (net of accumulated depreciation and related debt). This represents a decrease of $6.0 million over fiscal
year 2018.

See note 5 to the financial statements for more information regarding capital assets.

The Authority’s outstanding long-term debt as of June 30, 2019 was $32.1 million. The long-term debt decreased
by $3.9 million over fiscal year 2018. This decrease was due to payments made on existing debt.

See note 7 to the financial statements for more information regarding outstanding debt.

Authority Budget Information

Annual budgets for individual programs including grants are prepared by the Authority management and approved
by the Board of Commissioners. The budgets are primarily used as a management tool and have no legal stature.
The budgets are prepared in accordance with the fiscal and programmatic goals established by the Authority.

Budgetary Considerations for FY 2019

The greatest budgetary challenges faced by the Authority involve the ongoing reduction of operating funds due to
the pro-ration factors used in the funding calculations by HUD. The following economic factors were considered in
preparing the Authority's budget for FY 2019:

¢ Maintaining occupancy and utilization in the Housing Choice Voucher Program, after the forced reduction
of utilized vouchers due to sequestration, many housing authorities are struggling to maintain 98%
utilization

¢ Change in funding methods, levels, and pro-ration factors for Housing Choice Voucher, Low Income
Public Housing, Capital Fund, and Replacement Housing Factor programs

¢ Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) - The Authority was awarded six Commitments to enter into a
Housing Assistance Payments Contract (CHAPS) and will undergo the conversions in FY 2019 and FY
2020
e Aging properties
Contacting the Authority

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should
be addressed to Gregory Johnson, Chief Executive Officer, Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority, 1627
Western Avenue, Cincinnati, Ohio 45214.
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Statement of Net Position

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - Tenant, grant, and other
Accounts receivable - Related party
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Assets not subject to depreciation (Note 5)
Assets subject to depreciation - Net (Note 5)
Other
Notes receivable - Net of allowance (Note 4)

Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred pension costs (Note 8)

Deferred OPEB costs (Note 9)
Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accounts payable - Related party
Accrued liabilities and other
Unearned revenue
Tenant security deposits
Accrued compensated absences (Note 6)

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7)
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences (Note 6)
Net pension liability (Note 8)
Net OPEB obligation (Note 9)
Long-term debt - Net of current portion (Note 7)

Other noncurrent liabilities
Total noncurrent liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
OPERS Pension (Note 8)

Deferred OPEB cost reductions (Note 9)
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for required reserves

Unrestricted

Total net position

See notes to financial statements.

June 30, 2019

Primary Government Discretely Presented

(CMHA) Component Units
$ 17,703,814 $ 833,745
2,716,011 65,693
532,299 -
914,559 14,816
2,024,337 1,648,344
23,891,020 2,562,598
38,225,207 3,959,393
198,558,627 35,018,034
196,634 687,244
46,261,561 -
2,549,869 -
285,791,898 39,664,671
309,682,918 42,227,269
4,965,779 -
726,777 -
5,692,556 -
2,164,273 132,482
- 3,797,880
2,519,970 1,771,105
5,971,698 29,680
1,057,004 90,013
222,810 -
3,102,036 1,365,147
15,037,791 7,186,307
891,230 -
18,291,775 -
9,267,284 -
29,006,275 26,994,657
1,524,797 -
58,981,361 26,994,657
777,592 -
138,679 -
916,271 -
223,791,597 10,617,623
3,517,202 1,558,331
13,131,252 (4,129,649)
$ 240,440,051 $ 8,046,305
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Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Discretely
Primary Presented
Government Component
(CMHA) Units
Operating Revenue
Rental revenue $ 10,390,854 $ 730,147
Grant and subsidy revenue 106,270,044 639,506
Other revenue 7,844,187 40,788
Total operating revenue 124,505,085 1,410,441
Operating Expenses
Administrative expenses 28,470,999 583,201
Utility expenses 9,345,846 170,417
Operating and maintenance 17,096,593 462,474
Insurance and taxes 1,620,794 75,318
HUD subsidy payments 74,835,219 -
Depreciation and amortization (Note 5) 9,061,324 1,439,416
Total operating expenses 140,430,775 2,730,826
Operating Loss (15,925,690) (1,320,385)
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Interest income 3,671,023 6,597
Net loss on sale of assets (Note 5) (2,058,432) -
Interest expense (479,092) (585,254)
Net loss on involuntary conversion (101,216) -
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 1,032,283 (578,657)
Loss - Before capital grants and (distributions) contributions (14,893,407) (1,899,042)
Capital Grants 14,272,055 -
(Distributions) Contributions (1,361,635) 8,395,228
Total 12,910,420 8,395,228
Change in Net Position (1,982,987) 6,496,186
Net Position - Beginning of year 242,423,038 1,550,119
$ 240,440,051 $ 8,046,305

Net Position - End of year

See notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from tenants
Receipts from grants and subsidy payments
Other receipts
Cash payments for administrative expenses
Payments for housing assistance
Payments for other operating expenses

Net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital grants
Purchase of capital assets
Principal and interest paid on capital debt

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by capital and related financing
activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Distributions to discretely presented component units
Net advances of notes receivable

Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year
Classification of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Unrestricted

Restricted (current)
Restricted (noncurrent)

Total cash and cash equivalents

See notes to financial statements. 1

Primary

Government

(CMHA)

9,748,404
106,577,123
3,333,776
(17,675,951

(28,055,035

)
(74,835,219)
)

(906,902)

14,272,055
(8,912,462)
(4,599,992)

759,601

(1,361,635

(1,644,154

)
(282,519)
)
)

(1,791,455
24,069,475

22,278,020

17,703,814
2,024,337
2,549,869

22,278,020
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Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash from Operating Activities
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash and cash equivalents from operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Allowance of notes and interest receivable
Developer fee income financed through loans and notes receivable
Write-off of predevelopment soft costs (construction in progress)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Unearned revenue
Net pension and OPEB liability and deferrals related to pension and OPEB
Accounts payable
Security deposits
Accrued and other liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities

See notes to financial statements. 12

Primary

Government

(CMHA)

(15,925,690)

9,061,324
6,167,094
(3,993,134)
1,528,425

(1,367,130)

(259,011)
555,472
2,940,139
177,493
33,209
174,907

15,018,788

(906,902)
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Combining Statement of Net Position for Discrete Presented Component
Units

December 31, 2018

Springdale Reserve on Cary Crossing, West Union
Senior, LP South Martin, LP LLC Square, LLC Total
Assets
Cash and investments $ 106,868 $ 256,497 $ 19,329 $ 451,051 $ 833,745
Receivables 37,509 23,780 2,076 2,328 65,693
Prepaid expenses and other
assets 10,987 1,711 145 1,973 14,816
Cash and cash equivalents -
Restricted 1,026,218 519,831 70,615 31,680 1,648,344
Capital assets: (Note 5)
Assets not subject to
depreciation 888,411 2,791,376 279,606 - 3,959,393
Assets subject to
depreciation - Net 8,161,288 6,874,000 6,181,669 13,801,077 35,018,034
Other 166,828 74,462 123,303 322,651 687,244
Total assets 10,398,109 10,541,657 6,676,743 14,610,760 42,227,269
Liabilities
Accounts payable 62,537 9,454 28,962 31,529 132,482
Accounts payable - Related
party 2,920,274 62,006 239,300 576,300 3,797,880
Accrued liabilities and other 124,271 288,815 39,328 1,318,691 1,771,105
Unearned revenue 23,089 2,152 2,364 2,075 29,680
Tenant security deposits 26,892 23,655 6,847 32,619 90,013
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year (Note 7) 292,273 - 413,087 659,787 1,365,147
Due in more than one
year (Note 7) 7,458,645 10,870,943 3,861,160 4,803,909 26,994,657
Total liabilities 10,907,981 11,257,025 4,591,048 7,424,910 34,180,964
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,298,781 (1,205,567) 2,187,028 8,337,381 10,617,623
Restricted for required reserves 999,326 496,176 63,768 (939) 1,558,331
Unrestricted (2,807,979) (5,977) (165,101) (1,150,592) (4,129,649)

Total net position $____(509.872)$  (715368)$  2,085695 $  7,185850 $ 8,046,305

See notes to financial statements. 13



Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Combining Statement of Activities for Discrete Presented Component Units

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Reserve on
Springdale South Martin, Cary Crossing, West Union
Senior, LP LP LLC Square, LLC Total
Operating Revenue
Rental revenue $ 241,685 $ 276,420 $ 107,291 $ 104,751 $ 730,147
Grant and subsidy revenue 424,870 57,410 140,295 16,931 639,506
Other revenue 13,323 6,559 20,045 861 40,788
Total operating
revenue 679,878 340,389 267,631 122,543 1,410,441
Operating Expenses
Administrative expenses 235,464 142,609 86,184 118,944 583,201
Utility expenses 48,614 39,456 68,610 13,737 170,417
Operating and maintenance 221,573 129,210 67,467 44 224 462,474
Insurance and taxes 24,047 27,738 11,781 11,752 75,318
Depreciation and
amortization 512,810 328,286 330,549 267,771 1,439,416
Total operating
expenses 1,042,508 667,299 564,591 456,428 2,730,826
Operating Loss (362,630) (326,910) (296,960) (333,885) (1,320,385)
Nonoperating Revenue
(Expense)
Interest income 5,787 663 147 - 6,597
Interest expense (336,912) (10,360) (66,842) (171,140) (585,254)
Total
nonoperating
expense (331,125) (9,697) (66,695) (171,140) (578,657)
Loss - Before contributions (693,755) (336,607) (363,655) (505,025) (1,899,042)
Contributions 302,167 - 616,637 7,476,424 8,395,228
Change in Net Position (391,588) (336,607) 252,982 6,971,399 6,496,186

Net Position - Beginning of
year (118,284) (378,762) 1,832,714 214,451 1,550,119

Net Position - End of year ~ $__ (509,872)$  (715369)$ 2085696 $ 7,185,850 $ 8,046,305

See notes to financial statements. 14



Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Nature of Business
Organization and Reporting Entity

Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority (the "Authority") is organized under the laws of the State of
Onhio for the purpose of acquiring, developing, leasing, operating, and administering low-rent and other
housing-related programs for qualified individuals.

The governing body of the Authority is a board of commissioners, which is composed of seven members.
The members are appointed as follows: two by the city manager of Cincinnati, Ohio; one by the Hamilton
County Commissioners; one by the Court of Common Pleas; one by the Probate Court; one by the
Township Association of Hamilton County; and one by the Municipal League of Hamilton County. The
board appoints a chief executive officer to administer the business of the Authority. The Authority is not
considered a component unit of the City of Cincinnati, Ohio, as the board independently oversees the
Authority’s operations, and the City of Cincinnati, Ohio is not financially accountable for the Authority.

The nucleus of the financial reporting entity, as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 14, as amended, is the primary government. A fundamental characteristic of a
primary government is that it is a fiscally independent entity. In evaluation of how to define the financial
reporting entity, management has considered all potential component units. A component unit is a legally
separate entity for which the primary government is financially accountable. The criteria of financial
accountability is the appointment of a voting majority plus the ability of the primary government to impose
its will upon the potential component unit. These criteria were considered in determining the reporting
entity. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, as amended (which defines a primary government
and those organizations that should be reported as component units), the Authority has included
Springdale Senior, LP; Reserve on South Martin, LP; Cary Crossing, LLC; West Union Square, LLC; and
Sutter View, LLC as discretely presented component units and Touchstone Property Services, Inc. as a
blended component unit in the accompanying financial statements.

Blended Component Unit

Some component units, despite being legally separate, are so integrated with the primary government
that they are in substance part of the primary government. The Authority's basic financial statements
include the following entity as a blended component unit in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, as
amended:

o Touchstone Property Services, Inc., an Ohio nonprofit corporation, was established by the Authority
as a wholly owned subsidiary. Touchstone Property Services, Inc. was established for public,
charitable, and educational purposes to revitalize neighborhoods in Hamilton County, and, in
particular, the City of Cincinnati, Ohio, through planning and rebuilding; to assist the Authority in the
planning, undertaking, developing, construction, and operation of housing for families who are low
income; to develop, construct, renovate, acquire, own, lease, manage, and sell interest in real and
personal property; and to promote and participate in other housing-related or educational activities
that assist residents of the Authority.

The above entity is included in the accompanying basic financial statements as a blended component unit
based on the following factors:

(1) The entity is fiscally dependent upon the Authority because the Authority approves its annual budget.

(2) The Authority is able to impose its will on the entity because the Authority can significantly influence
its programs, projects, and activities.

(3) The governing body is substantively the same as the governing body of the Authority.
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Nature of Business (Continued)
Discretely Presented Component Units

The following component units meet the criteria for discrete component unit presentation and are
presented separately from the primary government in the basic financial statements to clearly distinguish
the component unit balances and transactions from the primary government. These entities follow all
applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards, and financial statements are
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with GAAP. Since they do not follow
governmental accounting for presentation purposes, certain transactions may be reflected differently in
these financial statements than in the separately issued discrete component unit financial statements in
order for them to conform to the presentation of the primary government.

All of the discrete component units have a calendar year end of December 31, which differs from the
Authority's year end of June 30, 2019. For reporting purposes, the information reported in the basic
financial statements is presented as of and for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2018 for these
discrete component units.

Due to fiscal year-end differences between the Authority and the discrete component units, certain
related receivables of the Authority do not have offsetting equal liabilities reflected in the discrete
component units. Each of the discrete component units is independent of the Authority; however, the
Authority has an economic interest in each of the respective properties.

e Springdale Senior, LP, an Ohio limited partnership, was formed under the laws of the State of Ohio to
construct, own, and operate Baldwin Grove, a 100-unit apartment community located in Springdale,
Ohio. The property is intended to serve seniors with low and moderate income located in Hamilton
County, Ohio. The property is developed and operated under the low-income housing tax credit
program, as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.

e Reserve on South Martin, LP, an Ohio limited partnership, was formed under the laws of the State of
Ohio to acquire, rehabilitate, and manage the Reserve on South Martin property, which consists of 60
rental units in Mt. Healthy, Ohio. The property is developed and operated under the low-income
housing tax credit program, as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.

e Cary Crossing, LLC, a domestic limited liability company, was formed under the laws of the State of
Ohio to construct, own, and operate Cary Crossing, which consists of 36 rental units in Mt. Healthy,
Ohio. The property is intended to serve the disabled with low and moderate income located in
Hamilton County, Ohio. The property is developed and operated under the low-income housing tax
credit program, as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.

e West Union Square, LLC, a domestic limited liability company, was formed under the laws of the State
of Ohio to acquire, construct, own, and operate West Union Square, which consists of rental units in
Colerain Township, Ohio. The property is intended to serve the disabled with low and moderate
income located in Hamilton County, Ohio. The property is developed and operated under the low-
income housing tax credit program, as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Nature of Business (Continued)

o Sutter View, LLC, a domestic limited liability company, was formed under the laws of the State of Ohio
to acquire, rehabilitate, own and operate Sutter View Apartments under the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development's (HUD) rental assistance demonstration (RAD) program, which
consists of 114 rental units in North Fairmount, Ohio. The property is being developed and operated
under the low-income housing tax credit program, as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal
Revenue Code. On June 26, 2019, Sutter View, LLC purchased Sutter View Apartments from the
Authority in exchange for a seller note in the amount of $5,097,000 and cash proceeds to pay down a
portion of the EPC note payable. The project will be developed using proceeds from a mortgage
insured by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development under Section 221(d)(4) of the
National Housing Act. Operations of Sutter View, LLC have not begun as of June 30, 2019. The
reporting period of Sutter View, LLC is December 31. Given the timing of the reporting period, financial
results for Sutter View, LLC are not included in the accompanying combining statements as of June
30, 2019; however, the closing activity affecting the Authority that has taken place as of June 30, 2019
has been reflected in the financial statements of the Authority.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The basic financial statements of the Authority have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as prescribed
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and in accordance with uniform financial reporting
standards for HUD housing programs. The Authority follows the business-type activities reporting
requirements of GASB Statement No. 34, which provide a comprehensive one-line look at the Authority’s
financial activities. The Authority reports all of its operations as a single business activity in a single
enterprise fund. The enterprise fund is a proprietary fund, which distinguishes operating revenue and
expenses from nonoperating items. The operating revenue of the Authority consists primarily of rental
charges to tenants, operating grants from HUD, and other operating revenue that offsets operating
expenses. Operating expenses include the cost of administration, tenant services, utilities, maintenance,
protective services, general operations, depreciation, and housing assistance payments.

As a proprietary fund, revenue is recorded when earned, and expenses are recognized in the period the
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The Authority’s financial activities
operate in a manner similar to private business enterprises and are financed through fees and charges
assessed primarily to the user of the services.

The Authority considers all grants from HUD as operating revenue, as HUD is the primary revenue
source, with the exception of capital grants, which have been recognized within contributions on the
statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position. The Authority has the following programs:

e Low-rent housing program - This program is used to account for the components of the low-rent
housing programs subsidized by HUD. The Authority owns and operates apartments and single-family
housing units. Funding is provided by tenant rent payments and HUD subsidies.

o Capital grants - Substantially all additions to land, structures, and equipment are accomplished
through the capital grants and replacement housing factor programs. These programs replace or
materially upgrade deteriorated portions of the Authority’s housing units. Funding is provided through
grants. The Authority enters into significant construction contract obligations in relation to this
modernization and development activity on an ongoing basis.
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

e Housing choice vouchers (Section 8) - Under the Section 8 Housing Program, low-income tenants
lease housing units directly from private landlords, rather than from the Authority. HUD contracts with
the Authority, which, in turn, contracts with private landlords and makes assistance payments for the
difference between the approved contract rent and the actual rent paid by the low-income tenants.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and all highly liquid investments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents amounts held in escrow, Section 8 funds, tenants' escrows, other escrows,
and replacement reserves. Restrictions for use in operations and approval are governed by HUD, lender
requirements, or other outside parties. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 62, cash that is restricted
as to withdrawal or use in the acquisition or construction of noncurrent assets or that is segregated for the
liquidation of long-term debts has been presented as noncurrent.

Accounts Receivable

Tenant accounts receivable are stated at net rent amounts. Tenants in possession of a unit generally do
not have outstanding amounts unless court action is underway. Once a tenant is evicted or voluntarily
vacates a unit, collection of outstanding balances is difficult and sporadically realized. Therefore, when a
tenant vacates a unit, any balance owed to the Authority is set up as uncollectible in the month the move-
out occurred.

The Authority receives grants from federal agencies to be used for specific programs. The excess of
reimbursable expenditures over cash receipts is included in grants receivable, and any excess of cash
receipts over reimbursable expenditures is included in unearned revenue.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are stated at net of allowance. Collectibility is evaluated annually based on payments
received and cash flow of each individual entity. If amounts are deemed to be uncollectible, the Authority
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowance totaled $51,771,558 at June 30, 2019 and
related to the notes receivable and accrued interest. The bad debt expense is recorded in administrative
expenses in the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position and totaled $6,035,843 for
the year ended June 30, 2019.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value on
the date donated. The Authority capitalizes all building, site improvements, dwelling and nondwelling
equipment, and office equipment that has a cost or fair value on the date of acquisition greater than
$5,000 and a useful life greater than one year.
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line method using the half-year convention over the estimated
useful lives as follows:

Depreciable

Life - Years
Buildings 40
Buildings and site improvements 20
Equipment and vehicles 5

When depreciable property is disposed of or sold, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts, with any gain or loss recognized in the statement of revenue, expenses, and
changes in net position. If an indicator of impairment is identified and the decline in service utility was
unexpected and significant, an impairment loss is calculated in consideration of whether the capital asset
will continue to be used by the Authority. An impairment loss is generally measured by identifying the
historical cost of the service utility of the capital asset that cannot be used due to the impairment event or
circumstance. Impaired capital assets that will no longer be used by the Authority are reported at the
lower of carrying value or fair value, or written off entirely. During the year ended June 30, 2019, no
impairments were recorded.

Interest costs incurred during the period in which capital assets are being prepared for their intended use
are capitalized. The Authority had no capitalized construction interest for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Construction in Progress

Construction in progress consists of capital projects in progress funded primarily by capital contributions
and grant income.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. For
the Authority, deferred outflows of resources are reported for pension and other postemployment
benefits, as further explained in Notes 8 and 9, respectively.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period and will not be recognized until that time. For the Authority, deferred inflows are reported for
pension and other postemployment benefits, as further explained in Notes 8 and 9, respectively.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists primarily of prepaid subsidy, prepaid tenant rent payments, and prepaid
ground lease revenue recognized at year end. Prepaid subsidy and tenant rent payments are recognized
in the period during which the associated use of premises occurs. Prepaid ground lease revenue is
amortized over the term of the lease.

Compensated Absences

The Authority allows employees to accumulate earned sick leave and vacation (annual) pay.
Compensated absences are accrued as they are earned by employees, using the vesting method, if the
following two conditions are met:

e The employees’ rights to receive compensation are attributable to services rendered.
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

e |ltis probable that the employer will compensate the employee for the benefits through paid time off or
cash payment. The current portion of accrued compensation absences is included in accrued
expenses.

Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits

For the purpose of measuring the net pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB, and
pension and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the pension and OPEB plans
and additions to/deductions from their fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by the pension and OPEB system. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. The pension and OPEB systems report investments at fair value.

Net Position

Net position is composed of three categories: (1) net investment in capital assets, (2) restricted for
required reserves, and (3) unrestricted. The Authority’s positive value of unrestricted net position in the
primary government may be used to meet ongoing obligations. When an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, the Authority’s policy is to
first apply restricted resources. Each component of net assets is reported separately on the statement of
net position.

¢ Net investment in capital assets - This category consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by any outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

o Restricted for required reserves - This category equals the restricted cash of the Authority and
consists of net assets restricted in their use by (1) external groups such as grantors, creditors, or laws
and regulations of other governments or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

o Unrestricted - This category includes all of the remaining net assets that do not meet the definition of
the other two categories.

Revenue Recognition

The Authority routinely receives funds from HUD and other grantors. Funds are recognized as revenue in
accordance with GASB 33 when all eligibility requirements have been met. Receivables are recorded
based upon amounts expensed for a program for which no funds have been received. Tenant rental
revenue is recognized during the period of corresponding occupancy. Other receipts are recognized
when the related expenses are incurred.

Capital Grants
The Authority records grants received for capital outlay as contributions of capital grants.
Nonoperating Revenue and Expenses

Nonoperating revenue and expense are derived from transactions other than those associated with the
Authority’s primary housing operations and are reported as incurred, including investment activity.

Contributions - Discretely Presented Component Units
Contributions to discretely presented component units represent capital contributed by the members in
accordance with each respective discretely presented component units' operating agreements.
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June 30, 2019

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 87, Leases, which
improves accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This statement requires
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating
leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions
of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize
a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. The Authority is currently evaluating the impact this
standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are
effective for the Authority's financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2021.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End
of a Construction Period, which simplifies accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of
construction and requires those costs to be expensed in the period incurred. As a result, interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period will not be capitalized and included in the historical cost
of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. This statement also reiterates
that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest
cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis
consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. The requirements of the standard will be applied
prospectively and result in increased interest expense during periods of construction. The provisions of
this statement are effective for the Authority's financial statements for the June 30, 2021 fiscal year.

Subsequent Events

The financial statements and related disclosures include evaluation of events up through and including
December 19, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
Deposits
The State of Ohio statutes classify monies held by the Authority into two categories:

e Active deposits - These are public deposits necessary to meet current demands for the Authority.
Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the Authority’s commercial checking accounts or
withdrawal-on-demand accounts, including negotiable order-of-withdrawal accounts, or in money
market deposit accounts.

¢ Interim deposits - These are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those that are not needed
for immediate use, but that will be needed before the end of the current period of designation of
depositories. Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit (CDs) maturing not
more than one year from the date of deposit or by savings or deposit accounts, including passbook
accounts.

Protection of the Authority’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and by
eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds
deposited with the treasurer by the financial institution, or by a single collateral pool established by the
financial institution to secure the repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution. The
general depository agreement required by HUD has additional collateral requirements.
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Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)
Interim deposits are to be deposited or invested in the following securities:

o U.S. Treasury notes, bills, bonds, or other obligations or securities issued by the U.S. Treasury or any
other obligation guaranteed as to principal or interest by the United States

e Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any federal government agency
or instrumentality, including, but not limited to, the Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal
Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Government
National Mortgage Association, and Student Loan Marketing Association; all federal agency securities
shall be direct issuances of the federal government agencies or instrumentalities.

e Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above, provided that the market value of the
securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the agreement by
at least 2 percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the agreement must not exceed
30 days

e Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio

¢ No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in division (1) or
(2) of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that investments
in securities described in this division are made only through eligible institutions

e The State of Ohio treasurer’'s investment pool, the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR
Ohio), and STARPLUS

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are so near maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because
of changes in interest rates. Generally, only investments with original maturities of three months or less
qualify under this definition.

Deposits - Primary Government

The Authority’s total cash and cash equivalents held with financial institutions was $21,302,822 as of
June 30, 2019. Of this balance, $500,000 is covered by federal depository insurance, and the remaining
$21,175,837 is uncollateralized, as defined by the GASB (covered by collateral pools held by third-party
trustees pursuant to Section 135.181 of the Ohio Revised Code in collateral pools securing all public
funds on deposit with specific depository institutions, but not in the Authority’s name).

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be
returned to it. The Authority does not have a custodial credit risk policy that extends beyond what HUD
regulations require. HUD regulations require that all deposits exceeding FDIC insurance be fully and
continuously collateralized by the financial institution.

Deposits - Discretely Presented Component Units

All of the discretely presented component units’ cash is held in bank deposits, checking accounts,
savings accounts, and money market accounts. Regardless of the nature of funds on deposit, protection
is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and by eligible securities pledged by the
financial institution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the treasurer by
the financial institution, or by a single collateral pool established by the financial institution to secure the
repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution.
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Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

The restricted cash balances consist of tenant security deposits and funded reserves as follows:

Tenant
Security Operating Replacement ACC
Deposits Reserve Reserve Reserve Total
Springdale Senior, LP $ 28,476 $§ 263,245 $§ 624,985 $§ 109,512 $ 1,026,218
Reserve on South Martin, LP 24,847 356,797 138,187 - 519,831
Cary Crossing, LLC 6,849 44,093 19,673 - 70,615
West Union Square, LLC 31,680 - - - 31,680
Total $ 91852 § 664,135 $§ 782,845 § 109,512 $§ 1,648,344
Investments - Primary Government
The Authority’s investments at June 30, 2019 are summarized below:
Balance Credit Rating:
Investment Maturity June 30, 2019 S&P
Fifth Third Inst. Gov't MMkt. 0-1 year $ 1,063,683 AAAM
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk of investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of a counterparty, the Authority
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities in the possession of an
outside party. The Authority employs the use of “safekeeping” accounts to hold and maintain custody of
its investments, as identified within this policy and as a means of mitigating this risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the Authority will incur fair value losses arising from rising
interest rates. Such risk is mitigated by the investment policy, which limits investments to certain
maximum maturities. As a rule, unless specified otherwise within the policy, investments are to have a
maximum maturity of three years unless the investment is matched to a specific expenditure. The context
of a specific investment purchase must be weighed in proportion to the remainder of the existing
investment portfolio and the “prudent investor” rule to attempt to limit such risk.
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Note 4 - Notes Receivable

At June 30, 2019, the Authority's related notes receivable consisted of the following:

Balance Allowance Net Balance
July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019

Lincoln Court Partnerships Phases | -

IV: Principal $ 10,359,918 $ 29,855 $ - $ (6,225,687) $ 4,164,086
Lincoln Court Partnerships Phases | -

IV: Accrued interest 16,735,764 1,608,956 - (18,344,720) -
Laurel Home Partnerships, Phases |,

I, IV, and V: Principal 13,754,414 - - (7,871,459) 5,882,955
Laurel Home Partnerships, Phases |,

I, IV, and V: Accrued interest 14,829,175 1,528,983 - (16,358,158) -
Reserve on South Martin: Principal 10,446,418 - - - 10,446,418
Reserve on South Martin: Accrued

interest 56,826 10,376 - (67,202) -
Springdale Senior: Principal 7,010,273 - - - 7,010,273
Springdale Senior: Accrued interest 2,556,085 287,599 - (2,843,684) -
Cary Crossing: Principal 1,467,534 - - - 1,467,534
Cary Crossing: Accrued interest - 3,027 - (3,027) -
Central YMCA 1,865,859 - - - 1,865,859
West Union Square: Principal 2,097,027 237,275 - - 2,334,302
West Union Square: Accrued interest 17,605 21,961 - (39,566) -
Sutter View: Principal - 13,090,134 - - 13,090,134
Sutter View: Accrued interest - 18,055 - (18,055) -

Total $ 81,196,898 $ 16,836,221 $ - $(51,771,558) $ 46,261,561

Notes receivable from Lincoln Court Partnerships Phases | - IV from the periods from 2001 through 2003.
Payments are due based on available cash flow with the unpaid balance due on maturity. Maturity dates
range from 2041 through 2043. Interest rates range between 0 percent and 6.09 percent, accruing
monthly. The notes are collateralized by the related building and land.

Notes receivable from Laurel Home Partnerships, Phases |, II, IV, and V from the periods from 2002
through 2006. Payments are due based on available cash flow with the unpaid balance due on maturity.
Maturity dates range from 2042 through 2046. Interest rates range between 0 percent and 5.7 percent,
accruing monthly. The notes are collateralized by the related building and land.

Notes receivable from Reserve on South Martin, LP, due based on available cash flow with the unpaid
balance due on maturity, which is in October 2056. Interest accrues monthly at 0.1 percent. The notes
are collateralized by the related building and land.

Notes receivable from Springdale Senior, LP, due based on available cash flow with the unpaid balance
due on maturity, which ranges from 2057 to 2081. Interest accrues monthly at rates ranging from 0
percent to 0.1 percent. The notes are collateralized by the related building and land.

Notes receivable from Cary Crossing, LLC, due based on available cash flow with the unpaid balance
due on maturity, which ranges from 2026 to 2051. The notes are noninterest bearing and collateralized by
the related building and land.

Notes receivable from Central YMCA, due based on available cash flow with the unpaid balance due on
maturity, which is in July 2038. The notes are noninterest bearing and collateralized by the related
building and land.

Notes receivable from West Union Square, due based on available cash flow with the unpaid balance due
on maturity, which is in April 2057. Interest accrues per annum at 1.0 percent. The notes are
collateralized by the related building.
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Notes receivable from Sutter View, due based on available cash flow with the unpaid balance due on
maturity, which is in June 2059. Interest rates range between 1.0 percent and 2.89 percent, accruing
monthly. The notes are collateralized by the related building.

Note 5 - Capital Assets
Capital asset activity of the Authority's governmental activities was as follows:

Primary Government

Balance Additions and Disposals and Balance
July 1, 2018 Transfers In Transfers Out  June 30, 2019
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 31,042,171 $ 80,327 $ - 31,122,498
Construction in progress 9,018,843 3,918,669 (5,834,803) 7,102,709
Subtotal 40,061,014 3,998,996 (5,834,803) 38,225,207
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 400,937,669 4,899,220 (5,547,565) 400,289,324
Furniture and equipment 6,691,787 339,030 - 7,030,817
Infrastructure 31,091,350 - - 31,091,350
Leasehold improvements 667,550 - - 667,550
Subtotal 439,388,356 5,238,250 (5,547,565) 439,079,041
Accumulated depreciation 234,929,817 9,061,324 (3,470,727) 240,520,414
Net capital assets being depreciated 204,458,539 (3,823,074) (2,076,838) 198,558,627
Net governmental activities capital
assets $ 244,519,553 $ 175,922 § (7,911,641) $ 236,783,834

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $9,061,324 and is included in depreciation
and amortization on the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position. During the year
ended June 30, 2019, the Authority disposed of the capital assets associated with Sutter View, LLC in
connection with the RAD conversion (as discussed in Note 1), resulting in a net loss of $2,058,432.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Presented below are summaries of the Authority's discretely presented component units' capital asset
balances and a summary of changes in their respective capital asset balances for the year ended
December 31, 2018:

Reserve on
Springdale South Martin, Cary Crossing,  West Union
Senior, LP LP LLC Square, LLC Total
Land $ 888,411 $ 2,784,413 $ 279,606 $ - $ 3,952,430
Construction in progress - 6,963 - - 6,963
Buildings and improvements 13,143,297 8,406,066 6,762,090 13,722,809 42,034,262
Furniture and equipment 1,162,477 417,514 190,914 337,705 2,108,610
Accumulated depreciation (6,144,486) (1,949,580) (771,335) (259,437) (9,124,838)
Total $ 9,049,699 $ 9,665,376 $ 6,461,275 $ 13,801,077 $ 38,977,427
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Beginning Additions and  Disposals and End of Year

Balance Transfers In Transfers Out Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 3,952,430 $ - 9 - 9 3,952,430
Construction in progress 6,633,429 6,963 (6,633,429) 6,963
Subtotal 10,585,859 6,963 (6,633,429) 3,959,393
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 28,235,824 13,798,438 - 42,034,262
Furniture and equipment 1,746,160 362,450 - 2,108,610
Subtotal 29,981,984 14,160,888 - 44,142,872
Accumulated depreciation 7,704,511 1,420,327 - 9,124,838
Net capital assets being depreciated 22,277,473 12,740,561 - 35,018,034
Net capital assets $ 32,863,332 $ 12,747,524 $ (6,633,429) $ 38,977,427

Note 6 - Accrued Compensated Absences

The Authority follows GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, to account for
compensated absences. Accrued vacation is paid to all employees upon termination.

Exempt employees shall receive, at resignation from employment for any reason except for termination, 5
percent of their accumulated sick leave balance per full completed year of service, up to a maximum of
50 percent.

For members of the AFSCME union, unused sick leave shall be forfeited upon the employee’s separation
for any reason except retirement, in which case the payout will be 50 percent of a maximum base of
1,600 hours with a maximum of 800 hours paid.

For members of the IUOE union hired before July 1, 2003, sick leave shall be paid upon the employee’s
separation for any reason except termination, in which case the level of payout will be a maximum of 50
percent of the first 1,600 hours with 30 or more years of continuous service, with a maximum of 800
hours paid. Members with over 1,600 hours of accrued sick leave will receive 5 percent per year of
service of those additional hours, with a maximum of 40 percent. Those members hired after July 1, 2003
and with a minimum of five years of service will receive a payout of 5 percent of their sick leave per five-
year increments of service, with a maximum of 40 percent.

For members of the Building Trades union, sick leave shall be paid upon the employee’s separation for
any reason except for termination, in which case the level of payout will be a percentage of unused leave
based on years of service with a maximum of 40 percent with 30 or more years of continuous service.
Members must be employed for a minimum of five years to receive any payout.

At June 30, 2019, total compensated absences liability is $1,114,040, of which $222,810 is current and
$891,230 is long term.
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A summary of the Authority's long-term debt, all of which is direct borrowings, at June 30, 2019 is as
follows:

Business-type Activities

Interest Principal Beginning Ending Due within

Rate Maturity Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Hamilton County, Ohio 2.00% 11/1/2021 $ 300,000 $ - $ (100,000) $ 200,000 $ 100,000
Hamilton County, Ohio 2.00% 9/1/2023 509,338 - (101,869) 407,469 101,867
Hamilton County, Ohio 2.00% 8/1/2024 720,000 - (120,000) 600,000 120,000
Hamilton County, Ohio 2.00% 9/1/2025 630,000 - (90,000) 540,000 90,000
Hamilton County, Ohio 2.00% 3/1/2027 1,035,000 - (115,000) 920,000 115,000

Bank loans 5.25% 12/17/2018 68,892 - (68,892) - -
Bank loans 5.10% 12/1/2033 890,000 - (40,000) 850,000 40,000
Capital fund financing 4.55% 9/1/2026 10,553,593 - (1,078,825) 9,474,768 1,128,947
HUD EPC repayment 0.00% 11/30/2028 18,617,144 - (1,782,171) 16,834,973 950,000
HOPE VI repayment 0.00% 1/2/2024 2,737,322 - (456,221) 2,281,101 456,222
Total long-term debt $ 36,061,289 $ - $ (3,952,978) $ 32,108,311 $ 3,102,036

Hamilton County, Ohio (HOME and CDBG) Loans

Hamilton County, Ohio provided HOME and CDBG funds for the development of low-rent housing units in
Hamilton County. These loans (and interest of 2 percent per annum) will be forgiven at the rate of 10
percent annually commencing in the 16th year, provided the units are preserved as low-income housing
and there are no plans to convert the units to market rate.

Bank Loans
These loans were acquired to expand the affordable housing program using locally available funds.
Capital Fund Financing

This loan was acquired as part of a capital fund financing program to be used to fund capital
improvements to existing public housing. This loan is repaid through the use of capital fund grants.

HUD EPC Repayment

The Authority entered into the repayment agreement as a result of overpayment of operating subsidy
through an energy performance contract with the Low Income Public Housing Program.

HOPE VI Repayment

The Authority entered into the repayment agreement as a result of an overpayment of the operating
subsidy through an energy performance contract with the Low Income Public Housing Program.
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The following is a summary of the Authority's future annual debt service requirements for the notes
payable listed above:

Years Ending Principal Amount Interest Amount Total
2020 $ 3,102,036 $ 454,252 § 3,556,288
2021 3,104,488 400,000 3,504,488
2022 3,064,377 343,311 3,407,688
2023 3,126,812 283,735 3,410,547
2024 3,085,052 221,377 3,306,429

2025-2029 16,225,546 301,487 16,527,033

2030-2034 360,000 73,025 433,025

2035-2038 40,000 1,294 41,294

Total $ 32,108,311 $ 2,078,481 $ 34,186,792

Discretely Presented Units

Beginning Ending Due within One
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Year
Springdale Senior, LP:
Mortgage note - Fifth Third
Bank $ 1,106,576 $ - 3 (69,372) $ 1,037,204 $ 292,273
Mortgage note - CMHA 5,985,273 - - 5,985,273 -
Ground lease 510,000 - - 510,000 -
Bridge loan 432,602 - (214,161) 218,441 -
Reserve on South Martin, LP -
Mortgage - CMHA 10,870,943 - - 10,870,943 -
Cary Crossing, LLC:
Bridge loan - CMHA 1,202,000 - - 1,202,000 -
OHFA note 3,500,000 - (427,753) 3,072,247 413,087
West Union Square, LLC:
Mortgage note 1,551,337 285,942 - 1,837,279 659,787
Surplus cash note 360,000 96,000 - 456,000 -
Authority note 1,466,996 203,421 - 1,670,417 -
OHFA loan 1,293,828 206,172 - 1,500,000 -

Total principal outstanding $ 28,279,555 $ 791,535 $ (711,286) $ 28,359,804 $ 1,365,147

Springdale Senior, LP Mortgage Note - Fifth Third Bank

Springdale Senior, LP held two notes payable (Notes A and B) to Fifth Third Bank in the amount of
$1,557,000 and $5,943,000, respectively. Monthly interest accrues and is added to the principal balance.
Interest is adjustable at LIBOR plus 2.15 percent (2.32 percent at December 31, 2018) through 2024. The
loan is secured by the rental property. Accrued interest totaled $5,673 at December 31, 2018.

Springdale Senior, LP Mortgage Note - CMHA

Mortgage note payable to the Authority, the first ($3,035,000) bearing interest at 3.5 percent, the second
($1,260,987) bearing interest at the AFR (3.32 percent at December 31, 2017), the third ($885,000)
bearing 0 percent interest, the fourth ($358,481) bearing interest at 3.5 percent, and the fifth ($445,805)
bearing interest at the AFR, secured by the rental property. The loans are due during 2057 and are
payable as income and cash flow permit, as defined in the partnership agreement. Interest is
compounded annually. Accrued but unpaid interest was $1,979,498 at December 31, 2018.
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Springdale Senior, LP Ground Lease and Bridge Loan

Ground lease payable to the Authority, bearing interest at 4.79 percent, payable at final closing of
permanent financing. The ground lease is for a period of 75 years. Accrued interest was $417,938 at
December 31, 2018.

Bridge loan payable to the Ohio Housing Finance Agency (OHFA). This loan bears interest at 2 percent,
payable annually. Accrued interest amounted to $3,274 at December 31, 2018.

Reserve on South Martin, LP Mortgage and Note - CMHA

Reserve on South Martin, LP has a commitment to enter into a mortgage payable with the Authority
totaling $10,308,550 and bearing interest at 0.10 percent per annum. The entire unpaid principal balance
and all accrued interest are due and payable 45 years after the commencement of the permanent loan.
The mortgage is collateralized by the real estate and assignment of rents and security. As of December
31, 2018, accrued interest for the mortgage payable amounted to $62,006.

Reserve on South Martin, LP entered into a note payable with the Authority totaling $797,524 bearing
interest at 0.0 percent per annum. As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding balance was $562,393. The
entire unpaid principal balance and all accrued interest are due and payable in October 2056.

Cary Crossing, LLC - Bridge Loan

Cary Crossing, LLC entered into a bridge loan agreement on July 9, 2015 with the Authority in the
amount of $1,202,000 bearing interest at 0.25 percent, compounding annually. Interest and principal
payments are payable from available cash flow, as defined in the operating agreement. The entire unpaid
principal balance and all accrued interest are due and payable on the maturity date of July 9, 2050. The
loan is collateralized by the real estate and assignments of rents and security. As of December 31, 2018,
accrued interest for the loan payable amounted to $12,066.

Cary Crossing, LLC - OHFA Note

Cary Crossing, LLC entered into a promissory note with the Ohio Housing Finance Agency in the amount
of $3,500,000. The note is unsecured and is noninterest bearing for the first two years (the initial period).
The interest rate will be 2 percent after the initial period. Eight annual principal and interest payments of
$474,932 are due commencing on April 15, 2018. Note payment dates correspond to the collection dates
for the remaining member capital contributions. No payments on this note have been made. As of
December 31, 2018, the outstanding principle was $3,072,247. Accrued interest as of December 31,
2018 was $44,052.

West Union Square, LLC - Mortgage Note

In April 2017, West Union Square, LLC (the "Company") entered into a mortgage note with The
Huntington National Bank in the amount of $1,392,000 and bearing interest at 5.9 percent. Principal and
interest payments are due in monthly installments of $8,256 and will commence following the conversion
from a construction to permanent loan. The entire unpaid principal balance and all accrued interest is due
and payable upon maturity in November 2036. At December 31, 2018, the outstanding principal balance
was $1,837,279, and accrued interest was $23,751.
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West Union Square, LLC - Surplus Cash Note

On April 24, 2017, the Company entered into a surplus cash note with the Authority in the amount of
$500,000. The note bears interest at 1 percent per annum, compounding annually. The financing
received from the Authority was HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) funds ($440,000) and
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 1 funds ($60,000) granted to the Authority by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development. The note is subordinate to the Authority Note (see below). Payments
of principal and interest are available to be made out of available cash flow, as defined in the operating
agreement. The note matures in April 2057 and is secured by real estate. At December 31, 2018, the
outstanding principal balance was $456,000 and accrued interest was $6,008.

West Union Square, LLC - Authority Note

On April 24, 2017, the Company entered into a surplus cash note (the "Authority Note") with the Authority
in the amount of $1,670,417. The note bears interest at 1 percent per annum, compounding annually.
Payments of principal and interest are available to be made out of available cash flow, as defined in the
operating agreement. The note matures in April 2057 and is secured by real estate. At December 31,
2018, the outstanding principal balance was $1,670,417, and accrued interest was $21,129.

West Union Square, LLC - OHFA Loan

In July 2017, the Company entered into a promissory note with Ohio Housing Finance Agency in the
amount of $1,500,000. The note is secured by the investor member's capital contribution obligation and
bears no interest for the period from July 2017 through June 2019. Beginning in July 2019, the note bears
interest at 2.5 percent per annum. Commencing in April 2020, annual principal and interest payments are
due in the amount of $207,917 through maturity in April 2027. At December 31, 2018, the outstanding
principal balance was $1,500,000.

Note that all maturities for West Union Square, LLC in the schedule below are included in thereafter due
to the property being under construction and not yet converting to permanent debt.

Years Ending Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 1,365,147 $ 375,059 $ 1,740,206
2020 690,537 387,727 1,078,264
2021 709,543 400,932 1,110,475
2022 729,219 414,058 1,143,277
2023 749,591 426,919 1,176,510

Thereafter 24,115,767 14,732,125 38,847,892

Total $ 28,359,804 $ 16,736,820 $§ 45,096,624

Note 8 - Pension Plan
Plan Description

The Authority's employees participate in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS).
OPERS administers three separate pension plans. The Traditional Pension Plan is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Member-Directed Plan is a defined contribution plan.
The Combined Plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with defined
contribution features. While members (e.g., the Authority's employees) may elect the Member-Directed
Plan and the Combined Plan, the majority of employee members are in OPERS’ Traditional Pension
Plan; therefore, the following disclosures focus on the Traditional Pension Plan.

OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor, and death benefits and annual cost of living adjustments
to members of the Traditional Pension Plan. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by
Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC).
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OPERS issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements,
required supplemental information, and detailed information about OPERS'’ fiduciary net position that may
be obtained by visiting https://www.opers.org/financial/reports.shtml; by writing to Ohio Public Employees
Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, OH 43215-4642; or by calling 800-222-7377.

Benefits Provided

Senate Bill (SB) 343 was enacted into law with an effective date of January 7, 2013. In the legislation,
members were categorized into three groups with varying provisions of the law applicable to each group.
The following table provides age and service requirements for retirement, and the retirement formula
applied to final average salary (FAS) for the three member groups under the Traditional Pension Plan, as
per the reduced benefits adopted by SB 343 (see OPERS' CAFR referenced above for additional

information):
Group A Group B Group C
Eligible to Retire Prior to 20 Years of Service Credit Prior to Members not in Other Groups
January 7, 2013 or Five Years January 7, 2013 or Eligible to Retire 10 and Members Hired on or after
after January 7, 2013 Years after January 7, 2013 January 7, 2013
Age and service requirements: Age and service requirements: Age and service requirements:
Age 60 with 60 months of service credit or Age 60 with 60 months of service credit or Age 57 with 25 years of service credit or
age 55 with 25 years of service credit age 55 with 25 years of service credit age 62 with five years of service credit
Formula: Formula: Formula:
2.2 percent of FAS multiplied by years of 2.2 percent of FAS multiplied by years of 2.2 percent of FAS multiplied by years of
service for the first 30 years and 2.5 service for the first 30 years and 2.5 service for the first 35 years and 2.5

percent for service years in excess of 30  percent for service years in excess of 30  percent for service years in excess of 35

Final average salary (FAS) represents the average of the three highest years of earnings over a
member’s career for Groups A and B. Group C is based on the average of the five highest years of
earnings over a member’s career.

Members who retire before meeting the age and years of service credit requirement for unreduced
benefits receive a percentage reduction in the benefit amount.

When a benefit recipient has received benefits for 12 months, an annual cost of living adjustment (COLA)
is provided. This COLA is calculated on the base retirement benefit at the date of retirement and is not
compounded. For those retiring prior to January 7, 2013, the COLA will continue to be a 3 percent simple
annual COLA. For those retiring subsequent to January 7, 2013, beginning in calendar year 2019, the
COLA will be based on the average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index, capped at 3
percent.

Funding Policy

The ORC provides statutory authority for member and employer contributions. For both plan years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, member contribution rates were 10.0 percent of salary and employer
contribution rates were 14.0 percent. The portion of employer contributions allocated to health care for
members in the Traditional Pension Plan was 0.0 percent and 1.0 percent during plan years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Employer contribution rates are actuarially determined and
are expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The Authority’s contractually required contributions to
OPERS totaled $1,496,109 for the year ended June 30, 2019, all of which was allocated to pension.

31



Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 8 - Pension Plan (Continued)
Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability reported on the statement of net position represents a liability to employees for
pensions. Pensions are a component of exchange transactions between an employer and its employees
of salaries and benefits for employee services. Pensions are provided to an employee on a deferred-
payment basis as part of the total compensation package offered by an employer for employee services
each financial period. The obligation to sacrifice resources for pensions is a present obligation because it
was created as a result of employment exchanges that have already occurred.

The net pension liability represents the Authority’s proportionate share of each pension plan’s collective
actuarial present value of projected benefit payments attributable to past periods of service, net of each
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability calculation is dependent on critical long-
term variables, including estimated average life expectancies, earnings on investments, cost of living
adjustments, and others. While these estimates use the best information available, unknowable future
events require adjusting this estimate annually.

The Ohio Revised Code limits the Authority’s obligation for this liability to annually required payments.
The Authority cannot control benefit terms or the manner in which pensions are financed; however, the
Authority does receive the benefit of employees’ services in exchange for compensation, including
pensions.

GASB Statement No. 68 assumes the liability is solely the obligation of the employer because (1) it
benefits from employee services and (2) state statute requires all funding to come from these employers.
All contributions to date have come solely from these employers (which also include costs paid in the
form of withholdings from employees). State statute requires the pension plans to amortize unfunded
liabilities within 30 years. If the amortization period exceeds 30 years, each pension plan’s board must
propose corrective action to the state legislature. Any resulting legislative change to benefits or funding
could significantly affect the net pension liability. Resulting adjustments to net pension liability would be
effective when the changes are legally enforceable.

The proportionate share of each plan’s unfunded benefits is presented as a long-term net pension liability
on the accrual basis of accounting. Any liability for the contractually required pension contribution
outstanding at the end of the year is included in intergovernmental payable on both the accrual and
modified accrual bases of accounting.

The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Authority’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the Authority's share of contributions to the pension
plan relative to the contributions of all participating entities. For reporting purposes, the Authority
combined the amounts for both the Traditional and Combined plans, due to the insignificance of the
amounts that related to the Combined Plan. The Authority reported a net pension liability of $18,291,775
as its proportionate share. The Authority's proportion of the Traditional Plan was 0.067421 percent.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority recognized pension expense of $2,156,253.
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At June 30, 2019, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Net Deferred

Deferred Deferred (Inflows)
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of
Resources Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 7,952 $ (310,413) $ (302,461)
Changes in assumptions 1,646,377 - 1,646,377
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings 2,543,872 - 2,543,872
Changes in proportionate share, or difference between
amount contributed and proportionate share of contributions 8,577 (467,179) (458,602)
Employer contributions subsequent to measurement date 759,001 - 759,001
Total $ 4,965,779 $ (777,592) $ 4,188,187

The amount of $759,001 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension resulting from the
Authority's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Years Ending
June 30 Amount
2020 $ 1,261,323
2021 767,085
2022 232,213
2023 1,177,139
2024 (4,062)
Thereafter (4,512)
Total $ 3,429,186
Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the values of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and cost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual review or modification as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future.
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Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employers and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Assumptions

Valuation date December 31, 2018
Actuarial cost method Individual entry age
Cost of living adjustments Pre-January 7, 2013 Retirees: 3 percent;

Post-January 7, 2013 Retirees: 3 percent
simple through 2018, then 2.15 percent simple

Salary increases, including inflation 3.25% - 10.75%

Inflation 3.25%

Investment rate of return 7.20%

Experience study date Period of five years ended December 31, 2015
Mortality basis RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table

Mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 healthy annuitant mortality table. For males, healthy annuitant
mortality tables were used, adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base of
2006 and then established the base year as 2015. For females, healthy annuitant mortality tables were
used, adjusted for mortality improvements back to the observation period base year of 2006 and then
established the base year as 2010. The mortality rates used in evaluating disability allowances were
based on the RP-2014 disabled mortality tables, adjusted for mortality improvement back to the
observation base year of 2006 and then established the base year as 2015 for males and 2010 for
females. Mortality rates for a particular calendar year for both healthy and disabled retiree mortality tables
are determined by applying the MP-2015 mortality improvement scale to the above-described tables.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of
the contributing employers are made at the statutorily required rates. Based on those assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Investment Rate of Return

The long-term rate of return on defined benefit investment assets was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected real rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage, adjusted for
inflation.

During the plan year ended December 31, 2018, OPERS managed investments in three investment
portfolios: the defined benefit portfolio, the health care portfolio, and the defined contribution portfolio. The
defined benefit portfolio contains the investment assets for the Traditional Pension Plan, the defined
benefit component of the Combined Plan, and the annuitized accounts of the Member-Directed Plan.
Within the defined benefit portfolio, contributions into the plans are all recorded at the same time, and
benefit payments all occur on the first of the month. Accordingly, the money-weighted rate of return is
considered to be the same for all plans within the portfolio. The annual money-weighted rate of return
expressing investment performance, net of investment expenses and adjusted for the changing amounts
actually invested, for the defined benefit portfolio was 2.94 percent for 2018.
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The allocation of investment assets with the defined benefit portfolio is approved by the board of trustees,
as outlined in the annual investment plan. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-
term objective of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the
defined benefit pension plans. The table below displays the board-approved asset allocation policy for
2018 and the long-term expected real rates of return:

Long-term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Fixed income 23.00 % 279 %

Domestic equities 19.00 6.21
Real estate 10.00 4.90
Private equity 10.00 10.81
International equities 20.00 7.83
Other investments 18.00 5.50

Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following table represents the Authority's proportionate share of net pension liability at the 7.20
percent discount rate, as well as the sensitivity to a 1 percent increase and a 1 percent decrease in the
current discount rate:

1 Percent Current 1 Percent

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(6.20%) (7.20%) (8.20%)
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 27,220,902 $ 18,291,775 $ 10,883,211

Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
Plan Description and Benefits Provided

OPERS maintains a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan,
which includes a medical plan, prescription drug program, and Medicare Part B premium reimbursement,
to qualifying members of both the Traditional Pension and Combined plans. Members of the Member-
Directed plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits, including postemployment healthcare coverage.

Prior to January 1, 2015, 10 or more years of service were required to qualify for healthcare coverage.
Beginning on January 1, 2015, generally, members must be at least age 60 with 20 years of qualifying
service credit to qualify for healthcare coverage or 30 years of qualifying service at any age.

Contributions

OPERS’ Postemployment Healthcare Plan was established under, and is administered in accordance
with, Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 401(h). Each year, the OPERS board of trustees determines
the portion of the employer contribution rate that will be set aside for the funding of postemployment
healthcare coverage. Health care funding is discretionary and dependent on both the pension funding
and future projections. The portion of Traditional Pension Plan and Combined Plan employer
contributions allocated to health care was 0.0 percent in 2018. The 2019 allocation is expected to be 0.0
percent for health care funding and expected to continue at that rate thereafter. Contributions to the plan
from the Authority were $0 for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)
Net OPEB Liability

At June 30, 2019, the Authority reported a liability of $9,267,284 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the total OPEB
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
The Authority's proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on the Authority's actuarially required
contribution for the year ended December 31, 2018 relative to all other contributing employers. At
December 31, 2018, the Authority’s proportion was 0.071081 percent.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $783,888.

At June 30, 2019, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 2139 §$ (25,145)
Changes in assumptions 298,788 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments 425,850 -
Changes in proportionate share, or difference between amount
contributed and proportionate share of contributions - (113,534)
Total $ 726,777 $ (138,679)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Years Ending

June 30 Amount
2020 $ 276,248
2021 29,548
2022 68,275
2023 214,027

Total $ 588,098

Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and cost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual review or modification as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future.

Projections of healthcare costs for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and
include the types of coverage provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing
of costs between the system and plan members. The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31, 2017, rolled forward to the measurement date of December 31, 2018.
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Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)

The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions applied to all prior periods included in
the measurement in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 74:

Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial valuation date December 31, 2017
Rolled-forward measurement date December 31, 2018
Experience study Five-year period ended December 31, 2015
Actuarial cost method Individual entry age normal
Single discount rate 3.96%
Investment rate of return 6.00%
Municipal bond rate 3.71%
Wage inflation 3.25%
Projected salary increases, including inflation 3.25% - 10.75%

10.0 percent initial, 3.25 percent ultimate in
Healthcare cost trend rate 2029

Preretirement mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 employees mortality table for males and females,
adjusted for mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for
males and females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Postretirement mortality
rates are based on the RP-2014 healthy annuitant mortality table for males and females, adjusted for
mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for males and
females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively. Postretirement mortality rates for
disabled retirees are based on the RP-2014 disabled mortality table for males and females, adjusted for
mortality improvement back to the observation period base year of 2006. The base year for males and
females was then established to be 2015 and 2010, respectively.

Discount Rate

A single discount rate of 3.96 percent was used to measure the OPEB liability on the measurement date
of December 31, 2018. Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted to their actuarial
present value using a single discount rate that reflects (1) a long-term expected rate of return on OPEB
plan investments (to the extent that the health care fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to
pay benefits) and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation
bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to the extent that the contributions
for use with the long-term expected rate are not met). This single discount rate was based on an
expected rate of return on the healthcare investment portfolio of 6.00 percent and a municipal bond rate
of 3.71 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rate. Based
on these assumptions, the healthcare fiduciary net position and future contributions were sufficient to
finance healthcare costs through 2031. As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on healthcare
investments was applied to projected costs through the year 2031, and the municipal bond rate was
applied to all healthcare costs after that date.
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Note 9 - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (Continued)
Investment Rate of Return

The allocation of investment assets within the healthcare portfolio is approved by the board, as outlined in
the annual investment plan. Assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of
continuing to offer a sustainable healthcare program for current and future retirees. OPERS' primary goal
is to achieve and maintain a fully funded status for benefits provided through the defined pension plans.
Health care is a discretionary benefit. The table below displays the board-approved asset allocation policy
for 2018 and the long-term expected real rates of return.

Long-term

Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return

Domestic equity 21.00 % 6.21 %

International equity 22.00 7.83
Fixed income 34.00 242
REITs 6.00 5.98
Other investments 17.00 5.57

During 2018, OPERS managed investments in three investment portfolios: the defined benefit portfolio,
the healthcare portfolio, and the defined contribution portfolio. The healthcare portfolio includes the
assets for healthcare expenses for the Traditional Pension Plan, Combined Plan, and Member-Directed
Plan eligible members. Within the healthcare portfolio, contributions into the plans are assumed to be
received continuously throughout the year based on the actual payroll payable at the time contributions
are made, and healthcare-related payments are assumed to occur mid-year. Accordingly, the money-
weighted rate of return is considered to be the same for all plans within the portfolio. The annual money-
weighted rate of return expressing investment performance, net of investment expenses and adjusted for
the changing amounts actually invested, for the healthcare portfolio is 5.60 percent for 2018.

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority, calculated using the discount rate of 6.00
percent, as well as what the Authority's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

1 Percent Current 1 Percent
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(2.96%) (3.96%) (4.96%)

Net OPEB liability of the Ohio Public Employees
Retirement System (OPERS) $ 11,856,311 $ 9,267,284 $ 7,208,324

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority, calculated using the healthcare cost trend
rate of 10.0 percent, as well as what the Authority's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using
a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current

rate:
Current
1 Percent Healthcare Cost 1 Percent
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
(9.0%) (10.0%) (11.0%)
Net OPEB liability of the Ohio Public Employees
Retirement System (OPERS) $ 8,907,871 $ 9,267,824 $ 9,681,232
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Note 10 - Risk Management - Primary Government

The Authority maintains comprehensive insurance coverage with private carriers for real property,
building contents, and vehicles. Vehicle policies include liability coverage for bodily injury and property
damage. The Authority also maintains employee major medical, vision, and dental coverage with private
carriers.

The Authority is a member in Ohio Housing Authority Property Casualty, Inc. (OHAPCI) and the Public
Entity Risk Consortium (PERC). OHAPCI is an insurance risk-sharing and purchasing pool composed of
three Ohio housing authorities. PERC is an Ohio public entity joint self-insurance pool restricted to
midsize public entities, including pools (of which OHAPCI is a member).

OHAPCI is a corporation governed by a board of trustees, consisting of a representative appointed by
each of the member housing authorities. The board of trustees elects the officers of the corporation, with
each trustee having a single vote. There were no changes to the policies during the current fiscal year.
Claims experience over the past three years indicates that there were no instances of losses exceeding
insurance coverage. The following is a summary of insurance coverage at year end:

Primary property $500 million/occurrence
Automobile liability $6 million/occurrence
Casualty/General liability $6 million/occurrence
Crime $250,000/occurrence
Pollution $1 million/$2 million (aggregate)

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies

The Authority is a defendant in several lawsuits arising from its normal course of business. Where
possible, estimates have been made and reflected in the financial statements for the effect, if any, of such
contingencies. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of
the Authority’s attorney that resolution of these matters will not have a materially adverse effect on the
financial condition of the Authority.

The Authority received financial assistance from federal agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement
of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with the terms and conditions
specified in grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the Authority. However, in the opinion of
management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial
position of the Authority at June 30, 2019.
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Note 12 - Blended Component Unit

A condensed statement of net position for the Authority's blended component unit as of June 30, 2019 is
presented as follows:

Touchstone
Property
Services
Assets
Current assets $ 445260
Noncurrent assets 405
Total assets 445,665
Liabilities
Current liabilities 743,573
Noncurrent liabilities 244,194
Total liabilities 987,767
Net Position $  (542,102)

A condensed statement of activities for the Authority's blended component unit as of June 30, 2019 is
presented as follows:

Touchstone

Property

Services
Operating Revenue $ 220,851
Operating Expense 190,807
Change in Net Position 30,044
Net Position - Beginning of year (572,146)
Net Position - End of year $  (542,102)
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Note 12 - Blended Component Unit (Continued)

A condensed statement of cash flows for the Authority's blended component unit as of June 30, 2019 is
presented as follows:

Touchstone
Property
Services
Cash Flows Used in Operating Activities - Receipts from customers $ 77,045
Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities (20,151)
Net Increase in Cash 56,894
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 41,436
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 98,330
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash from Operating Activities
Operating loss $ 30,044
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,417
Changes in assets and liabilities 43,584
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 77,045

Note 13 - Subsequent Events

On September 6, 2019, the Authority entered into an amended repayment agreement for the HUD EPC
Repayment debt. The new payment schedule will begin on November 30, 2019 and is reflected in the
maturity schedule disclosed within Note 7.
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Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System

Last Five Plan Years
Plan Years Ended December 31

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

The Authority's proportion of
the net pension liability 0.06742 % 0.06817 % 0.07526 % 0.07649 % 0.08286 %

The Authority's proportionate
share of the net pension
liability - Net $ 18,291,775 $ 10,501,520 $ 17,018,192 $ 13,186,934 $ 9,753,026

The Authority's covered payroll $ 10,309,453 $ 10,237,829 $ 11,395,353 $§ 11,736,175 $ 11,963,253

The Authority's proportionate
share of the net pension
liability as a percentage of its
covered payroll 177.43 % 102.58 % 149.34 % 112.36 % 81.52 %

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension
liability 74.70 % 84.66 % 77.39 % 81.20 % 86.36 %

Amounts presented for each year were determined as of the Authority's measurement date (December 31).
Information prior to 2014 is not available. The Authority will continue to present information for years available
until a full 10-year trend is compiled.
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Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of the Authority's Contributions
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System

Last Five Fiscal Years
Years Ended June 30

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required

contribution $ 1,496,109 $ 1,440,532 $ 1,567,893 $§ 1,548,032 $ 1,600,214
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required

contribution 1,496,109 1,440,532 1,567,893 1,548,032 1,600,214

Contribution Deficiency $ - $ - $ - $ - 8 -

The Authority's Covered
Payroll $ 10,686,615 $ 10,247,325 $ 11,199,235 $ 11,057,371 $ 11,430,100

Contributions as a
Percentage of Covered
Payroll 14.00 % 14.06 % 14.00 % 14.00 % 14.00 %

Years listed represent the Authority's fiscal year (June 30). Information prior to 2015 is not available. The
Authority will continue to present information for years available until a full 10-year trend is compiled.
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Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System

Last Two Plan Years
Plan Years Ended December 31

2018 2017
The Authority's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.07108 % 0.07264 %
The Authority's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability $ 9,267,284 $ 7,888,168
The Authority's covered payroll $ 10,309,453 $ 10,237,829
The Authority's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability as a percentage of
its covered payroll 89.89 % 77.05 %
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB liability 46.33 % 5414 %

Amounts presented for each year were determined as of the Authority's measurement date (December 31).
Information prior to 2017 is not available. The Authority will continue to present information for years available
until a full 10-year trend is compiled.
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Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of the Authority's OPEB Contributions
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System

Last Two Fiscal Years
Years Ended June 30

2019 2018
Statutorily required contribution $ - $ 51,544
Contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution - 51,544
Contribution Deficiency $ -5 -
Authority's Covered Employee Payroll $ 10,686,615 $ 10,247,325
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll - % 0.50 %

Years listed represent the Authority's fiscal year (June 30). Information prior to 2018 is not available. The
Authority will continue to present information for years available until a full 10-year trend is compiled.
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Financial Data Schedules

CINCINNATI METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY (OH004) Fiscal Year End:
Cincinnati, OH 06/30/2019
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

14.249 14.256
14866 | 1) 230 HOME 14.896 PH 14871 | Sectin8 |Neighborhood| 4856 Lower
Revialization Investment 6.1 Component 1 Business |6.2 Component| Family Self- Housing Moderate Stabilization Income Housing
Project Total of Severely . Unit - Discretely L o o . - Assistance cocc Subtotal ELIM Total
Distressed Partnerships Presented Activities Unit - Blended |  Sufficiency Choice Rghabllltatlon Program Program Sectio
. N Program Program Vouchers | Single Room | (Recovery
Public Housing n 8 Moderate
Occupancy | Act Funded)

111 Cash - Unrestricted 8,385,995 779,634 127,114 833,745 1,587,515 80,607 0 1,485,421 33,900 0 479,920 4,675,343 18,469,194 0 18,469,194
112 Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development 18,814 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18,814 0 18,814
113 Cash - Other Restricted 1,536,951 0 88,539 1,556,852 175,000 17,723 0 705,477 0 0 0 38,416 4,118,958 0 4,118,958
114 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits 908,767 0 77,530 91,492 11,794 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,089,583 0 1,089,583
115 Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
100 Total Cash 10,850,527 779,634 293,183 2,482,089 1,774,309 98,330 0 2,190,898 33,900 0 479,920 4,713,759 23,696,549 0 23,696,549
121 Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
122 Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,199 0 3,966 0 1,266 0 17,431 0 17,431
124 Accounts Receivable - Other Government 0 0 1,928 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,928 0 1,928
125 Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous 149,160 91,725 0 64,546 1,759,148 56,665 0 0 0 0 0 1,665,559 3,786,803 | (2,049,741) 1,737,062
126 Accounts Receivable - Tenants 689,880 0 32,739 1,147 130,357 290,265 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,144,388 0 1,144,388
126.1 Allow ance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants 0 0 (13,268) 0 (77,131) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (90,399) 0 (90,399)
126.2 Allow ance for Doubtful Accounts - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
127 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
128 Fraud Recovery 55,018 0 0 0 0 0 0 988,568 0 0 0 0 1,043,586 0 1,043,586
128.1 Allow ance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (933,144) 0 0 0 0 (933,144) 0 (933,144)
129 Accrued Interest Receivable 19,551 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19,551 0 19,551
120 Total Receivables, Net of Allow ances for Doubtful Accounts 913,609 91,725 21,399 65,693 1,812,374 346,930 12,199 55,424 3,966 0 1,266 1,665,559 4,990,144 | (2,049,741) 2,940,403
131 Investments - Unrestricted 1,063,683 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,063,683 0 1,063,683
132 Investments - Restricted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
135 Investments - Restricted for Payment of Current Liability 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
142 Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 446,144 0 0 14,816 0 0 0 98,069 0 0 291 403,556 962,876 0 962,876
143 Inventories 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 101,392 101,392 0 101,392
143.1 Allow ance for Obsolete Inventories 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
144 Inter Program Due From 13,007,252 1,026,810 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,034,062 0 14,034,062
145 Assets Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
150 Total Current Assets 26,281,215 1,898,169 314,582 2,562,598 3,586,683 445,260 12,199 2,344,391 37,866 0 481,477 6,884,266 44,848,706 | (2,049,741) 42,798,965
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CINCINNATI METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY (OHO004) Fiscal Year End:
Cincinnati, OH 06/30/2019
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary
14.249 14.256
14866 | 1) 230 HOME 14.896 PH 14.871 Section 8 | Neighborhood | 14-8%6 Lower
Revitalzation Investment 6.1 Component 1 Business |6.2 Component| Family Self- Housing Moderate Stabilization Income Housing
Project Total of Severely i Unit - Discretely - o L . - Assistance cocc Subtotal ELIM Total
Distressed Partnerships Presented Activities Unit - Blended |  Sufficiency Choice Rghabllltallon Program Program Sectio
Public Housing Program Program Vouchers | Single Room | (Recovery 1 8 Moderate
Occupancy | Act Funded)
161 Land 27,675,647 0 1,678,043 3,952,430 1,427,205 0 0 0 0 0 0 441,603 35,074,928 0 35,074,928
162 Buildings 364,807,392 0 6,396,100 42,034,262 963,993 0 0 360,669 0 0 0 28,316,427 442,878,843 0 442,878,843
163 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dw ellings 0 0 0 2,108,610 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,108,610 0 2,108,610
164 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration 3,938,667 0 1,422 0 36,424 16,748 0 551,062 0 0 0 2,486,494 7,030,817 0 7,030,817
165 Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 667,550 667,550 0 667,550
166 Accumulated Depreciation (207,761,910)] (4,832,190)| (3,053.062)]  (9,124,838) (285,021) (16,343) 0 (830,742) 0 0 0 | (23,741,146)| (249,645,252) 0| (249,645,252)
167 Construction in Progress 7,062,744 0 0 6,963 30,015 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,950 7,109,672 0 7,109,672
168 Infrastructure 0 30,536,093 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30,536,093 0 30,536,093
160 Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 195,722,540 25,703,903 4,922,503 38,977,427 2,172,616 405 0 80,989 0 0 0 8,180,878 275,761,261 0 275,761,261
171 Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current 0 0 0 0 45,979,295 0 0 885,000 0 0 0 14,656 46,878,951 (244,069) 46,634,882
172 Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past Due 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
173 Grants Receivable - Non Current 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
174 Other Assets 0 0 21,411 402,543 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 175,223 599,177 0 599,177
176 Investments in Joint Ventures 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
180 Total Non-Current Assets 195,722,540 25,703,903 4,943,914 39,379,970 48,151,911 405 0 965,989 0 0 0 8,370,757 323,239,389 (244,069) 322,995,320
200 Deferred Outflow of Resources 2,305,793 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,220,484 0 0 0 2,166,279 5,692,556 0 5,692,556
290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources 224,309,548 27,602,072 5,258,496 41,942,568 51,738,594 445,665 12,199 4,530,864 37,866 0 481,477 17,421,302 373,780,651 | (2,293,810)[ 371,486,841
311 Bank Overdraft 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
312 Accounts Payable <= 90 Days 661,847 0 413,103 1,436,031 5,129 729,202 8,711 59,694 0 0 0 1,359,936 4,673,653 | (1,118,520) 3,555,133
313 Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
321 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable 91,394 0 0 0 0 0 3,069 43,510 0 0 89 123,917 261,979 0 261,979
322 Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion 61,850 0 0 0 0 0 0 31,501 0 0 249 129,210 222,810 0 222,810
324 Accrued Contingency Liability 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
325 Accrued Interest Payable 0 0 0 2,574,286 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,574,286 0 2,574,286
331 Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
332 Account Payable - PHA Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
333 Accounts Payable - Other Government 569,310 0 0 0 26,770 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 596,080 0 596,080
341 Tenant Security Deposits 908,663 0 68,804 90,013 11,794 0 0 0 0 0 0 48,989 1,128,263 0 1,128,263
342 Unearned Revenue 180,494 0 17,178 29,680 5,550,008 0 0 8,202 0 0 0 233,002 6,018,564 0 6,018,564
343 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue 1,128,947 0 728,702 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 456,221 2,313,870 0 2,313,870
344 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrow ings 1,634,927 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,634,927 0 1,634,927
345 Other Current Liabilities 1,568 0 0 178,812 5,200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 185,580 0 185,580
346 Accrued Liabilities - Other 1,097,261 0 398,727 288,744 21,899 29,152 0 9,764 0 0 0 1,062,783 2,908,330 (945,877) 1,962,453
347 Inter Program - Due To 12,026,542 1,024,880 0 0 48,046 0 1,406 20,115 0 0 28 914,121 14,035,138 0 14,035,138
348 Loan Liability - Current 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
310 Total Current Liabilities 18,362,803 1,024,880 1,626,514 4,597,566 5,668,846 758,354 13,186 172,786 0 0 366 4,328,179 36,553,480 | (2,064,397) 34,489,083
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CINCINNATI METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY (OHO004) Fiscal Year End:
Cincinnati, OH 06/30/2019
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

14.249 14.256
14866 1 1, 230 HOVE 14.896 PH 14871 | Section8 |Neighborhood 4856 Lower
Revitalization 6.1 Component . " N L Income Housing
Project Total of Severely Investme.nt Unit - Discretely 1 Bu§|r1§ss 6.2.0omponent Faml\.y.SeIf- Hou§|ng Mndg.rat.e Stabilization Assistance cocc Subtotal ELIM Total
. Partnerships Activities Unit - Blended |  Sufficiency Choice Rehabilitation Program .
Distressed Presented N Program_Sectio
. N Program Program Vouchers | Single Room | (Recovery
Public Housing n 8 Moderate
Occupancy | Act Funded)
351 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue 8,345,821 0 2,950,601 28,058,551 0 229,413 0 0 0 0 0 1,824,880 41,409,266 (229,413) 41,179,853
352 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrow ings 15,200,046 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,200,046 0 15,200,046
353 Non-current Liabilties - Other 0 0 819,320 1,223,594 0 0 0 705,477 0 0 0 0 2,748,391 0 2,748,391
354 Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current 247,395 0 0 0 0 0 0 126,004 0 0 997 516,834 891,230 0 891,230
355 Loan Liability - Non Current 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
356 FASB 5 Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
357 Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities 11,162,771 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,908,599 0 0 0 10,487,689 27,559,059 0 27,559,059
350 Total Non-Current Liabilities 34,956,033 0 3,769,921 29,282,145 0 229,413 0 6,740,080 0 0 997 12,829,403 87,807,992 (229,413) 87,578,579
300 Total Liabilities 53,318,836 1,024,880 5,396,435 33,879,711 5,668,846 987,767 13,186 6,912,866 0 0 1,363 17,157,582 124,361,472 | (2,293,810) 122,067,662
400 Deferred Inflow of Resources 136,729 0 0 0 0 0 0 72,373 0 0 0 707,169 916,271 0 916,271
508.3 Nonspendable Fund Balance 0 0
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets 186,247,772 25,703,903 1,243,200 10,918,876 2,172,616 (229,008) 0 80,989 0 0 0 5,899,777 232,038,125 229,413 232,267,538
509.3 Restricted Fund Balance 0 0
510.3 Committed Fund Balance 0 0
511.3 Assigned Fund Balance 0 0
511.4 Restricted Net Position 1,555,869 0 97,265 1,558,331 175,000 17,723 0 705,477 0 0 0 (10,573) 4,099,092 0 4,099,092
512.3 Unassigned Fund Balance 0 0
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position (16,949,658) 873,289 (1,478,404) (4,414,350) 43,722,132 (330,817) (987)[ (3,240,841) 37,866 0 480,114 (6,332,653) 12,365,691 (229,413) 12,136,278
513 Total Equity - Net Assets / Position 170,853,983 26,577,192 (137,939) 8,062,857 46,069,748 (542,102) (987)| (2,454,375) 37,866 0 480,114 (443,449) 248,502,908 0 248,502,908
600 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow s of Resources and Equity - Net 224,309,548 27,602,072 5,258,496 41,942,568 51,738,594 445,665 12,199 4,530,864 37,866 0 481,477 17,421,302 373,780,651 [ (2,293,810) 371,486,841
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14.249 14.256
14866 1) 239 HOME 14.896 PH 14.871 Section 8 | Neighborhood| 4856 Lower
Revitalization Investment 6.1 Component 1 Business 6.2 Component| Family Self- Housing Moderate Stabilization ncome Housing
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Public Housing Program Program Vouchers | Single Room | (Recovery 1 8 Moderate
Occupancy | Act Funded)

70300 Net Tenant Rental Revenue 9,672,488 0 928,458 730,147 217,939 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,549,032 0 11,549,032
70400 Tenant Revenue - Other 265,943 0 4,164 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 270,107 0 270,107
70500 Total Tenant Revenue 9,938,431 0 932,622 730,147 217,939 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,819,139 0 11,819,139
70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants 35,469,182 25,631 0 639,506 0 0 349,178 [ 80,588,995 65,733 0 120,957 0 117,259,182 0 117,259,182
70610 Capital Grants 4,297,232 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,297,232 0 4,297,232
70710 Management Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,880,247 5,880,247 | (5,880,246) 1
70720 Asset Management Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 637,850 637,850 637,850 1,275,700
70730 Book Keeping Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,410,422 1,410,422 [ (1,410,426) (4)
70740 Front Line Service Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 693,758 693,758 (681,129) 12,629
70750 Other Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
70700 Total Fee Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,622,277 8,622,277 | (7,333,951) 1,288,326
70800 Other Government Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
71100 Investment Income - Unrestricted 46,927 0 158,600 0 3,594,922 4 0 1,498 0 0 0 9,994 3,811,945 0 3,811,945
71200 Mortgage Interest Income 0 0 0 6,597 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,597 0 6,597
71300 Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
71310 Cost of Sale of Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
71400 Fraud Recovery 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 79,906 0 0 0 0 79,906 0 79,906
71500 Other Revenue 483,889 0 527,324 8,481,936 4,969,761 220,847 0 187,222 0 0 0 829,607 15,700,586 (170,160) 15,530,426
71600 Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets (2,058,432) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,058,432) 0 (2,058,432)
72000 Investment Income - Restricted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
70000 Total Revenue 48,177,229 25,631 1,618,546 9,858,186 8,782,622 220,851 349,178 | 80,857,621 65,733 0 120,957 9,461,878 159,538,432 | (7,504,111) 152,034,321
91100 Administrative Salaries 1,550,300 0 211,877 224,400 150,531 94,197 171,020 2,040,988 3,420 0 4,724 3,958,787 8,410,244 0 8,410,244
91200 Auditing Fees 96,952 0 0 32,700 0 0 0 18,535 0 0 0 27,089 175,276 0 175,276
91300 Management Fee 3,047,253 0 54,690 100,007 13,969 52,728 0 1,582,215 0 0 0 0 4,850,862 | (4,629,468) 221,394
91310 Book-keeping Fee 421,752 0 0 0 0 0 0 988,674 0 0 0 0 1,410,426 | (1,410,426) 0
91400 Advertising and Marketing 0 0 0 55,159 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55,159 0 55,159
91500 Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative 489,065 0 0 0 0 0 60,430 1,221,144 1,779 0 2,484 4,160,722 5,935,624 0 5,935,624
91600 Office Expenses 634,495 0 32,399 90,784 2,461 6,240 0 455,191 20 0 28 951,615 2,173,233 (66,510) 2,106,723
91700 Legal Expense 65,650 0 1,210 25 0 25 0 30,414 0 0 0 239,564 336,888 0 336,888
91800 Travel 146 0 191 0 0 0 0 1,542 0 0 0 31,383 33,262 0 33,262
91810 Allocated Overhead 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
91900 Other 1,829,847 0 0 65,870 0 0 115,572 436,347 0 0 0 1,981,208 4,428,844 | (1,656,618) 2,772,226
91000 Total Operating - Administrative 8,135,460 0 300,367 568,945 166,961 153,190 347,022 6,775,050 5,219 0 7,236 11,350,368 27,809,818 | (7,763,022) 20,046,796
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14.249 14.256
14866 1) 239 HOME 14.896 PH 14.871 Section 8 | Neighborhood| 4856 Lower
Revitalization Investment 6.1 Component 1 Business |6.2 Component| Family Self- Housing Moderate Stabilization ncome Housing
Project Total of Severely . Unit - Discretely L . o . - Assistance cocc Subtotal ELIM Total
Distressed Partnerships Presented Activities Unit - Blended |  Sufficiency Choice Rghabllltatlon Program Program Sectio
Public Housing Program Program Vouchers | Single Room | (Recovery 1 8 Moderate
Occupancy | Act Funded)

92000 Asset Management Fee 637,850 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 637,850 637,850 1,275,700
92100 Tenant Services - Salaries 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
92200 Relocation Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
92300 Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
92400 Tenant Services - Other 377,822 0 0 7,601 0 122 0 0 0 0 0 72,123 457,668 (255,858) 201,810
92500 Total Tenant Services 377,822 0 0 7,601 0 122 0 0 0 0 0 72,123 457,668 (255,858) 201,810
93100 Water 1,633,441 0 44,140 64,618 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19,691 1,761,890 0 1,761,890
93200 Hectricity 2,178,239 0 10,788 105,799 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 101,179 2,396,005 0 2,396,005
93300 Gas 1,318,892 0 21,276 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19,452 1,359,620 0 1,359,620
93400 Fuel 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
93500 Labor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
93600 Sew er 3,936,714 0 15,577 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 42,544 3,994,835 0 3,994,835
93700 Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
93800 Other Utilities Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
93000 Total Utilities 9,067,286 0 91,781 170,417 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 182,866 9,512,350 0 9,512,350
94100 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor 2,653,581 0 21,460 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72,348 2,747,389 0 2,747,389
94200 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other 1,985,944 0 76,925 29,031 0 793 0 10,959 0 0 1 74,825 2,178,478 0 2,178,478
94300 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts 9,901,045 0 239,303 433,443 16,096 10,858 0 61,938 0 0 0 278,297 10,940,980 (123,081) 10,817,899
94500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance 768,388 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 64,747 833,135 0 833,135
94000 Total Maintenance 15,308,958 0 337,688 462,474 16,096 11,651 0 72,897 0 0 1 490,217 16,699,982 (123,081) 16,576,901
95100 Protective Services - Labor 24,664 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,787 53,451 0 53,451
95200 Protective Services - Other Contract Costs 1,759,757 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,953 0 0 0 1,091 1,762,801 0 1,762,801
95300 Protective Services - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
95500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
95000 Total Protective Services 1,784,421 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,953 0 0 0 29,878 1,816,252 0 1,816,252
96110 Property Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
96120 Liability Insurance 800,429 0 19,791 21,517 0 5,949 0 24,647 0 0 0 27,279 899,612 0 899,612
96130 Workmen's Compensation 71,657 0 0 0 0 0 3,143 34,873 59 0 82 64,267 174,081 0 174,081
96140 All Other Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
96100 Total insurance Premiums 872,086 0 19,791 21,517 0 5,949 3,143 59,520 59 0 82 91,546 1,073,693 0 1,073,693
96200 Other General Expenses 1,840,508 0 0 0 1,010 10,147 0 71,772 0 0 0 68,207 1,991,644 0 1,991,644
96210 Compensated Absences 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
96300 Payments in Lieu of Taxes 570,022 0 0 53,801 17,518 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 641,341 0 641,341
96400 Bad debt - Tenant Rents 174,517 0 6,028 6,655 77,131 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 264,331 0 264,331
96500 Bad debt - Mortgages 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
96600 Bad debt - Other 0 0 0 0 6,186,935 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,186,935 0 6,186,935
96800 Severance Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
96000 Total Other General Expenses 2,585,047 0 6,028 60,456 6,282,594 10,147 0 71,772 0 0 0 68,207 9,084,251 0 9,084,251
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Public Housing Program Program Vouchers | Single Room | (Recovery 1 8 Moderate
Occupancy | Act Funded)
96710 Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable 0 0 0 585,254 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 585,254 0 585,254
96720 Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term) 457,880 0 46,957 0 0 6,331 0 0 0 0 0 21,212 532,380 0 532,380
96730 Amortization of Bond Issue Costs 0 0 0 19,089 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19,089 0 19,089
96700 Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost 457,880 0 46,957 604,343 0 6,331 0 0 0 0 0 21,212 1,136,723 0 1,136,723
96900 Total Operating Expenses 39,226,810 0 802,612 1,895,753 6,465,651 187,390 350,165 6,981,192 5,278 0 7,319 12,306,417 68,228,587 | (7,504,111) 60,724,476
97000 Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses 8,950,419 25,631 815,934 7,962,433 2,316,971 33,461 (987)| 73,876,429 60,455 0 113,638 (2,844,539) 91,309,845 0 91,309,845
97100 Extraordinary Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
97200 Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized 101,216 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 101,216 0 101,216
97300 Housing Assistance Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 74,689,260 49,315 0 97,559 0 74,836,134 0 74,836,134
97350 HAP Portability-In 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
97400 Depreciation Expense 7,541,016 559,519 163,738 1,420,327 21,659 3,417 0 221,503 0 0 0 550,472 10,481,651 0 10,481,651
97500 Fraud Losses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
97600 Capital Outlays - Governmental Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
97700 Debt Principal Payment - Governmental Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
97800 Dw elling Units Rent Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
90000 Total Expenses 46,869,042 559,519 966,350 3,316,080 6,487,310 190,807 350,165 | 81,891,955 54,593 0 104,878 12,856,889 153,647,588 | (7,504,111)] 146,143,477
10010 Operating Transfer In 8,294,793 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,294,793 0 8,294,793
10020 Operating transfer Out (8,294,792) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (8,294,792) 0 (8,294,792)
10030 Operating Transfers from/to Primary Government 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10040 Operating Transfers from/to Component Unit (5,298,757) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (5,298,757) 0 (5,298,757)
10050 Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Bonds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10060 Proceeds from Property Sales 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10070 Extraordinary ttems, Net Gain/Loss (9,816,106)|  (10,010,890) 0 0 37,033,714 0 0 (82,000) (242,643)| (10,924,899) 242,643 (2,262,698) 3,937,121 0 3,937,121
10080 Special tems (Net Gain/Loss) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10091 Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In 108,755 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 108,755 0 108,755
10092 Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out (108,752) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (108,752) 0 (108,752)
10093 Transfers betw een Program and Project - In 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10094 Transfers betw een Project and Program - Out 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10100 Total Other financing Sources (Uses) (15,114,859)| (10,010,890) 0 0 37,033,714 0 0 (82,000) (242,643)| (10,924,899) 242,643 (2,262,698) (1,361,632) 0 (1,361,632)
10000 Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses (13,806,672)| (10,544,778) 652,196 6,542,106 39,329,026 30,044 (987)[ (1,116,334) (231,503)| (10,924,899) 258,722 (5,657,709) 4,529,212 0 4,529,212

53



Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Financial Data Schedules

CINCINNATI METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY (OH004) Fiscal Year End:
Cincinnati, OH 06/30/2019
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

14.249 14.256
14.866 14.856 L
420 | 14.230 HOME 14.896 PH 14.871 Section 8 |Neighborhood ow er
Revitalization ) tment 6.1 Component 1 Busi 6.2 Cor il Famiy serf Housi Moderat Stabiization Income Housing
Project Total of Severely nves me.n Unit - Discretely u.slrv.ess . mponen aml»y. © ous.lng t.e.ra [_e hzat Assistance cocc Subtotal ELIM Total

. Partnerships Activities Unit - Blended |  Sufficiency Choice Rehabilitation Program .

Distressed Presented y Program_Sectio
. . Program Program Vouchers | Single Room | (Recovery
Public Housing n 8 Moderate
Occupancy | Act Funded)
0 0 0 0 0 6,207,814

(1,338,042) 269,369 | 10,924,899 180,392 5,214,264 243,932,699
0 41,000 41,000

6,207,814
243,932,699
41,000

11020 Required Annual Debt Principal Payments 6,207,814 0 0 0 0 0
11030 Beginning Equity 184,660,655 37,121,970 (790,135) 1,520,751 6,740,722 (572,146)
11040 Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors 0 0 0
11050 Changes in Compensated Absence Balance 0
11060 Changes in Contingent Liability Balance 0
11070 Changes in Unrecognized Pension Transition Liability 0
11080 Changes in Special TernvSeverance Benefits Liability 0
0
0
0
0

11090 Changes in Allow ance for Doubtful Accounts - Dw elling Rents

11100 Changes in Allow ance for Doubtful Accounts - Other

11170 Administrative Fee Equity

11180 Housing Assistance Payments Equity

11190 Unit Months Available 64,180

11210 Number of Unit Months Leased 60,829

11270 Excess Cash 0

11610 Land Purchases 0

11620 Building Purchases 0

11630 Furniture & Equipment - Dw elling Purchases 0

11640 Furniture & Equipment - Administrative Purchases 0
0
0
0
0

o|o|o|o|o|o| o

o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|e
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|e
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|e
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|e

0
140,316
132,471

N
b
S}

336
193

205,072
193,712

205,072
193,712

o

11650 Leasehold Improvements Purchases
11660 Infrastructure Purchases

13510 CFFP Debt Service Payments

13901 Replacement Housing Factor Funds

o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|ofo|o| o
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|eo|e
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o| o
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|ofo|o| o
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|e
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o]|o|ofo

bk

©|
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|ofo|o| o
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|ofo|o| o
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o]|o|ofo

o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|e
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|e
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|e
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|e
o|o|o|o|o|o|o|e

54



Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Note to Other Supplemental Information

June 30, 2019
REAC Supplemental Information Requirement

As required by HUD for REAC reporting purposes, the Authority prepares its financial data schedules in
accordance with HUD requirements in a prescribed format. The HUD prescribed format differs from the required
classification of several balances under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
as follows: (1) depreciation expense and housing assistance payments are excluded from operating activities; (2)
gain (loss) on sales of capital assets, interest income, and capital grants are included in operating activities; (3)
tenant receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts are reflected separately; and (4) the blended component
unit activities are presented in the "other business activities" column, which is included in total programs.

In addition, the financial data schedules prepared by the Authority include minor differences from the statement of
net position and the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position that management has
determined to be immaterial.
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250 8. High Street
Columbus, OH 43215

moran Tel: 614.849.3000

Fax: 614.221.3535
plantemoran.com

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report

To Management and the Board of Commissioners
Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities and the
aggregate discretely presented component units of Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority (the "Authority"), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2019 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Authority's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 19,
2019. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of Cary Crossing,
LLC; Reserve on South Martin, LP; Springdale Senior, LP; and West Union Square, LLC, which represent 100
percent of the assets and revenue of the aggregate discretely presented component units, as described in our
report on Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority's financial statements. This report does not include the results
of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are
reported on separately by those auditors. The financial statements of Cary Crossing, LLC; Reserve on South
Martin, LP; Springdale Senior, LP; and West Union Square, LLC were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

Q PRAXITY

Empowering Business Globally
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To Management and the Board of Commissioners
Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Authority's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose.
7424&/ f 7)&4,«/, PLLL

December 19, 2019
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Fax: 614.221.3535

plantemoran.com

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Required by the Uniform Guidance

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority's (the "Authority") compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Authority's major federal program for the year
ended June 30, 2019. The Authority's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

The Authority's basic financial statements include the operations of the Cary Crossing, LLC; Reserve on South
Martin, LP; Springdale Senior, LP; and West Union Square, LLC. Our audit, as described below, did not include
the operations of Cary Crossing, LLC; Reserve on South Martin, LP; Springdale Senior LP; and West Union
Square, LP because these discretely presented component units engaged the use of other auditors to perform
separate audits.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal program.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance"). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority's compliance with those requirements
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program for the year ended June 30,
2019.

Q PRAXITY

Empowering Business Globally
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To the Board of Commissioners
Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the Authority's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

7424&/ f 7)&4,«/, PLLL
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Provided to Federal
Federal Agency/Program Title CFDA Number  Subrecipients Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Section 8 project-based cluster:
Lower Income Housing Assistance Program -
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation 14.856 $ - $ 120,957
Single Room Occupancy Program - Section 8
Moderate Rehabilitation 14.249 - 65,733
Section 8 project-based cluster total - 186,690
Housing Voucher Cluster - Section 8 Housing Choice
Vouchers 14.871 - 80,588,995
Public Housing Capital Fund Program 14.872 - 14,272,055
Public and Indian Housing - Low-income Public
Housing 14.850 - 25,494,359
Family Self Sufficiency Program 14.896 - 349,178
Total federal awards $ - $ 120,891,277

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal
awards. 63



Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal
grant activity of Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority (the “Authority”) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in the Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the “Uniform
Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is
not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the
Authority.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

The Authority has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate to recover indirect costs,
as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

o Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X None reported

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster Opinion
14.871 Housing Voucher Cluster - Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Unmodified
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $3,000,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

Section Il - Financial Statement Audit Findings

Reference
Number Finding

Current Year None

Section Ill - Federal Program Audit Findings

Reference Questioned
Number Finding Costs

Current Year None
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

Actual Modearnization U8, Depariment of Houslng OMB Appraval No. 7577-0187 (exp. 0413172017
. and Urban Devalopment

Cost Cettificate Cfiea of Publia snd Indlan Houslng

Capital Fund Program (GFP)

Publlo raporting burdes dor thls pollacfion of infarmatien b safimalad to ayemgs 3 hows per maspanse, induding the Sme for raylawing sstrualisns, sesrching

pdsling dala sources, gataring snd malnlsihing he dats needd, and somphiling and resiwing the colleclion of infermalien, Sand somarnis mgerding Be

[rclen nslmate of any siheraspecd of B el clon of Infmallon, ncluding suggesiians for pdushng s burden, L Be Repors Manmgeminl Oleer,
Fapanwork Reduclion Projes (2577-0044 snd 0757), Offiee of lndevminfon Technekgy, U5, Depaiment of Hossing and U Devalapmand Was

G, 20440-3800, This agaacy may ned bandusl o spensar, and a pacson b fol mgileed fe espond b, 8 colecdion of Infosalizn unles Bal colidion -ﬂhphyna

walld OB conlrl aumnbar.

Do not wefd Ehls form fo the abowe sddress,

This caleclion of Informetion mgpins et sach Housing Aathoréy vq-[.‘l,'l submil infarmadion &0 ansbie HUD io nilnle the fecel doseoul process, The infommaton

WAl i ieed By HILID By bl bt Whesher e modeenlzalion qunt roady o be oedied and closed oul The infoemation is usbﬂth dar nudt veriloailon and

feadl lore aul Feaponene e e collsalion ore raquired od d

PHA Hamn:
Gincinnatl Melopallian Housing Authority

The PHA heveby cedifies fo tha Department of Hausing and Urban Develapmand as fallows:

OHA0FO04609-11

1._Thal Ibe folal smount of Modamizallen Cosl (hansin called the *Aclusl Modemizallon Gosl') of the Modeenlzalion Granl, [s as shown balow:
A, Funds Approved § B,862,079.00
B Funds Disbarsed § 8,852,075.00
G, Funds Exgended (Actual Modarnization Caat) § B,862,078.00
C.  Amount b ba Recaptured (A—C) & 0L00
3 0,00

E.  Excess of Funds Dishuread (B-2) i
2, That af medamization work In connection with (ha Moadernlzation Gran hes bean completed;

3. That the enlire Actusl Medemizalion Cost or Babliltios thersfor boumed by tha PHA heve bean fully pald;

4. Thad thare are no undischarped machanles', laborare’, conlraciors', or maledal-men's [lens againad such modembzation .
wark on file In eny public office whera the ssme shiculd ba filed In ofdar b be valld against such mademizatian wedk:

" 5. That Ihe tima In which such llens could be ifed has expired; and
6. Thet fof any yesrs In which lhe grantes Iz sublect 1o the audl requirements of fhe Slngle Audil A, 31 LLS.C. § 7601 ol sag., 8=
amendad, lhe granles has or wll perdoem an sudil In compllance with sald requirements,
T, Please mark one;
7 A, This gram wll| be included in the PHA'S next fiscal year sudil per he requiements of the Single Aud® Adl.
o B. Thiz grant will et be ingluded |n the PHAS nesl fiscal year audlE per the raguirements of the Single Audil Act,
| heroty carlily Mak af B iskarmallon sjetsd honaln, ad wall sz any nn prowided In (he accamganmant , e dim and nooirsta,
Warmingr HUD vl proseccla Rk claime and dlefamants, Canvsion mig meull in crsieal anditr dl penallae, (10 (L8.0, 1001, 1058, 1912 31 LLS.G, 5720, 100

N

Hatia & Thla af Autha rized Slgnabary (ypa or print clasly);
Gragory Johnzon DEQ

Blgnaturs of Exact Diractod {or Aulhorlfed Deslineo)t Dake:
. ffﬂkzﬁz—'_”’_ : "/4 g

For HUD Uas'Only —
Tha Crost Gerificate ks approved for audit (£ box 7A s marked):
h. Appraved far Audit {Direcor, O anmm [rataz
20 X ~ . EAEALL

The costs shown above ag‘mlavdﬂu HuD gﬂ&d costs (IF box ¥ or T8 Is marked):

Approved: (Director, Offize of Publle Howelng) Date:

fiofesy HUDLB3004 {{odat)
ref Handbooks 74051 £.3
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

Actual Modernlzation .8, Dapartrmant of Housing OME Approval He. 2677-0157 {axp, 11312MT)
and Urban Developmaent
Cost Certificate Offis of Pubii and Indlan Housing
Capital Fund Program (GFP)
Peblis reporting burden for ihls coleciion of informallon ks esfimaled o 2 hotire par Il hu&nnhh lewing inalnuclient, Hﬂ'hlnu
ludnlnnud-d.n.ndmmpluhmdmdwd the colleotion of i g [his:

endsling dala sourcas, gatharieg and malniaining . 5511.:!

burden aslimale or any ofer aspect of s coliaefion of Iniermallon, Including supgeslions I'n:redldhu s burden, la e Rnporls Manegemenl Ciioer,
Paperwork Roducon Prajezl {257 7-0044 and 0157), Cifios of Infoematian Technology, 1.5 Daparimant of Housing and Ukben Doveloprmant, Weskingten,
0,C.20440-800, This ngesay may nol copduet or sponsor, and @ peesan bs nof reguined te respond bo, & ooflsctian of Infarmadon wless that coliscion displays o

valld OMB coniral rumber,

Do nod setd this form do tha above address,
Thi colleclion of nfomalos raquires thal sach Houslag Acthorily (HA) submll infarmallen f2 ansbila HUD bs Inlala the feee] cosssul prozass, Thae infomatian

el B e by ler dubaniine whaer B modemizabian gesnl Is resdy b ba audisd s cleaed oul The infoamalion b assanlisl lar il verifoallon and

TEoal clofm il gmm \s e eolisellon are ragured by egelalles. The Infomsalkos requasied doss mol bead llesif i mﬁd‘tn:ﬂ. e
B Mams: ] Madarnlzation Projec! Mumber:

Circinmat Melrapolilan Houslng Authorily OH10PO04501-12

The FHA hereby canies lo the Deparlmand of Houslng and Urban Davelopmand as folowss:
1. _Thal tha fatal amsaunt of Modernizalion Cost (herein called (he “Aclesl Modeinlzaflon Coel’) of fie Modernlzalion Grand, b o= shown balow:

A Funds Approved § B,262141.00
B. Fumds Disburssd ¥ 8,262 ,141.00
C. Funds Expendad {Aclisal Madsrmieation Cosf . | $ B,252,141.00
D, Amaunl b be Resapbimd (A=) o g ME.; .

E. Exosss of Fusds Disbursed (B-C) |I ] 0.00
2. That all medermizadlan work [n cennsction wilh the Mademizalion Granl has been camipleted;

3. Thel the anlire Achsal Modemizallon Cost or llabi&les tharefor Incurmed by the PHA have bean fully pald;

4, That thera ara o wxdisaha Hl%ad mechanios, Bbarers', confraciers’, ar maledalaren’s llens agalnst sush modernization
work on file in any publie affice whera the same should ba filed i1 order iz be valdl egalnsl stch modsmization work;

&, That the time in which such Bans cowld ba filed has explad; and

& That for any yeors it which the granies s subjeat o the audit requirements of the Single Audik Acf, 39 LLE.C. § 7501 &f saq,, as
amended, the grantes has or will perform an swdi In complianos wilh sald requierents,

T, Please mark ane:
F' A This grand wlll be Includad In the PHA' next flscal year audli per the requiremants of the Singla Audit Act.
| B.Thie grant wlll not be inchuided In the PHA next. liecal year audll per tha requiremants of the Singls Audit Act,

| vl cerilly thal all e nfermallon ainlod heroi, as wel on any Infonmelian providad In tho sccompanimend Farowdih, 1s oo apd ecosrale,
Waraing: HUD wil proseoute lfen olalma and stalemants, Comvdolion may rasuilin oiminal asdfor ohil pasallies. {18 UWE.G, $001, 1049, 1042; 31 LLA.C. 3719, 290E)

Marne & Tl of Aulhorized Sijisstory {byps o peind deary):

Gregory Johneon CEO _ -
Signatyre of Exscuthes Qiractor [or Autliodoed Designes): Dby
b ;
F |/

Fer HUD Use Only
Tho Cost Cerlifibute s appraved for medt (f box 74 |5 marsod):
Approved for Apdit (Diranbor, Offioe of Puplia Housing) Datat
}ﬁ\& X, e i Zlgup
The costs 1 above agres with HUD verifled coats (if hox gn[?ﬂhm hed):

Approved: [Hreator, Sllloe of Publle Housing) 1 Dbt

feem HUD-E3004 (10/06)
vof Hardbooks 74861 &3
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

A.ctual Mad&m Izatlﬂn .8, Department af Housing OME Approval No. 2577-D157 (exp. 0032007y | -
. and Urban Developmant §

Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indisn Houslng

Capital Fund Program {(CFP)

Fulblic regorting burden for lhis calissBan of infarmetion I8 asimatad lo svaraga 2 hours per respanae, including (ha lime for eiovwing nstruclions, searching
endnling dals sources, gathering and mainlaining the deka nesded, and complating and revigwing the collaclion of infermation. Send commenls reqarding Iy}
burden esfimale of any ofer aspect of Ihis collection of Infarmation, Including suggestions for reducing this burden, 1o fhe Reporte Management Officer,
Papersark Reducion Pralect (25770044 and (H57), Offica of Information Technalagy, U.S. Daparment of Housing and Urkan Developrmant, Washinglon,
LC.20410-3600. This agency may nol canduct or spensar, end & pereon |s nol requined o respond in, a collection of informalion Unfess Lhal calaclion displays &
walld OME coniral number,

Do not send thie form Eo the above eddresa.

Thie eolleclion of informalion requives Bl each Hawsing Aulbarity (HA) submil infarmatian te enatts HUD Lo iniliate the lecel closeout process. The Infarmation
will bee used by HUD o delermine whether the mademization grand ks ready io be audbed and clased gut, The informalien is esaenlial for awdil verilice@ion and

izl dose out. Responses o tha colleciion am required by regulstion. The Infarmation requested does not land ilself bo confidentially.
PHA Harme: ] Modernizalion Project Number:

Clnelnnati Metropalitan Housing Authorily OH10P004501-13
The PHA hereby certifies to the Dgpanmnnt of Housing and Urban Development ag ra-l]h:

1. _That the letal amount of Modernization Cost (herein called fhe *Actual Modecnizalion Gost) of the Modernization Grant, Is 8s ehown balow:

A, Funds Approvad § 8,445 630,00
B. Funds Disbursad - - _$ 5,445,630.00
h C Funds Expended (Actual Modemization Cost) o | § §,445,630,00
0. Amount to be Recaplured {A-C) ] ‘“-a__t.]ﬂ -
E.  Exgess of Funds Disbursed {B-C) ¥ 0.00 R

2 ThStIIF]H modemizalion work In connection with the Modernization Grant has besn complated;

3. That the antire Actusl Modemization Cost or Iehilities therefor incurred by the PHA& have been fully paid;

4. Thal there ars no undigcharged mechanies', labarars’, confractors’, of material-man's liens agalnst such modernization
work on file in any public office whers the same should be flled in arder fo be valid against such modernization work;

5. That the time in whizh such liens could ba filed has expirad; and

. That for any years in which ihe grantes is subject to the audit requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 ULS.C. § 7501 et seq., as
amended, the grantes has or will perform an audit in compliance with said requirements,

7. Please mark one:
[l A, This grant wlll be included in the PHA's next flecal year sudit per the requirements of the Singls Audit Act,

J B. This grant will not be included in the PHA's naxt fiscal year audi per the reguirements of the Single Audit Act,

| hzreby certily thad ofl tha Informatian stated hereln, as wall as any informaton pravided [n ke ul:l:umpinﬁ:nl Therawith, is frue and mccuraio.
Warning: HUD wil prosacuts tslse clales and slalemenls. Conelion may resullin erimissl andior il penallies. [18 8.5, $004, 1040, 1012; 31 LLA.C. 3729, 3802)

S

“Narme & Title of Aulhorized Signatory (typa or print chaary):

Gregory Johnson CED
Signature of Executive Director {er Authorized Deslgnee): Data:
X R -/
S0

For HUD Use Only
The Cost Certificate s approved for audit (if box TA is marked):

P’J Ap) d for Audit | Director, Offica of Public Housing) Data:
uk{"-‘ﬂ’ Khdpmpin. (w2 Lihy
The costs shown above agres with HUD verified costs (if box T4 or 78 is marked):
Data:

Approvad: (Director, Office of Public Housing)

foom HUD-B3001 {10496)
ref Hendboaks 74851 8.3
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

I

AG“-IEI Modernization U5, Department of Housing OME Approvel Mo, 257 7-0157 (exp. 031N T)
and Urban Development

Cost Certificate Offica of Fublic and Indian Housing

Capital Fund Pragram (CFF)

Publle regarting busrden for Bis calbection of infermation |8 esimated lo overage 2 hours per responss, inciuding e fme for reviewing inslnuclons, saerching
exisling dals sovsces, gatherng and maintaining the dala neaded, and complefing and reviowing fhe colieclion of infarmation. Send commen's regarding this
burdan astimale or any oher espect of hs collaclion of Informalion, Induding suggeslions for reducing thés burden, to the Reports Manapament Officer,
Papapaork Reduslion Projec! (25770044 and 01 67), Offica of nfarmalian Technolegy, U, 5. Dapariman! of Houslng and Urben Devalopment, Washinglon,
00,2041 0-3600, This agency may not canduct of spansar, apd o peran |s not requined o reapand b, & callaction of infsrmalion unless that collection deplays &
valld OME control mumbss,

Do not send this form to the above address.

Thiz ealieclion of inforrnatian requires tha! each Housing Autharily (HA) subimit informalian ko ensbda HUD lo infllsba the Bzcal closeout prooess. The informalian
will b used by HUD to delerming wheer e mederrizalion grand is ready 1o be ausited and clesed aut. The infarmation ks assential for sudt varificalion and
fiscal close out. Respanses 1o the edlles®an afa reculred by ragulalion. The infarmation fequested does not lend (el 1o conhdenbally.

FHA Mama: Modernization Praject Number:

Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Autharity QH10P004501-14
The PHA heraby cearfifias ta the Dap-artrnant af Houeing and Urban Developmant as follows:

1. _That tha toiel amouont of Modernizstion Gost (herein calisd the “Aclual Modemization Cost”) of the Modernization Grand, [s as shown below:
A, Funds Approved | F 9,227 620.00
B. Funds Disbursed § 8,287 ,620.00
G, Funds ExpEﬂdEd.{Prdual Modemization Cost) § 8,247 ,620.00

0. Amount to be Recaplured (A=C) -1 0.00 o
'E. Exosss of Funds Disbursed (B-C) - - [ $ 0.00

2, That ail medernization work In connection wilh 1he Modemizatlon Grant has been complated;
3. That the enlire Aclual Modemization Cost or liabifties therefor icurred by the PHA have been fully pakd;

4. That thera are no undischarged mechanlos', laborers’, contraciors’, or material-men's liens against such modamization
wiork on file I &y public office whars the same should be fifad in drder to ba velld against such modemization Work;

5, That the tima in which such liens could be filed has expired; and

&, That for any years in which the grantee i= subject to the sudit requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.5.C. § 7501 ot seq., 85
amended, the granles has or will parform an audit in compliance with said requirements.

7. Pleass mark one:
[ & This grant will be ncluded 0 the PHA'S next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act

. B. This grant will nat be included in the PHA's nest fiscal year audit per the requirsments of the Single Audit Act.

| hereby cerlily Mal all lhe inforeallon slaled hevein, as well ae any Informatlon provided In e actompanimant Tiarawilh, = trug and accorslo,
‘Warning: HUD wil prosecuts fafss clalms and statements, Gonvizon may resull In oriminal endfor oivil panalties, (18 US.C, 1004, 1010, 1012; 31 LL5,C. 3720, 3803)

Namo & Tills of Authorized Signalory (lype or print clesrlyl
Gregory Johnson, CEO

Signature of Executive Director (or Authorized Doslignes): Daka;
iy Y 2/1els
Far HUD-UIJEHW e

The Cost Certificate Is approved for audit (if box 7A |s marked):
' Approved for Ausdlt (Diractor, Office of Publle Housing) Date:
Iwu‘{ X o A2THE

e

s 22 wLE priten Ild.-l)nlﬁrl

The costs shown above agres with HUD verlfied costs {If box ¥A or 7B Iz marked):
Approved: (Dirsctor, Office of Public Houslng) [ Data:

X

form HUD-53001 (10/98)
ref Handhooka 7485.1 8.3
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

Actual Modernization LLS, Departmant of Housing OME Approval o 25770157 {esp. 0394/2020)
. and Urban Devalopment
Cost Certificate Office of Pubibe and Indian Housing

Capital Fund Pragram (CFP)

Pahllc mporting burden jor this colection of informa ion = esimated o average 2 hours. per esponse, incisding i e for res PR i
mmuumnmmmmnummummmmmmmmnurmmﬂmmmmm
mmwwummmmmmnlhmmmmwmummrmmmmnhﬂmmmw rAr,
Papanwark Reducion Project {2677-0044 and 0167), Offion of information Technology, U5 Departmeni of Housing and Lisban Dasslepman]. Wathin

DG 23041 0-3800. This agency may nof conduc! or spansar, and & penson ks nol required fo respond (o, a colection of inFarmation unkss hal collacton dis plays &
il OMB conind number

Bio nod sond ihis farm o the above address,

This callection of informaton regrims Lhal each Publc Howsing Authonty (PHA] submit infommalion (o enabée HUO ko indisks s fical dosscul process. The
mmﬂhmwMUMrummmnﬂnﬂmunm:rmﬂrmbunmmunuﬂmmwhlmhwmmt
varification and fiscal dos: B o3 3

Cincannall Matropolitan Housing Authority OH10PD04501-15

Tha PHA hemby cerlilies 1o the Depadment of Heusing and Uiban Developmenl as follows:
1. _That ihe total amount of Modemizalion Cost (hanein ealled Ihe "Aeual Moderrizalion Cost) of e Modernizalion Gram, is 55 shown belaw:

A Funds Approved § 5,933,649,00
;F Funds Disbursad §8,933,645.00
G Funds Expended (Actus Mosemization Cost 5 8,093,649.00 a
o A.rnm_u:;na Recaplured {A-C) & 0.00
E.  Excess of Funds Disbursed {B-C) 5 0.00

2. That all modemization work In connection with tha Modemizalion Grani hes been complatad;
4. That the antire Aclual Modamization Cost or liabilities therafar incurred by the PHA have baen fully paid,

4. Thal ihefe are no undischarged mechanics', laborars', contractars’, ar matarial-men's liens against such modernizalion
wink on fike in any public office where the same shauld be filed in arder bo be valld against such modernizalion woek;,

5 Thak the lime in which such liens could be filed has expired; and
G. That far arry years in which lbe granlee is subjecd o the audit requiremenis of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.S.C. § 7501 el seq , &5
amended, the grantes has or will parform an audil in compliance with said requiraments,
7. Please mark one:
I* A, This grant will be mcluged in the PHA'S next flscal year audi per the requiremants of he Singhe Audil Act
J B, This grant will not be included in the PHA'S next liecel yesr audit per tha requirements of fhe Singhe Audit Act,
T e ey corily I 2il the iRfo"malion sRID farain, o5 wel 36 any PISMaios sovided 0 e SCCamparimars Farasis, |5 e and Sran.
Warning: HUD wi prosecuts s clsims and sistaments. Comicion mey resull (s criminal andior ohdl penakies, (18 U8, C. 10019, 1800, 1013 31 U 5.0, 378, 3802}
Nama & Title of Authorized Signatory {type or prird cleariyl

Gregaory Johnsan, CEQ
Signature of Execulive Didrectar (or n.umnrlruu [esignes):

A

'.a qu-l'p" / - = . ¥
":IJII 1' - rauﬂlﬂlhm[ﬁmmm N
:I:H cta Daato:
\\‘i K ractar,
ﬂ‘u"" L/ q
Thﬁcum Ih:rhnahuw agree with H costs (il box TA or T8 |s rarked):

Approved: (Director, Office of Publi uslng} ‘ = 1 H

Foom HUD-53001 {10¢56)
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I8 Approval Mo, 28770187 axp, BISURET)

Actual Modernization 5, Depmtiiani of rid iy
an an Devalommen
Cost Certificate Office: of Pubils and Irl::'lnlnn Hatzsing

Capltal Fund Program (CFP)

Fuldfic reparling Bewlan for (his co¥ieclion al ki lad o 8 2 Brline per o  Irciding the lrin far renfwing laslnuclisne, ssarching

wdleling daln sauisss, falbedng and malmisining Fe daln naeded, and complsiing and E‘m calloclon of Informesion. Send comeenks rmgarding hia

burdan es§mate or any ofier aspect of this collaolion of nformation, kduding suggestions for rdusing this burdan, lo tha Raports Management Ciflees,

Paponwori Rodusion Prajpct (2670044 ond 0167}, Oifize of Inferrmalion Technology, U4, Doporiment of Housing and Urban Developmant, Washingtan,

E'imld 'II]-aI]I:&T‘Fh:mnw may nol condual or spansor, end o pesan |s not requied 1o rospond 1o, o oollection of Iafomation unloss Lhal oollesion displays o
C#E control nurbox

D riot send this farm bo the shove eddress,
Thila cxdacion of inkrmalon regebes hal aach Housng Aathorly (Ha) submi infermallen o arable HUD b nBale e Mcal desend procass. The infammaika
wil b uesod by FHUD e delarmiee whethor e modernfzation geant Is ready 1o bo audiied and alosad cut. The bafersation Ie essondnl for audi L verlcaiion snd

Nsoal cose it Responses (o e collssion ans requied nlion. The Information dons nol lend lisel o confidan b
PH#& Narmw: - Todernimtlon Prajsct Hambier
Cinclnnat! Matropollian Housing Authority OH10R004501-07

Thi FHA hareby cariilas to the Department of Houslng and Urban Devalopmant as follows!

1, _Thal the lolal amoun of Medemizalion Cos! fhereln callad Be *Aciual Meduenfzagian Gosf) of lha Modermizalfon Granl, i ot shawn balow:

A, Funds Approvad § 1,714,873.00

B. Funds Disburasd § 1,744,873.00

C.  Funds Expanded (Aolual Modemizalion Cost) $1,714,873.00
[. - Amount o be Recapbured (A—C) § 0,00
§ 0.00

E. E=caes of Funde Disbused (B-C)
2, That all modermizallan work In cannection with the Modamlzation Grant has been completed;
4. Thal the antire Actual Modemlzalion Goel or lleblitles tharedor Incurred by the PHA have baen fully pald;

4, That thare are ho undischarged mechanios’, laborars’, conbractors’, or materalman's Bens egainst such modamization
work on flle In eny public oftize whara the same should be Med In order 1o ba \rqlk:! againzd such modarnlzation work;

A, That tha time In which such llens could be Mad has explred; and
6. That for any years k which the grantes [e subjact to tha audit reguirernants of the Single Audll Act, 31 U.8.C. § 7601 el saq., a8
amendad, the graniee has or will perform an audil In compllance with sald requiremanle,

7. Pleaze mark ona:
F A This grart will ba Inckidad In the PHA'S nest fsoal ear sudil par tha reqularments of e Single Audi Act,

J B, This grait will ot be inclsded In the PHA's neat fiscal year sudll par ihe requirsmants of the Skngls Audit Acl
W Lha wanimenl herawilh, 15 Tnse ool seoirale,

[ heroby oerlily That all The Infermalion slalad hereln, a5 wel as ey Infoenaalion p
Warndng: HUD will prosesuls [nfso alaims and alolemests, Gomiolion mioy el in ool sndar dil peaaliss. (18 LLA.C, 10010, 080, 1012; 31 WLE.C. a720, JE0T)

Hane & Tite of Aulhorted Signalory {lype or print claary);
Gragory Johnson CEC
Date:

Slgnalure of Executive Director jar Arthanized Dosignoe):
Yighh

X B A

4 1
For HUD Uss'Only _ .
Tha Cost Cartificats Is approved for audil il box 7A [s meskec):
Agproved for AUNT (Directar, Offfes of Publia Houslngh

X f\
The zosts shown above agres with HUD verifBad n:|:-3'la [ o 74 or 78 I H
ipprnwd: {Direciar, Office of Publls Howslng)
ﬁ’ i R

foern HUIB-E2084 (Ho/e)
ral Hsndbooks 7ok &3

Datn;

Blaliy

P
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority
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Actual Modernization LS. Dopartmeit of Houslng MG pprowsl Ha, 2671-UABT facp. G101
Cost Certificate and Uirkan Development
ost Cartiica Ofics of Publia and Indlan Housing

Cagpital Furid Program (CFR)

Pulblis raportimy burdon for iy cxlisclon of lafaimalion b eelimaled b 2 hekies paf faEp , Inelisding Lhe lime for navieing insbruslions, searchisg
wdafing dats eources, galvechg and sslnlairing the dals noeded, and mmplulru anl ravalwing e cofection of Isformation, Send comments muasling lhis
burden aslirabs o any oher aspeot of this colleciion of lrnunndnp. h:hlqnu lumeulbnn for reduslag Lhis burden, o tha Reporls Mesagemeal Cffloar,

Pay Reducion Paject (#677-0044 and 0187}, Oiffca of informall oqy, L. Depardmant of Houshg and Lrkan Develnpeant, Washingion,
il af unisss thal cofaoion displays a

(& 40-3600, This agenoy may nol condust or or, @ @ porson fu el raquied i mepoad b, o
valid OMB conlrol number, i n " ™
Do mod sand Ehis o o lhe shove addross,

This collezllon of Infarrealion regeims Mhal exch Housig Authodly (HA) submil inFomeficn ko analie HUD b inifeks B Roenl dooud prosass, The o lizn

il hia useed by HLAD e dalirmilos whether B modeenfzalion grant is ready o bs stidiled and slossd oil. The afoimalion is seseolisl for s verificsfon and
ulabon. The Infemsfion requesisd does ool lerd Tealf o confidentaliy.

Tzl chn ook, Responias b e oollecllen ore re .
PHA Name: Wodernizalon Froject Mimbse:
Clncinnatl Matrapalitan Houslng Authority OH10RO04601-08

The FH-"'. haraky cadifies to the Doparimant of Houslng and Urban Devalopment as follows:

1._Thad the lolel smounl of Modemlzefan Coel (haraln eallad fhe “Aatual Modarntzallon %ﬁ af ha Modamlealion Grary, [s &= shown balow;
A Funds Approves § 1,438,273.00

B.  Funds Disburzed - $ 1,438373.00
{:- ﬁ:\u; Eapandnq {Aalisal Madamlzation Cost) § 1,438,273.00
B, Amaunl b be Recapiured (A-c) $ .00
E.  Exgassof Funds Dishursed (B-C) ] 0.00

2, That &l medemlzafion wark ln connectlon wiih the Modemizalion Granl has baen complated;
4, Thal the entie Adtual Modemizallon Cost or llabililles therefor ciitred by ha PHA heve baen fully pald;

4, Thal there dra no undiseharged mochanios’, kaborars’, contraciors', of malariakmen's linns against suoh macamizatian
woik o file in avy pubic office whe re the sama should ba fllad In ordar i be valid against such modamization wodk;

&, Thal the trme In which such Fers could be filed has expired; and
B, Thal for any yaars i which the grantes s sublect to the audit requirements of the Single Audll Act, 31 LLE.C, § Y801 et seq., a8
amanded, the granies hes or will parfarm an audil in compliznce with said reguiremants.

7. Ploass mark one:
Foa Tos grant wlll be Included in the PHA's nexl fiscal year awdi per this requisaments of the Singba Audit Act,

B, This geantwill not be inoludad in the PHA'S naxl fiscal year audit par the rmguiraments of the Skgle Audi Ack,

Tinraby arily 18 bl e (nermaian sinisd homis, == well 05 ny Edoomaban provided in tha Tharawith, |6 Sun ead oromoe.
Warnlrg: HUD vl pravacole ke clales and siabarmans, Cools Do may moet L cidmisl sndder chel peralies. (10 U.5.0, 1804, 9090, #0132 31 WL2.C, 3729, 3802}

m- & Tl of Aufortead Slgnatary {bype o print claarly):
Gregory Johnson  CEO

X — ks

I Fii
For wuuﬁmrw;f .
The Cost Certifieata 4 approvved for audit (f box 74 |s markad):
.ﬁpmvnd for Audit [Dirscier, Offlea of Pulylle Housimg) Daita:

b!-:bm %Wf@e M oA 3lgha

Tha eonts shawn sbove agroa with HUD wﬁlﬁnd caosta (If b 74 o TH 5 mariad]:
Approved: (Direstor, Ofles of Publle Hausing)

Dake:

doem HUD-BA004 (1006}
red Handbeoks 74051 B.8
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Actual Modernization Uss, Dapariment of Housing OME Approval No, 2671-0157 (s4p. C113112017)
oprment
‘Cost Certificate ©ifioa of Pullc and Indian Hausing
Caplial Fund Pragram (CFF) . :
Futilln raporting bardan for this collsetion of infemeaSon fs astl ] g 2 Peurd poe pr mmmmnlhnrwmﬁmmmm;‘m

exdalleg diala soupcas, gaharsg and madnlainlog he daba neade], eod compleling and
Burdes asbmaln o any ofhar sspesl of Iha eolacdke of Infermetfon, lscuding wstiorss for reducing this busdun, ks the Reporis Managemant Ch'hur.

Pagwraork faduelion Prajest (2E77-0044 and 0167), Offies of Infommsln T f; W&, Doparimeal of Housing ard Urbes Devalopesan|, Wishingles,
[hEG, El]ﬂﬂ-ﬁmﬂme sgasncy My nel condusd or spenecr, and & perdsh (s mot nuql.inl tn respond do, o collélion of Infsimafion unlzea thal coliochon displeys o
valld QM eonlrad numtsr.

Do nat sand this fort to the above addreas.
Thia callaalion ll'hFN‘n‘.llu'l Mql.lhm lhulﬂnh qun‘.hg .i.l.ll.hu‘l;.l EJ'} submi Informalion b anabio HUD o Inkiols e Nzcal closeou! precess, The feemalion
k mndrmmmdmdnnamndwl'lnu d jon [a M'I‘ﬂ:lnﬂl and

Cincinnatl Melropalltan Housing Authority OH{10R0MM501-09

Tha PHA heraby cerlifies to the Departmant of Housing end Urban Develapmean! as folows:

1. _Thal the fatal amount of Modaimizalion Cosl (heseln cabisd $ie "Aeual Modermzalla 1) of e Modainlzallan Srand, | as fh :
A, Funds Approvad ¥ 810,047.00
B Funds Dishursed $ BI0017.00
G, Funds Expended (Aalual Moedemizatlan Gast) § &10,017.00
0. Amount b ba Recapturad (A-C) $ 0,00
E.  Excess of Funds DNsbursed (B-C) - § 0.00

2. That all modermlzatlon wark in connaction with ihe Medarnizaflon Gram has beon complatad;
4. Thal he antire Actual Modemization Cost o7 Bablilles therefar incired by the PIRA have been fully paid;

4, That thesa are no undischarped mechanlce!, laborare', coniraslors', or materfalsmen's Bbane agaieal such modemization
warrk an fe Iy any public offlee whers dhe same should be flad In crder o bo valid againzt such modemnizatlon work;

&, Thal ihe lime In which such Bans coukd b fled hes axpired; and

&, Thal for any years [n whiah [ha granles Is subjes! b2 the audi mguiroments of the Single Audll Aat, 31 1L5.C, § 7501 ot seq., &s
amandod, B grantee has of will parfarm an sudil in compllanca with sald requirsmants,

7. Plagss mark caa:
¥ A mis grant wiff be includad in the PHA's next fscel year audil per lhe requiremants of he Single Audit Asl,
A B. Thie grantwill not be Bietuded In the PHA'S naxl flscal yoar audlt per the requirements of the Single Audit Acl,

Thesuliy cuillfy thal & T [nferemllen alnlad heoar, as wall 28 =y kleimailon Fovided In ihe 2acampaniment harewik, 15 inm and ooexroee,
Wharmlhig: HUD 0l prossaue fefa clilie and slaladasls, Oonvelion mey ol In 2 leihnl ssdfor chil gecalies, (10 LLA.0L 1004, 1040, 082 34 LL5.C. 3728, Se02)

Manse & Tk of Autharzed Signatary (typo ar privt cleark!
Gragory Johneon GEO

Sig naturs of Execullve Diresior [or Authorzed Doeslgnoo): Dake:
S ot igtE

Fa i 7
Fer HUD Uad Qnly”
The Cost Carfifi cate is appraved for audid (f box TA Iz marked):

P"/ prramf r#udltiﬂl'mwr. Offlee of g Ing) Date:

wh X Z

D E N )
Tiv gosts dhown above agrss with HUD umww

Apgraved; {Draclan, Oifica of Pubfic Houslng) ‘ ket

feren HUD-R300F {10/ma)
mf Handbooks 74851 4.3
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Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

Actual Modernization .5, Deparimeant of Houalng OMB Approwal Mo, 267701587 (exp, 0312047
and Urban Developmant

Cost Certificate Oiffica of Fubito and indlan Hausing

Capital Fund Pragram (CFP)

Publfe reperiing burdsn for i soflestion af inlormallon |2 esimated o avemae 2 hors per rasponae, induding the fime for reviesing inslnollons, 2aandhing
exlaling dala sousses, galberng and malnlalilng lhe dala reeded, and complalng and reviswing e colleaflon of nforrssllion. Send comments rgerding s
burdan aslimatn ar any ofher aspect of this caliecilon of inkamallon, inckiding sirggesiiens far redkcing Lhis burden, fo the Reporls Mersgaman| Officer,
Papersark Fsduction Prgdecl (2677-0044 anl £157), Olfca of Informallan Technalagy, U8, Deparimant of Houslng and Urban Desslopment, Washingtan,

1,05, 2041 0-3600; Thls nganoymay not conduct or sponsor, and o pamson Is fof r:quli'lod {o renpond o, a callealien of Informakion uslnss hat calleclion dhpiuy-a. a
walid OMB coninol number,

Do not send this farm to the shove address,

This cofieelian aof Infoemation requirea fhal nach Mousing Aulherly (Ha) submit briceamalion fo esable HUD i Iniata ihe Bscal doseoul process, Tha iformallan

wll m e I::.' HI-ID lod mrrrm.a wm Il'ﬂ murlurrlmﬁm grun! Ia rm;lr I s sl el dmmjl , The rmmmﬂ Ie aesaniial for audll werileallon and
. Medernlzatlon Projoct Wumbes:
Glmlnhah MBEmFloitan Houelng Autharity OH1 URﬂMﬁM '1|3I

The FHA hﬂah;r cellizs bo The Deparimant of H-:luslrg and Llrhan Davelnpmeml as raﬂwm

1, _That lhe tolal amauiil of Modeirlealion Ceoad (weedn called Hhe "Aclual Med sitzallon Coal™) of Ihe Medarijlizalion Grand, ks as shown babow:
A, Funds Approved § 1,521,690.00
B.  Funds Disbursad $ 1,521,590,00
€. Funds Expandsd (Actusl Modamization Cost) s 4,621,690.00
"D, Amunttobe Recaptued (4-G) - s 0.00
E.  Excess of Funds Disburaad (B-C) ] .00

2, That all modarnlzatln work In connecilon ';|-|i'-l-tﬁﬂ Modemizatlon Grent has baen completad;

3. That the enlira Aclual Modemizalion Cosl or llablliios therefor Incurred by the PHA hava been fully paki;

4. That ihare ara no undischar mechanice', labarars', contractore’, ar maelarlal-men's bana egainst such modamization
waork on file In any publio office whore the anthe ah-:lu[é be flled in order ks be valld apairsi such modemzation Warlg

&, That tha time [n which such Bans could ba fllad hes expdec; and

@, That for any years Inwhich the grantee i subjecd fo the audlt reguiremenie of the Siegle Audit Act, 31 UE.C. § 7501 etasq,, as
amsndad, lhe grantes has or will parform an awdit b complianca with sald raquiraments.

7. Please mark one:
[£ A This grant wiil be included in the PHA's next fizcal yaar sudl per the requkemants of the Single Audii Act,
Ll B.Thiz grant will not be includad In the PHA's next fizcal year audi per the requiremenie of the Singla Audit Act,

| hereby uuraflbd. all the Infemafion alabed hiaraln, os woll &s any Informalion providad In tho nooompaenimand horewih, |5 ines ol sccursls.
Wharrilrege HUD will preddile flss chilma snd siabenmnle, Ganviciion meg sl in arimined asdfor oy pecaklos, (18 UUG.0. 1001, 1090, 1063; 31 UGG, 3720, 3602

Marne & Tilla ef Aulkedzod Slgnotary (e or prnt chearl):
Gragory Johnson  GEO B

Blgnatura, of Exoouthe Pirector (or Authorlzed Deslgnes): Dade
X /254'-»?,,\ e - :M

I
For HUD Uso Enly~ _ I _ —
The Cost Carllfi Fa npproved For audit {{f box TA (2 markadh

Approved for Audil (Directar, uﬂmhm Datbe:
\'-.'5’ x% 'ﬁff 2 oplp

Thi cosks uﬁﬂn mbve agroe with HUBﬂﬁMﬂ costs (if box TA or T is markod):

Approvad: [Diractor, Offloa of Publia Houslng) Dntaz

form HUD-G3004 {10756}
ral Handlsooks 7435.1 8.3
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Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

Actu nﬂndﬂmizaﬂun 1.8, Departmeant of Houslng OMB Approval Ho, 2577-0487 (mdp. 003152047}
'E a_cl: and Lrhan Development

ost Certificate Office of Publle snd Indisn Howsing ;
Capital Fund Program {GFP) ’
Priblls roporting burdan for his solleofon of infs don s ] b worag Ehunpur:ﬁmu.hd‘uﬁuhimﬂimmmiuwm
eulsling dala sowens, pafieing aed malnisinlog ho date noadad, and Iefng and lizn of fnfommatkion, Send comsonts mgarding this
burden: esfmida or sy clher aapsc] of his cofocion of feamafien mtwrhnsrurrtdﬂqllhmmm Lo s Anipouits Managessent Officer,
Pap=rwerk Reduclon Profect (2577-0044 and 01£7), OMes of Ink Vi T iy, LLE, Deparimen of Housng asd Liban Develpmant, Westng los,
ﬂ-&ﬁfg—a%mmﬂﬂ hiay nol candeel oF aposaar, and a L] ik nal I'IQUH I I'ﬂm‘ lo, & ealezlion of isfermalien unlesa Bal 'Nlm dspiayn n
Al eanl ar,

Do ned seidd this form & tha above nddress,

Thie sollecilon of informatizn requirs (het each Houslng Autherdty §HA) submBt indematian G ensbis HUE o inifals the fscal o | nfomat
\'.Ilbuum-clhyé-lunhu'lunnlnl'nhu‘lmrlm mmmﬂmmnmnmmumﬂmﬂnddumunu mkmnnrn-unn&lrmn-ﬂtwdﬁdmanu’
Eomal ¢ LAl . fi: b3

Cincinnatl Metropolltan Housing Authorlty C:HilJRﬂO-iEM 11
The PHA. hmbr anrlifies to the Depariment of Housing and Lrban Develspment as folows:

1, fodal amamt of Modarnizailon Cosl called the “helual Modanmbzall st} of tha Modarntzation Granl, s ms shogwn bolow:
A, Funds Approved § 1,166,928.00
B, Funds Disbursed ¥ 1,1686,829.00
G, Funds Expended {Aclual Modamizallon Cost) - _._-.’; 1,'1&5?525.5[*
o, ﬁmuﬂ;-l;hh:l?;emplumd{ﬁ—ﬁ} B S . “$ u.m"
E.  Ewocoss of Funds Disbirsed (B-C) 5 0,00 o

2. That all modarnization werk In connecklon with the Modernizetion Grant has baan compleded;
3, Thal the anfire Actual Meodernization Casl ar Babllilias therafar lncurrad by the PHA have boan fully pald;

4, Thal thara are no undlachered machanles', |ebosars', coplractors”, ar malerlal-man's llens againgl such moedemizalion
itk o Fle I amy puiolie ofics whers e same should ba fld i ardar fe be vald sgainst madarnization work;

&. Thal the time in which sudh Bans could be fled has axplrod; and

6, Thet for any years in which lhe grantes is subjest bo the ald® requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U5.C, § TEDT o seq., as
armanded, the grantes has or wil perfonm an audi in complance with salf requiraments,

7. Plaase mark opwe: -
A Thls grant will be ncludad In the PHA'S nex) seel yoar aedi per Ihe requiraments of the Singla Audlf Act,
B, This grant will not be fnetuded (n the PHA'S naxd flscal year audil per the regquiremeants of e Singles Audit Act,

| Pearayr carily Thal odf §a Int2ime ben et ad haroia, 3& woll &5 any Infosmtlon providod in the sseompaiimanl Tiorovlih, s im aos aeclian,
Warniage HUD il prosecste [elan abdne and shlasasts, Convicion mey maul in ciminel sndfer bl penallae. (10 500, 1001, 1000, 1093; 34 LLE.C, 3TED, BE07)

Bama & Titfe of Authorizad Slgnalasy (ypa or print cleaky): T o
Gragory Johnson  CEO -

Blgnatyre of Execullve Direclar [or Authorkzad Deslgnaa): J:lu:
!'nrl‘lJDH:mUﬁ]r o
The Gt Cartificate ks approved far atdit if bax 74 I marked):
Approved for fwdit {Dimetor, 0fge of Publiz Housing) Dails
0% % & L AL

The costs shown above ngmﬂﬂﬁiﬂmm costs [If oy T4 o 7B s marked):

Appreved: [Direstor, Ofisa of Pubills Houglng) Date:

Tormn HUD-EA00 {10008)
raf Handhooks T485,1 &3
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Actual Modermnization U,5. Dapartment of Housing OMB Approval Mo, 25778 (o, 01212017
and Urban Develspmaent
Cost Certificate Diffle of Public and Indlen Houslng

Capital Fund Program (CFP)
0 Ineteues b, il

Prblle reperting bardon kv e colledion of hivrmallen kmlﬂﬁdhmmnu?hmpﬂmpﬁm&. hi'udh'luhul’m-h‘ ek

eixialing data sources, palhering and mehiaining e dala nesded, and compisting and it Eundumrunh mmm&h

trumclem eslimate or any olher aspecl of this colleclon of infemmation, holuding suggesiions Inrruduclrmnhmn in tha Raporis Mazagement Offfoer,

Paperyark Redusion Projeot (2575-0044 and 0157), Otfne of indoymafion Tu:m,uugy, U.a uwum I-mumqndlkhmbunhumt'ﬂmhmm

mﬁaiﬁlﬁmu&mmnr nol eondusl or spensar, and o persen b nal requied la rspond b, 0 ecleslon of Infameton usiess lhal cofeolion displays &
conlned mum

Do nod sarkd this form te the above addross,
THiE colbclion of nfermalion reguites hal exch Houslng Asthodty submil lnfomation b essakie HUD o it s @ Seeal closaoln procee, The nioarslion
wll| b usad by HUD o delammins Whelher the modsmiznion gramt s reedy io bo sudited and aleaed cul, The information b uuq'ld for sudi verdlcation and

Hscal close ol Responses io the coletion ars reguind by mgulstion. Tha Inormalicn reguasted doos pol nnd' lenlf to cu

PHA Name:
Cincinnat] Mefropolitan Housing Authorily onuRn-ntmpi:

Tha FHA heraby cerfifies fo the Daparmant of Houslng and Urban Devalopment es follows:
1. _The Ih Latal amount of Modespizaion Cost harsin oalled ha "Aclusl Medemizafion Costy of ihe Medenizaflon Grand, Is as shewn bolow:

A Funds Approved % 1,138,377.00
E, Funds DHabursed § 1,138,377.00
C.  Funds Expended (fchial Modemilzation Cosl) § 1,138,377.00
I Amount le be Recaplured (8—C) ] 0.00
E. Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-G) ' § 0,00

2. Thal al modembzatlon work In connectian wilh thy b Meademizalion Grant has been mplubud
3, That Ihe enlire Actusl Medarmnizaflon Cost or llablitles tharefor Incurrad by the FHA hava been fully peld;

4, Thal frare are ne undischarged mechanios’, [abarers’, contraclee’, or materal-men's Beng egalnsl such modemization
work on file in any publio office whare fhe sama should ba filed n order (o b= veld agalnel such modemlzation wedk;

8§, Thal be tirme In which such Bane could ba filed hes axpired; and
6. Thel for any yaars in which tha grentes s subjecl io the audlt reguirameants of the Single Awdit Act, 31 LLE.C. § 7501 atseq., 8s
amandad, tha grantsa has or will perform an audlt In cormplienca with eald requiremens.

¥. Ploasn mark ana;
WA This grapd will be Inoleded In tha PHA next flscal yaar audlk por the regikoments of the Single Audil A,

 B.This grant il not be included in tha PHA' next lscal yaar aedli per tha requiraments of the Single Audit Act,

1 hareky carilly hl'lnlllhnlnl'lr.naljunahlnd teareds, a0 well B3 oy Aded in tha panl L T rawiih, 13 I and secarale,
‘Warnlag: HUD vl prosesuls fakss dlalms and staloments, Comdolon may resull in aimina] andfer dvil penalies, (18 U,8,0, 1001, 1010, 108 51 U,5,C, 3726, 330F)

Marna & Tilo o Aushoriesd Blinstary (Lype or print ooyl
Gragory Johnson CEOD

Signature of Exesublvg Dirnctor {or Autharid Doglgnee): ko
Y s/t

Far BUD Uﬁ ﬂn!l'"
Thie Gost Certificate Is spproved for audit ﬂI famzt TA |s markad )
P"/ Appravod m-rmuqmm:nr,um:n-rpu Hejalrig) Dafe:
2 X Zn 3\p\ue
ih,'l.
Tha aoats shown shova agras with HUD wﬂfﬁﬁmmw

Approvad: {Diracter, Gfles of Fublie Houstng) J Date

farm MUEI-£3004 {1aka6)
tal Handbhanks T435.1 &.3
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

faB Apprenal Mo, 2677-015T (sxp. 0131/200T)

Actual Modemization L5 Dapartment of Hausing
= and Urban Developmant
Cost Certificate Officn oF Pubiic and indian Housing

Capital Fund Program (CFF) .

Piblio roporting buirder for this colecilon of inforsalion kb esf | i T hones por , Including the lime far pevieedng Insrucfors, ssanching

wndlsifng el sowrces, gethering ond mefsbsining e dala needid, snd compfaling and reviusing e cofeeslion of laformatian, Bend commants regarding (his
of lhis collesEon of I.:l'|:|111|:|IJ|:|nI Including suggastons for reduting this burden, o [ R:pnrh Munmhﬁm

lbiwdan sefmals or ony clhor aspect

Fapervork Redunlion Prfoct (25770044 and 0457}, Cffos of Infarmstion Technolagy, LLS. Deparimen of Houslng snd Urban Deve

LG 20410-3600, This ageacy may nol corduct er apanser, antl & parzon I nalreguibed 1o reapand B, a coleckon of inSarmaon unless that colaelien displays a
walld OMB eantral number.

Da meat send this Form to the abowa addross.
This collsciion of Infnmalka requiies. that cach Housing Autharity (HA} sobmil lngarrsfion to onobls MU0 do fillsde e fee clospoutprooess. The lnfoemation
wil bo used by HUD e dalmina whather tha rrm'nrnlmnn frasil s ready o ba audlled and clowsd cub The infamralion h Hﬂt-:rll For s verifization and

Mscal doae il ses o Lhe collacion nrs ulation, The I.:l'nrr[ml.lnn&uﬂnd’du“_[lntlu d Bzak to con
adornization Frafoct Rumber:

PHA Nama:
Cinclnnatl Melropolitan Housing Authorty OH10R02501-13

The PHA henebiy carifies to the Departrent of Hausing and Urban Davelopmanl as follows:
of tha Mndesnizalian Grand, [5 88 shown bafiow:

$1,017,979.00

:|

1._Thad the: fatal amaunt of Madernizalien Gesd (herain called the "Aciusl Modemizallon Cesl’)

A, Funds Approved

B, Funds Dibursad $1,017,879.00

G, Funds Expepded (Actual Medsmizetion Cogt) 5 1,017,979.00
0. Amotntla be Recaplured (f-C) ] 0,00
§ 0.00

E  Excass of Funds Disbursed (B-C)
' 2. That all modemizelion wark in connesction wlih the Modernization Grant has baan compleled;
3, Thet the enlire Acieal Modernizalion Cost or iabllifes thenafor Incurred by the PHA have been fully pald;

4, Thal there are ne undlschargad mechanles', laberars!, conlraclors’, or materfakmen's llens agﬁilnaimnh madernization
work on file In any public office whers the sama Ehﬂl,llEI be filed In nrdar to be vaild againet euch modernization wark;

5. Thal the e in which sueh lizis could be fled has expired; and
5, That far any yesrs In which the grantae ks svbfecl lo te sudd raquiremenls of the Singla Audit Act, 31 US.C. § 7501 &l eaq., 88
armanded, the grantes has or will parforr an audit in compiance with sald requirementa.
7. Plzags mark ona:
[ A This grant will be (ncluded in the PHA'S nexd fiscal year audit per fhe requiroments of the Single Audit Act,
B, This grant will not e ncluded n the PHA's next fiscal yoar audit per (e roquirements of the Single Awdil Aol
Tharahy urﬁy thot all e Infermation slabed Faroln, or woll as eny infermation provided bs 1he accomeanimank harewith, Is rue and accurate,
Wirnlrng: HUD il presscals lnkse clims sod sl s, Conudelinn msy reeiil In crlmingl endfor ol pesalfoe. (18 LLS.G. 1004, 1010, 19012; 31 U6.G. 3728, 300
Mame & Tilla 6F Aulhadzed Slgnalany (B pe of grnk claary):
Gragory Johnson CGEO

Slgnatura of Executive Director (or fulharized Deslgean): Dighbas
X g e

21815
Far HUD Lrae l.'lﬂlf [ 1

Thi Cost Cerlifigate s approved for audit (if bax TA |s marked):
[yl

rnl' HAgpproved for Audit {Director, Offies of Publie Howslng)
& ¥ B,
T 212719
Iﬂ\ Db DOTEUERDT 120050 e
The eosts shown shove egree with HUD varilfad costs (if box TA or 7B Is mar ked):
Dade:

Appraved: {Direcbor, Ofice of Publis Houslng)

Far HUD.B30a1 {10408
e Herdboaks Y4 B5.1 &3
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

H

Actual Modernization 1.5, Depariment of Housing OME Approval Ma, 25770167 [sp, 01/31/2017)
and Urban Development

Cost Certificate Cfice of Pubiia and Indian Hausing

Capiltal Fund Pragram (CFP)

Publla reparing burde for hls coliection of Infamalion Is eslimaled Yo avorage 2 hours por msponse, includihg S #ma for edewing Instrucfons, searching
axsling dala gsurcas, petedng and malnlaking the dala nesded, and complalisg and revissing B oolac@en of infermabion. Send comments regerding this
burden eslimale or any cther nxpec! of #is oolledlon of Information, Intuding suggeslians for reduning this boedan, 1o the Boports Mansgemenl Gifoer,
Papemwiork Reduclon Project [2577-0044 padd 0157), Dfice of Infermaten Techaciogy, U5, Depafmant of Housing and Uikan Deveiepmant, Waskington,
D.CE0410-360 0. This epeacy may nel conducd o sgansar, and @ paren fs nod requlred fo respond bo, @ collecon of Information unless Lhel colledian displays a
walld OMB conbol numbar.

B not soiigl this form lo the above address,

This collecfion of infarmation requires Bl &ach Housing Autherdly (HA) submil isfammalian le enabla HUD lo inilsie he Necal dossoul process, The infarmation
il BB uend by HUD b2 d8%rming whathar the mnﬂlmlmm gianl [ mady Lo be sudind and closed aut Thea informallan ks sssential for audl veriicatian and

gz o porecs b e colnoion re mouired by cegulaon. The Infomafcn requasted daes nol It
amot =] I'ﬂIﬂIﬂHF'rB]I:I.NHm r

Cincinnati Metropalitan Housing Authorily OFH10R004501-14
Tha PHA haraby cerlifas to the Depariment of Howsing and Urban Devalopmeant as follows:

1. _That e lotal amount of Modemization Gost (hersin called the "Aclual Modammizelion Coal’) of tha Modernizalion Grand, [s a5 shown below:
A, Funds Approved ¥ 5539,284.00
B, Funds Dishursed - . § 553,384.00 -
C. Funds Expended {H;IIIJEH Modernizalion Cost) . $*5;5€35:00___—_ o
o Hmuun; I;t;;'_ﬁﬂr:aplurad (A=) ) - H 0.00 o
_E- Excass of Funds Disbueed (B-C) $ 0.00

2. That &ll modemization wark In connection with tha Modemizalion Grant has beaen completed;
3, That e ootire Actual Modernization Cost or Eabililies herefor incurred by tha PHA kave boen Tully pakd;

4, That there are no undizcharged mechanics', leborars’, coniraciors’, or materisl-men's liene sgainst such mademnization
wiork on file in any public office whoro fhe wame should be fiad In order b bo walid agalnst such modernization wotk;

5. That tha lime In which such llens could be fled has explad; and
6. That for any years in which the grantea | subject lo the sudd requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 ULS.C. § 7501 & seq., 85
amended, the grantas has or will perlorm an audil in compllance with said regiremants.
7. Plpasa mark ana:
[ A. Thiz grant wiil be Included in the PHA's naxt flacal year audii par the requirernants of the Single Audit Acl
- B.This grantwill net be ncluded in tha PHA's naxt issal year audil per the requirements of the Single Audit Acl.
| heraby nul'flhl ofl ihe Information staked horaln, as wall &s ony informaljom p In the wanl | horanaih, 1S inee and peowale.
Warnlng: HUD Wil presocule falss chaler mnd slsbements, Conviclon may rasell n crimieal sedor cl pensliles, {18 LS.G. 1001, 1080, 1012 31 LS5, 9724, 3603)

Name & Tihs of Aulhorized Slgnatory (lype or prink cleary):

Gregory Johnson CEQ
Signeture of Execullve Diroctar [or Authorlzed Daslgnes): Dade:
X A pop——— afi {;f G
For OB Uss Oy -
The Cost Certificate I3 approved for awdit (if box TA 15 marked):
.ﬂpprwud for Audit {Direclor, Offce of F'utllu Housling) Bz, Disba: 27
7 e i

O ST S

The costs shown above agres with HUD varified costs (if box TA or 78 Is marked):

Ap ! Date:
X _—
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

Actual Modernization .5, Department of Housing ONE Appraval No. 25TT-0157 (axp. C3/31/2020)
- and Urban Development

Cost Certificate Offce &f Public and Indian Hausing

Capital Fund Program (CFP)

Public reporiing Erarden for this colleciion of fr s [ !mwwlmﬂqhmh’ wing instruslicns, i

existing dats scumces, gathering and mainiaining e dota needed, ond lioe Sard commants mgaideg s

binden sslimmie or mwumummuwmmwhm uﬁlmwhmmwmr

Pmtnmud;%n;m?mmmm Office of Infrmation Technology, UEUWNW“WHWM .

(] 10-3600. This agency may nol canduc! or sponsor, and o parsan |s ol requined o d o, @ collacli urless (hat colleclion dsplogaa

wvalid O88 control rurmber,

Do not gand this Tarm (o the above addness,

Trhwhnmdlrdmmmt-anmmummmﬁ-mmlmﬁmhmﬁwmrmuummm11-.
Inh'nui'm.m:buumwrl.ﬂ:l-h |nmmmmmmm1m|m¢wmm|

PHA Nams:
Cincinnali Matrapoltan Housing Authority OH10R004501-15

The PHA henaby cerlifies o the Depaniment of Housing and Wban Developmant as follows:
1._That Ihe lotal amaun! of Modernizalion Cost (herein called the “Actual Modemization Cost”) of the Modemization Gran, is Bs shown balow;

A, Funds Aporoved 5 26,643.00

B. Funds Disbursed § 26,643.00

€. Funds Expended (Aclual Modemization Cesl) $ 26,643.00 -
D.  Ameunl bs be Recaplired (A-C) 5 u.uu_" o

E. [Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) 5 0.00

2. That all mpdarmizalion wark in confeclion wilh the Modemization Grant has baan compleded;
3. That the entire Aclual Modemization Ces! or Eabililles farefor incured by Ihe PHA have bean fully paid;

4, That thera ara no urndmmad machanics', laborars', contraciors’, or materlal-mer’s liens againal such modermzalion
work on file In eny publc office where (he samea should be fed in order 1o be valid agans! such mademizalion work:

5.That tha lime in which such lens could be filed has expired; and

8. That for any years in which the grantes is subjecl to the awdit requirernents of the Single Audil Aci 31 U5 C_§ 7501 el seq., as
amanded, tha granies has or will perform an sudil in complience with said requirements.

7. Please mark ona:
[* A This grant will be included in the PHA's nex liscal year audit per the requirernants of the Single Audit Act,
| B. This gran will not be included In the PHA'S naxt tiscal year audd par the requiraments of the Single Audit Act

Thereky carly hal ol B [Mamslon sleed haren, 83 wall & sy I8 - T the = herowilh, 15 fun 2nd Scamale
Wiarning: HUD will prosecule fakse Cains and sialemoanis. Covicion many sl I erming sadier chil pesaibes, (18 US G 1007, 1090, 1001 31 WG 3719, 1002)
Name B Tithe of Authorized Signalory [hype or print clearky):
Gragory Johnson, CED
_-Hgnull.rlnf Exscullve Direchor jor Auhorized Dasignen): Data:
X 4 ! )

,-_,.-r_- o 2Tl

Fﬂl"HJDUIlUI'II}‘.-" e P L

Thnl::mt approped for audit (Fbow 7A 5 marked): .
u‘- X é% lﬁm § s gf}qﬁq._

Thi costs shown above agres with HUD » osts ([fhox TA or TE is marked):
Approvad: (iractor, Ofice of Public Oate:
X

oy HUID-S3007 {10028
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

Actual Modernization L8, Departmant of Hausing OB Approval Ka, 2677-0157 Jekp, G112 7]
c Certifi and Urban Development
ost Ce cate Cxca of Publlc and Indlan Houslng

" Capital Fund Program (CFP)
o Is eelimnled io average 2 hows par reapanss, incudlg e Gme h—mmg Inslnuelions, samching

Pubdla reporting hurdm FarHs o ur' k
midedng daa poirees, dnd, and carplatiag and rovieving e colisslion of nfomallorn. So mmmumuldhg 1]
burden estimala wnrrralﬂru lul mllmhnlmnrhl‘mnﬂm Inziwdlg munnlhn!l-ormdmlm bawden, o fha Pbﬂpq'hr-'lumﬂnﬂd Cfcar,
Faparyork Redunion Foje .04 and D18T), Cfica of nf of K and Urban
OyCa0410-3800, Thia lgmmn:.'nn{ r-nndmrorlponm.nw-p-mnItnnlrbwi'anhrupmﬂln.unlwlbnoﬂrmrmnhl urlmmdndlmﬂmdlplm £l
wiiB OB eandeal puambar,
DOao mot send this form ta fhe above address,

. This colfeciionof | i i iutmh!hdﬂuﬁuﬂnﬁf{lﬂ}pmlkﬂ'mmuhnlnmbbmﬂlu inflialn the Sscal clou | prosoes, The infermnlion
will be used by HILE B dedarml the prant |z ready lo be oudited aed cosed out. The Infimsfon 1s eesenlil for sedi vz ben sl

_ Mscal dlose out s to tha collroion are required by regulation, The | esied doas nol land ls=i o conlidential

Modernlzation Prajuct Mumber:

HIA Name:
Cincinnati bMetropoliitan Housing Authority

CH10R004602-06

Tha PHA hareby cartiflea to the Dapeartmant of Heuzing and Litban Davalspmant as fallows:

1. & d i atln calied $he "Aolusl Modarntzation Cosl®) of lhe Modemizalion Granl, & a8 &how balow:

A, Funde Approvad $ 2,292 294, III

i 2,202 209 'IIIQ

B, Furmds Disbursed

. Funds Expended (fctual Modarnization Cosf) § 2,292,291.00

§ 0.00
S 0.00

0. Amounl to ba Recaplurad (A-C)

E. Excess of Funds Disbursed [B-C)
2..Thn|. a-l-Fnudarnl:aHun I.;'ﬂl‘l-l: In conneclion wilth tha Modarmlzation Granl has bean complelad;
3, That the entire Actual Moderntzatlon Cost or llsbllities therador Incurrad by the FHA heve been fully pald;

4, That there are no indischaged mechanias!, laborars’, conlraclors’, or malerlakten's llens agalhst such madembzatian
woak on flle In &ny publlo o whera fhe same should be filed In ordar o ba vaid againsi such medarnizafion work;

5. That tha timea in which such Bans could be fled heas axplred; and
B, Thal for any years In which tha granées is subject te the audt requiraments of the Single Audit Ack, 31 ULE.C, § TG0 ol sed., as
amended, the grantas has or wil parform an audit in compliance with sald raquirementa.

7. Plagse mark one: .
[F A This granlwiil be included in the PHA next fiscal year audit per tha rsquiraments of the Singla Audll A,

A B.This granlwlll not b inclided In the PHA's newt flsed year audil par tha raguiremants of e Single Audit Aal,

Thereby carilly thal ail ihe Informalion sialed hereln, ne wel as any indoomation provided i (e I Tiarmwii, Is imue and accues.
Warnimgr HUD wil proseculs fakee oofms and stalemenls, Comsdelion may sesillin cdminal andfer vl penalfes. [10 LUS2 9001, 10080, 1012; 31 LS.G. 9720, 3633y

Mame & Tills of Authorizad Signalory [[ypa or prind caary):
Gragory Johnson CEOQ

Slgnalune of Execulive Mraclor (or Authorized Deslgnes): Ditay
A
- A I

The Gost Corfiffcate s approvad for aud It 0F bok 74 12 morked):
fpprowadd for Al {Pimctor, Dies & Houslngp Babe:

;:,\‘f-" X o Elp b 2lvivs

[ha costs shown above agrea with HUD varifled oosts (f box ¥4 g7 7B [s imarked):
Approved: (Direstar, Offloe of Pusille Heuslkg)
X

Cratd

tonm HUD-G3001 (10/28)
fed Hendbocks 74851 &3
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

Actual Modemization .3, Depariment of Houslng OMB Approval Ho, 2ETT-016T [mxp, 07312017
and Urban Davelopmant

Cost Certificate DOffiee af Publle srd Indian Houalng

Capital Fund Program (CFP)

Pubilin reposting burden for s colecion of init loa ks (] 20 2 hours P Including the Heme for resleaing Imsl

. fng and fo mmnaﬁlmﬂnmm mtﬂmnﬂwﬁll

oodaling dola souseas, gatieng and malvlaining he dala naadad, and
Burcess aslimite or oy clher aspest al Bils celucion anTFanullm\ [n:-ll.lﬂ-ﬂ B'I-Wﬂllr-‘lﬁ Fer reduzlag 1l Burdan, 1o B Ropoits Mansgemen| Offoar

Papsraovk Raduelon Frojact (25772044 and 1567), Cifics of Infcarsalion Technsogy, U.8, Deparimant of Housing snd Ukan Davslopmeant, I.F-'ﬂ'll-rqbn
5,204 §0-3800. This apanzy may nef pordisal o Bponsar, and @ parson s nol raquines ke pespond Lo, & colleslsn of informealion unle Fal colacin mphw. ]
wallil OV eonlral numbar,

Do net sand this ferm o the above address,

This callsclion of informadzn requbbes hat oach Houslng Aumhety (Ha) submk informalion |0 srabls HUG ko Inkals dhs Ascal doseout prooess. The information
will b used By HUID I delzmmine wheshar the medamizaben peasd |& mﬂluhmﬂdﬂuﬂmen Is essaplal fornmill warilicaion and

closs ol B it bhr LIl regulation, Th il
e . T ol Humbary
Cincinmall Melropolifan Howsing Authorlly - |oHioROMdS02-07

The PHA haraby cedifies %o Bie Degartmant of Housing and Urban Devaloament &5 fallows:

1._Thal fha katal smount of Medamtrallon Cest (haraln eailed the “Aokial Modernization ﬂoalﬂinflra Modamization Grank, is as shawn bl

A Funds Approved § 1,475,551.00

E. Funds I:Ihahumud § 1, 475.561.00

o, Funds Expmda-d waual Mud-emleaﬂm Cast) i . 5 1,475,661 Dl:r
I. 0. Amount b bs Recaplured (A=0) - i E IJ oa o -
_E.. Exooss of Funds Dishused (B-C) ¥ D.'Erﬂ -

2, That all modernizafian wark In connection wilth the Modamlzalien Grant hes been compleied;
3. Thel tha entire Adual Mede mizallon Cast or llabllities therefor ncurred by the PHA have bean fully paid; .

4_ Thed hare ara pe undischarged machan les’, laborers', conbraclors’, or materal-man's llens ageins! such medemizatlon
Wik an file In any public afllae whane Hhe same should be flled It order o be ek againat such modemdzatien wark;

&, Thal the time |nwhich such lens oculd be Med has oxpirod; and
8, Thal for any years n whish lhe grankes |3 subjoct ba the aud) reguirarmants of the Singls Audll Ast, 31 US.C. § 760 o seg,, ns
amanded, tha grantea haz o will perform an audit in complianca with salkd ragulraments,

¥. Ploaze mark ané;
I A, Thie grantwll] be Included iIn the PHA® next flscsl year awd® par the reguiremants of the Singla Audh Act,

' B. This grant will not be Included in the PHA's nexl liscal year audit per he rmquiramens of the Singls Audlt AcL
Thuraby carlily hat all (06 NETMEIOnN Slmied aren, 54 Wil A5 ey NOmaien oo i@ 8 accaiganlman] heurhb, @ e B scarain,
Wearrilaig HUD wil o sisctle false clolms s stalamants, St sy maulln sl adier il ponaliss, (10 W0, 1001, 1010, 1015 $1 18,6, 729, 5
" Mamna & TiHe of Aghorkzed Slgnatary (e ar print elearly]:

Gragory Johnson CEO . o

ignature of Emnuthwﬁ Dk
X, - s B

For HUD Use #Iy i
The Cost Cerifcal s approved far audit (If box 7A |5 markad):
Dataz

P/ Approved for Audlt {Director, Offlon of Wlngl :
¥ KW & o AT

&\ =
Thi coete shown abiowve agres with HUD \Inﬂrféﬁ/osts (if boo T ok Y is mackedl

Appraved: (Directsr, Oics of Publis Housing)

Tarm HUD-E3001 {106}
raf Hondbooks Fds6 1 &5
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

- 1.5, Bepartment of Housing OMB Approwal o, B577-0467 fnxp, CHE120HTY
Actual Modernization and Urban Devalopment
Cost Certificate Oiflea of Publle snd Indian Howsing
Capital Fund Program (CFP)
Pubil ruporting burdon for s oolloction af | b5 eetmitet by mrags 2 hoirs Iivelidlng S lime Jor revlewing listiedoss, asamhing
uﬂmmumnd' formalian, Send I fing lhis

sling dota sourcos, gatherdng and maindalning U datas needod, and complsfng and re

o)

buredos esBmal or any olbar aspect of ihis calwetian of Indermedion, luding euggasiions far raducing s burdan, la B Repora Mamvmuﬂﬂﬂhﬂr

Puperecrk Reduclion Froject (Z577-0044 and &157), CHfice of nfcnmallon Teahnalogy, LS, Duparman of Housing and Urkan Devesemen, Waskingion,

mﬂ&1§$5ﬂ$mlwmwndMIwwﬂ e @ parson |5 nel raquied 1o raspend 1, & colleclion of Inkoeslion unlas al celleclon displays &
canlrel mushar,

Do not sand this farm bo tha above address.

hluﬂ!bu&l‘u)d‘nﬂlim.}uhmlfrﬂnmullmhunﬁu IIUDblnIuhhMmtpm:a!u.Th l‘lfu*r::l'm
1] d for i

This clleclion of Inf-esalh .
II ba lmhi by HUD & :I-ulurrnhr'-hnlhur the rrpdu.mlznhm -grn.nth ruud]' io I:u.l lhdlhd' n.nd vlln:lm:l ol Thn

Pmmm fadornl: )
Cincinnatl Matropo@ian Housing Authony OH10R004502-08

The FHA heraby carliies ko the Depaniment of Houelng and Urban Develapmant as folowa:

1, _Thal fw liotal ameoun] of Madamizalion Cest fharaln caied T “Ackal Moderrizailon Cost') of e Modemizalion Granl, s s shown below;
A, Fumds Approved § 429,03500
B, Funds Dibursad §  420,0866,00
C. Funds Expended {Aclual Modamlzation Gosl) §  429.886.00
i Amount lo be Recaptured (A-0) 3 0,00
E  Exesas of Funds DI.:Mm:ud {BC.] -] - 0.00

Z. That all mode mizallon wark in connealion wilh the Medeamizatlen Srand has been complated;
3. Thad tha antira Aclual Medermization Caal or llabliilles therafor Incwumed by the PHA, have been fully pald;

4, That thare are no undischarged machanics”, laborars', conlrectors', or matedal-men's llens egainst such mudmnlzadrun
wark on file In any pubdic office whera the snma-ghuulfl be fliad [ order o be valld wgalnsl such modemlzalion work;

5. That the time in which zuch llenz could be fled has expired; and

. That far any yeara In which the grantes ls subject Lo the awdit requirements of the Single Audil Act, 31 U85 § 7501 of 2eq., aa
amanded, the granies hes or will perform an audil In compliance with szld requlremanls,

1. Pleasa mark one:
¥ & This grant will be heluded in the PHAS el Feol year audit per the requirernents of the Single Audh dal.
I B, This grant will not be Included in the PHA's naxt fiscal yaar audit per the requirements of tha Single Audl Act,

Therniry cerlify ol il e nSarmedon stabed Harein, o8 wel g3 any iaformalion provided In The aocompanimend harewils, s bue aed oecuralke.
‘Warning: HUD wil prasecute lalse olslma ond stolements. Comyviolion mey resall in crimbil oodfor cil pensliies. (18 LL8,0, 1004, 1040, 1042 31 U.5.0. 3714, 3302)

Hame & Tifa of Authorized Slnstory (ipe or pnt oleatiyl
Gragory Juhreen GEOQ

Slgnature of Exsculive Plrectar [or Aulharlzed Deslghes): _ Tata:
Iy et

For HUD U:d'l'_'lrl“l_ - e ——
Tha Cost Carfificals s apprmred feer Ruelit (I audltmm_[a_mm,t_am
P‘j Approved for Audll (Dirsctor, Officn of Puillg Housing) Datu: il

x Z1a0WE
1\@ £ry i

[
The costs shawen above agraa with HUD vaified cosis (if box T4 or T8 ls marked):
Appraved: [Blraatar, Gffice of Fublle Hausing) ‘ Dt \

foem FUCE3001 [10458)
ral Handbeaks 74851 5.3
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Actual Modernization LLS, Dapartment of Housing e Approval Mo, 257 7-01067 (mep. 0USIEDT)
and Urban Development
Cost Certificate M8 of Publle and Indlan Heusing

Capital Fund Pragram (CFP)

Publie: repording burden fer Lhis ecleclion wfhhmihnhwfmﬂludhmngu'! hours por mepasan, incuding te lms for {ag inslushions,
maisfng date sourmes, galherng and makilaining (he data nexded, and complaling and mvlewing e collsaiion of infomalion. Sand t.urrn:mnl:- miading N-u
burdan salimale o oiar nspest of (his colleclion of Infommalion, including supgestions lop redeoing (his berden, o Inltupmnmnmrrmlﬁﬁ'b;h

Popenvork Reducion (26770044 and D167), Cffiee of informagon Teshnofogy, L8, Deparimanl of Heusisg ard Ushan Doval
Dﬂﬂ.ﬂﬂg&ﬂﬁﬂﬂmmm My B corducl or spordar, el & person I3 fed naquind to napond o, & ceilectian of lkemalian unsss Ral calooion displays &
(1]

o nat sond this form to the shove addrass,
This ecinufion of kérmaion requlses that sach Houedng Authody st infarmalien to enabie HUD (o hitat the sl shosaoul process. The Mfamstlen
will bo wsoed by HUD to detarm ke wheler the modernzafon grant |s roady bo bo avdiied end closed uuLmImnﬂunhamnlhlfmnuﬂwrﬂsﬂunmd

fscarl Gloss ouf, Responses i Fe colleciion. are raguied by regulalion. The o requesiod doss nol jand
PHA Mame; Hn-a'miul Iur.E Himber:
Clncinnali Matropolitan Housing Autharity OH10R004502-08

Thia PHA harsby ceriflas o the Department of Houelng and Urben Devalopment as follows:
1._Thal il ledal amoun! of Medarnlzallon Cos| (herefn salled Ihe “Aciual Medernlzallon Co w_m_u_mn_ﬁ Granl, s 22 ghown halow:

A Funds Approved § 3,145,874.00
_El._\--Fluuk Disbursad § 3145 874.00
C. Funds Expended (Aclusl Medomizalion Cosl) § 3,145 874,00
L. Amount o be Recapiurad {(#=C) ¥ . 0,04
E.  Excessof Funds Disbursad (B-0) l _i li].l.'I.r.IEI'"_

2, That all modemization work n connection with (i Mnd.smlzulrurr Grant haz bean campleled;
3. That the enilre Actual Moedemizalon Cosl or Fabillies therefor incumad by tha PHA heve baan fully pald;

4. Thal Ihere ara na undisahargad mechanies', labarers’, contracless’, or mederial-man's llens agains! such modemlzation
wafk on fila In any public o whera B same shoukd ba flod in order % ba valid egalnsl such modomization work;

§, That the lima In which such llens could ba fled hes axpiad; and

&. That far any years In 'which the grantes Is subjac! bo the audil requiremanis of the Singla Audit Aot, 31 UL5.C. § 7501 of s8g., as
amended, the grantes has o wil parform an audit in compllence with sald requirementa.

7. Please mark onm!
[F A, This grant will ba Inchided i he PHAS rewl lscal year audit psr Ihe requirsments of the Shgle A A,
B, Thls grant will net be Inalided [0 e PHA'S nexl flscal year audi per (he raquiramonts of the Singla Awdlt Adl,

Thwvuiny corll(y Bal all fe indermalloa =igted horein, a8 well a5 any mlormasan prowioed m o Sccompanmend B2cemil, |0 fun and ocooen,
Wairmlig: HUD vl jeosecols alis elakis and slalemanis, Sonvislion may resull n crimlsal andlar chell panalbs s, (£5 U200, (001, $009, §012; 3 B0 3729, 2032)

Hama & Tidln of Auarizod Elanabory fype ar paim oaay):

___Gmgary Jolinson CEO
Blanature of Execulive Director {or Authorlzed Dealgneae):

Thats i

r-nq' HUE Uze Only o

Thir Cost Certificate is anprovad for audit {if hox 74 s marked)

v.’ Approved for Audit {Directar, Dluu_jllu Hanzsing) Drakar
1@*‘" X 5% 2y ATAIL)

Thi pasls shewn abava agrae with I-ll.'ll:lwﬁﬂudm:lsls- (i bost ¥ or 7B |5 markadp
Appraved: (Dirscior, Olflcs of Publa Hauslmg)

Dako:

Term HUD-83004 {10498)
rof Hancbooks T4BE.1 &9
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RS Approval Mo, 2577-4S7 (s, DHE204T)

Actual Modernization LS, Dapatront of Housing
an an Develo ant
Cost Certificate Offiee of Public and Iﬁ?hn Hauwslng

Capital Fund Pragram (GFP)

Pubkdis reparting burdan for this callscion of [nf lian [& estimal

mdsling dala soureas, pithering and malnlaining ®a dala nesded, and comgleliag and ey of

burden esfmale or any olher nspeol of s collscion of hfornation, Incheding suggesilons for rdueing tis burden, o the Reports Menagamant Dficer,
Poperaork Reduction 5Ilf'ﬂ:\]ml: -0044 end 0167}, Offic= of Informalion Tn:BJ:;; U5, Deporimanl of Housing aind Urban Develapment, Washinglon,

G 3041 0-2800, This aganey may nod conduc! or spansor, nd & persen [s ped raquipd Lo respend (o, & colaekon of Information unless thol collecion disploys o

valld OMB conlrol numbar, .
Da ot IIDI'Id this form to the aboie address.

This colfection af Informallon regednes that each Housleg Authodty {H) submil ifcemalion o enable HUD lo leilkate fhe Sscal clospolt process, The infermalion
wil ke waad by HUD In delamilse whelher e mndnTuuuw gennl Is ready bo be pudied and closed cul The Informsalion is essendal for oodll vesilcalion and

es to e colleciion arm e lnfommatlon mguesied doos nok land Rsel! to confidentisl
Modernlzation Projeal Numiber:

OH10R0O04602-10

ilo @ 2 hours per e apanss, Includiag B Eme fer seviawing Instruilors, sanrching
qu twh'ql'u:dhn ol Infe Jan. Sand L fing this

fiscal closa out. /R
PHA Mo

Cincinnali Malropolitan Housing Authorily
The PHA hereby cadifies to he Depariment of Housing and Usban Development a3 follows:

1. _That the total améint of Modemlzifian Gost (ereh caltad the *olual Modambzalion Gasl') of Iha Modemlzation Geand, |8 &8 shown below:
A Funds Approved § 2, 780,294.00
B, Funds Disbursad § 2,769,284.00 . -
C.  Funds Expanded (Aclual Modemization Cesl) ¥ 2,780,294.00 o
D, Amountio be Recaplured (A-C) : 3 0,00
E. Emaaau:f.Furbda Disbursad {B-C) o - ¥ 0.00

2. That all modemization work In connestion wilh the Modemizalion Grant has bHﬂEmpluhd:
3. That the enilre Aclusl Medemlzation Cost or labiltles (herafor Incurred by tha PHA hewve bean fully pald;

4, That there are no undisshamged mechanies’, labarers', coniraciors', or materal-men's [lens egains! such modemizaiion
wark on file In amy public o whera the seme should be fiad In order to be valid egalnst swch madernization wark;

5. Thal the: ime in whizh such Bens could be flled has explrad; and

B, Thal for any years in which the granlea s subjecl lo the audit requirernents of the Single Auwdit Acl, 31 U.5.C. § 7501 el seq., as
ameanded, the grantaa has or wil perferm an audit in complfance wilh sald raqulremants.

7. Plzase mark ane;
[ A, This grantwill be inoludesd n the PHA's noxt fiseal year audit per (he requisemants of the Single Audl Act.
| B This grantwlil not be chuded i the PHA'Ss nexd fisoal yoar audit per Ihe requirements of ihe Singbe Avdil Act,

Thereky corlily Bl all e infennaRes alatad hergln, a5 well as any Ifermellen provdsd In fhe aczompanlmen? hevowilh, 1s bus end acauraie,
Warning: HUD Wil prasecuo false chilns end alslamints, Coriviclon may resull In erdming] andfs chell ganslles, {18 U 80, 1001, 1040, 1092; 31 LLE.C, 7729, G803)

Nama & Tilla of Authorized Slgaatary ype ar prnk dlearyl:

Gragory Johnson CEOD
Slgnature of Executlve Diroctor (or Authorized Deslgneo):

My sz’ﬁfr’? _

4.
i
Far HUD Llss d:l'y i

The Cost Ceriificala = d for audlt (if box 74 ls merked):
approva
Approved for Aisdlt (Dlrastes, Dflse of Pulsils Hotslng) Data:
Vw\% X Boe /278
4\ e SvReaT 12078 00
The costs shown abiove agrea with HUD verified costs [§f box 7A or 78 s markad): )
Draba:

Approved: (Dfrector, Offlea of Public Houslng)

Faren HUD-B3004 (10/25)
tef Hardbocks TAHE.1 &3
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CBAB Appiaval Mo 2577-0157 (exp. (IS L2017)

Actual Modernization U.E.gu :Hﬁ;ntmuﬂ-lnuslng

anid Urban Davalogmant
Cost Certificate Offics of Publia sd Indien Haousing
Capltal Fund Program (GFP)

Puhbllo repording burdan for s collesion of Inft Han s fed lo mverage 2 howrs por rospanse, Includlng e fiee for reviswieg InelrecBons, searching
axinling daula snuscss, galading snd malnlainksg the cabs nesded, seed complaliag and reviswing he calection of mfarmation. $and comments regarding s
burden mastimola or any other aspeclof s collecbon of Inarmation, Iacluding suggosfons for reducing this burden, o e Reperts Managemasnl Officar,
Papework Redudion ol {26 770044 and 0167}, CHca of Inforeafion , WA, Deparimend of Hounlng and Urben Da: Washinglon,
CuG. 204 40-2000, Tie sgancy mey nob conduclor spossor, antd 8 pamon ts ped reguied b reapemd b, & colsclion of informalion uniess thet collection displays &
valid OMB coplrol niimber.

Do not send this form ko he shove address.

This cobiezlian of infarmation requirs Gat each Hewelng Aulhority (HA) submil iformatian to enabla HUD o infaks i s closecel process. The Informalion
oh gianlis mady ke be audited and clossd ek The bsammation ks easenlia for audt verfisaticn snd

will B e by HUAD L o reilne wihedhar Lhe medsnnizab:
5 Lo the coflel are required by reguiation. The Informallon requesied does ot land [lse¥ bo canfidanlislty.

scial doseoul Ro
Modamizatlon Projec! Mumber:

amai
Cinsinnali Matropolitan Howsing Autharity OHA0B004502-11

The PHA heieby cedifies to the Depaimeant of Housing énd Urban Development a3 Follois!
of the Modaernizatian Granl, 15 88 shown below,
§ 2 ,169,866.00

1._That Ibe total ammind of Modemitzation Gasl (herain called tha "Aclual Modemizalion Gosf)
A, Funds Approved

B, Funds Disbursed $ 2 ,169,850.00

C, Funds Expended (Actual Modemizalion Cost) § 2 ,169,858.00
0. Amcisitlo be Recapiued (8-C) $ 0.00

E  Excassof Funds Disbursed (B-0) 5 0.oo

3. ‘That the entire Aclesl Modernlzation Cost or labilities therelor incurred by the PHA have been fully pakd;

4, Thal lhere are no undischarged machanics', laborers', confractors’, or maledal-men's liens agains! such mademization
wark on file Inany public o whera the samea shnulli be filed In order lo be valid apainst such modernizatian wark;

&. That the fme in which such Fens cotld be filed has expired; and

8. Thad for any years in which the granles |z subject bo the audil reguirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.S.C, § 7501 et seq., as
amended, the grantae hes or will parform an audh in compllance with sald requirements.

7. Plezas mark ane;
[F A This grantwill be meluded in tha PHA'S naxt fseal year audi por the requirements of the Single Audit Act,
B, This grantwillngt ba includad in the PHA'Ss next fiscal yaar audit par e raquiraments of e Single Audl Act,

Thareky earfify thal alitha Infermallon slsled harein, /s well aa sny Wamalion previded In e sccompasinmanl here'wih, |3 frus and securie
Warning: HUD vl prosacele [alsa cleime snd sialemenls. Comuicllan may resoll s ceiminal andier vl pomalioe. (18 U8, C. 1008, 1019, 1018 31 UG, 3720, 3807}

HMama & Tile of Authorzed Signatory (bpa of print clenryl:

Gregory Johnson CED
Skynature of Execotive Diregtor (or Authorized Des|gnes): Dalp; ,
JiJi

£

r

.1l
ForHUD Use Only
The Cost Certificate s approved for audit (IF hox 7A Is marked):
Iwr Approved for Audlt [Disecter, Ofies of Publle Housing) Dinta:
ald X B 3027119
Bl st o=t
Tha costa shown abova agres with HUD veriflad costs (If bow TA or 78 [s marked):

Appraved: [Direclor, Gllea of Publlc Howsing) / Dado:

Torm HUD-E3004 {10/6G)
rafl Handbooks T405.1 &.3
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[ .'. '.,.f
. (S
"Actual Modernization LLS. Department of Housing OB Approval Na. 2577-0157 {exp, DUF2017)
cC and Urban Develapment
ost Certificate Offies of Public and Indian Housing

Capital Fund Program (CFF)

Pulblic raporting burdan for his coliaction of Infarmation (s estmatad bo avarapa 2 hours par responaa, Including tha llma for reviewing nsinuctions, sesrching
eadsfing data sourcas, gamering and malntaining ha dals nesdid, and carmpleling and reviewing the eolechion of infosrmalien, Send camments regarding this
burden esfirate or any ollver aspedt of (s collection of Infermatlon, Ineluding suggestons far reducing This burden, to Ihe Repors Mansagament OfSoer,
Peperwark Reduclion Prejecl (2577-0044 and 01567), Office of Informalion Tachnology, U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Developmenl, Washingien,

D0, 20410-3600, This sgancy may nol conduict or sponsor, and a persan ia not requined o respand |0, a collection of information unless that callection displeys a

walid OMB canbrod numioer.
Do not send thie form to the above address,

Thiz collechan of Infarmation reguines et each Housing Auhority [(HA) susimit informatian to eneblz HUD o initale e Ssool closeout pmsess, The infarmalion
will be usmd by HUD to debermine whather the medarnizatfon grant [s reedy to ba suditad and clesed oul Tha Infarmation Is esaeniial for sudit varlicalion and

Facal closs oul, Responsns ko the colleclon are regulred by regulsllon. The infermetion requesled doas nol lsnd Bsalf 1o confidentialit.
PHA Kamea: odernization Project Humbar:

Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authorily OH10R004502-12

Tha PHA hereby cerlifies to the Deparment of Housing and Urban Development as fallows:
of tha Modernization Granl, is as shown balow:

5 1,346,508.00

1. _That the tolal ameunt of Madernization Cosl (harein ealled the “Aclual Modornizalion Cosl®
A Funds Approved

e ——

——————

B. Funds Disbureed . § 1,346,508.00

C.  Funds Expended (Actual Modemization Cost) § 1,346,508.00

0. Amaunt to be Rm;:;umd (A=C}) - N 5. -l-'CI_EIU ---------- i
§ 0.00

E.  Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C)
2. That all modernization work In connection with the Magermization Grant has been completed;

3, That the enfira Acfuzl Modsrmization Cost or liabilifies therefor incurred by the PHA have baen fully paid;

4. That thers are no undischarged machanics', laborers’, confraciors’, or material-men's llens against such modernization
work on file in any public ofiice whera the same should be fMed in order to be valid agalinst such modemization wark;

5, That the fima in which such liens could be filed has expired; and
&, Trat far any years in which the grantea |s subject to the audil requiraments of the Single Audit Act, 31 US.C. § 7601 el seq., as
amended, the grantes has or will parform an audit in compliance with sajd requirements.

7. Flaase marl ane:
[ A This grant will ba includad in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requiremeants of the Single Audif Act,

| B. This grant will not be (ncluded In the PHA'S next flseal year sudit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.

Lk dilh, |s true mnd

| heraby cerity thal all the indormatian sinied hereln, os well as ﬂn:.rl'riwmuﬁ pravided kn he aooomg 2
Warning: HUD will prosocuds false claiee and stalamants. Canvicion may sl n erimingl andfor eivll pensifes. (18 LLA.CL 1004, 1070, 1042 31 U.5.0. 3720, 3802)

Nama & Tille of Authorized Slgnatory (type or print clearly):
Gragory Johnson, CEQ

Signalure of Exacutlve Direator (or Authorized Dasignes): pate:  , .,
X & / 19 f i
For HUD Use Cnly #

The Cost Certiflcate Is approved for audit (if box 74 |s marked):

Approved for Audit (Director, Office of Publle Housing) Dala:
8 X By arTie
't . -
1II :u-l.u:;;‘:‘,uxw‘un r-m -nar:lnrr
The costs shown above agras with HUD varified costs (I box 78 or 7B s markad):
Dita:

Approved: (Dlrector, Offlze of Publlc Houslng)

lorm HUD-53001 (10/96)
raf Hardbooka 7485.1 &.3
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A::Mal Modemlzat!on u% Eg:ﬂna:mﬂl-lguupg OMB Approval Mo, 25770157 (exp. 01/3112017)
. an n Deve &
Cost Certificate Offiee of Publle and rﬁ:llsn Heuslng

Capital Fund Program (CFP)

Public repariing burden for thls colleclon of infermalicn s eslimaled 1o average 2 hours par response, Including te fime for revlewing Instniclions, sesrching
exlsling dale sourses, galharing and makbaining e dele neaded, and complaling ard raviewing the calection of informalian, Send commants regarding this
burdan e:ulnaba ar ény alher aspect af (s salleclen of informasian, Inchiding sugestions fr rduting Hs burden, to the Repcrs Management OMMcer,
Paperdark Reduslion Profedt (15770044 and Q157), Office of Infarmalian Technclogy, LG, Depariment of Heaising and Lrban Davefapmen], Washinghon,

0, B.‘Eﬂd‘ilﬂ 4600, This agency may not conduct ar sponsor, and 8 parzan |s not requised fo respond o, & colection of Infermation unlass thal collection displays a

valld OMS contral numbsr,

Do not send this farm bo the above addresa,
This caleolicn of icrmation requires fal ench Housing Aufhority (HA) subrit informalian to ensbla HUD &0 iniliale fhe fscal closeoit process. The informalion

wil ba used by HUID o deltdmina whether the mederizaton grant |5 ready to ke sudiied and clesed out. The Infarmatian h aasnn-'.hl for awdi verdfcalion and
fscal close oul Responses | he colfeciion ara required by ragulation. The Infermalion ragussied does not lend Rsall lo confiden®ality,
cdernization Projact Numbar:

FHA Nama:
Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Aulhoriy CH10R0O04502-13

The PHA hereby cerifies to the Department of Houslng and Urban Development as follows:
1. _Thal the tolal amount of Moderpizaion Cosl (herein called the “Aciyal Modernization Cosl”) of the Maodernlzation Granl, is &s shown below:
A, Funds Approved F 1,177,607.00

B, Funds Disbursed £ 1,177 607.00

C.  Funds Expnnd’ed {Aﬂuaﬁ Mndﬂrr#zallm Cosl) $ 1,177,807.00
0. Amount fo be Recaptured (A-C) g 0.00
B 0.00

E.  Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C)
2. Thet all mudaml;ﬁun \;ﬁmuﬁnnecﬂoﬁ with the Mﬁdam]z-atian G'.ranlhas been completed;

3, That the enlire Actusl Modermization Cost or Eabilltles therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully pald;

o, That there are no undischargad mechanics', laborers’, confractors', or malerial-men's liena against such modernization
wark on file In any public Dﬂ%ﬂ where he same should be filed in order to be valid against such modarnization work;

5. Thet the time In which siech lens could be flled has explred; and
6. That for any years in which the grantes |s subject to the audil requiremeants of the Single Audlt Act, 31 U.5.C. § 7501 el seq., as
amended, the grantae has or will perform an audil in compliance with said requirements.

7. Please mark ane:
[ A. This grant will be incudad in the PHA's next fiscal year audil per the requiremants of the Singla Audit Act,

J B This grant will not be included in the PHA'S next flscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit AcL

] F-_nnnEy caf| [y1ﬁl| the Infarmalion ;Inm-lfmcln, a3 well as any Informallon preyided ||-| The nn'r'_‘ | | herewith, |= frue and aocwrsle,
‘Warning: HUD will preaeculs (slse claims and alstomends. Gonviclion may result In crimisal sadior oyl penaltes. (18 UW.5.C, 1001, 1010, 10112; 31 WL5.C. 3738, 3003)

Marne & Tile of Authorlzed Slgnatory (lypae o print clearly):
Gregory Johnson, CEOD S

Signatura of Executive Dirastor (or Authorized Daslgnee): Diate:
s
For HUD Use Only f o

Tha Cost Certificate Is appra'.rud furaudltqﬁbcx TAls ma mgrka ;
o Approved for Audit (Director, OHlce of Public Housing) D
\;ﬂ“- Xn_ Havg 32THE

Db SHALOAT7 13:19:50 400
The costs shown above agree with HUD veriffad costa (if box 74 or 7B Is marked):
Date:

Approved: [Diractar, Offics of Public Heusing)
X

formn HUD-53004 (10#6)
ref Hapdbooke T445.1 &.3
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Cincinnati Metropolitan Housing Authority

Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

Aﬂh Ial Mﬂmﬂﬁm u%“mhpaﬂn;htanLulng OMB Approwal Mo, 257701587 (oap 023120200
. t

Cost Certificate Offce ar;:ut::umrimmg

Capital Fund Program (CFP)

Pahlic rporting burden for ihes coliscton of intormalian js esimated o sverags 2 hours par reaponss, Inclafing this lim jor revirsing nstuctions, saarcking
xisling dala soustes, gatharing snd maintsining the daln nesced, and complating and rmvewing e collecion ol iInicrmaton. Send commanls Mgancing i
burchen aefimats o any othar aspect of this collection of informartion, induding sugpoations lor Peducing this barcen, 1o ha Rapors Managamant OBcer,
Papanwark Reduction Project (2577-0044 and 0157, Ofce of nfommation Techaoiogy, UEWHMHMUMDMMW

D C.20410-3804. This agency may nol sonduct or sponeor, namlsmmmmmnamndmdqmmmmmw-
wifld OMB castnsl namber.

Do not sand this form to tha above addrase.

Tris colaction of infarmation requines at anch Public Housing Authorky {FHA) subvsil inlormation b enoble HUD fo indiste ho §soal clossoul process.
HﬂfmﬂmﬁtbﬁmadeUDhmnmhmmwmlh rl.ldlll'lntlnucl.ndlml'l:lnmnt.n The inrmation is esaantal for audil
varfication and lation, Tha b

PH& Hamin:

Cancinnali Metropolitan Housing Authority CHI10R04502-15
Tha PHA hereby cartifias o ke Daparmeni of Housing and Urkan Devalopenend as follaws:

1. _Thal the total emount of Modemizstion Cost (herein caled the “Actual Modemization Cost) of fhe Modemizalion Granl, is as shown belaw,
A Funds Appraved § 225,785.00
T F.:nds [xsbursed § 225,785.00
dc.-_ F;n-ds Expended (Actual Modemizalion Cost) $ 22578500
L. Amaunt to be Recapled {#-C) ] 0.00
E. En;l:s of Funds Distursed (B-C) § 0.00

2. That all modernization work in connection with the Modarnization Grant has been complated:

3 That the enfire Actual Modemization Cost or Bablities therefor incurmed by the PHA have been Tuly pad;

4_Thal there are no indischal mechanics', laborers’, contractors', or malerial-men's Bens against such modemization
work an file in any public office whare the sama n-hwl:lb-aﬂladhnrdarlubemdagnlnst such mosemization work;

5. That the tirme in which such lisns could be filed has expired; and

B. That for any years in which the granles is subject io the audil requisemants of the Single Audit Act, 31 US.C. § 7501 el saq._as
armended, lhe grantes has or will padform an awdit in complianca with said requiremanta.

7. Pleags mark ana:
[v A. This grant will be included in the PHA'S naut fiscal year ausd per (he requramenls of e Single Audil Act.
J B This grant will not be included in tha PHA'S next fiscal year sudit par he requirements of ihe Singls Audil Asl

T heraby coraly (@ all the iormaion Saled Nerein, 08 el Gk afy alemalos prividis [ ihe dE20 Bl Fetawiin, 5 ines and saccwaln
Warnirmg: HUD wil prossculs fales clalms aad slsements. Comslcion may resull in ciminal sndior dil penaiiles [16 U 5.0, 1001, 1090, $012; 31 UWS.C 5730, 3y

Mama & Title of Authorizad Signatory (typse ar pried cleaty):

Gregory Johngon, CEQ
Signature of Executive Dlrg:tnrﬂntl.ulhnrlud Designes): Dato:

Faor HUD L Daly f o e
The Cost Certificaté is Ippmu for audit [ box TA s marked):

D/ App ) Pusblic Housing] Date:
LA Lw e 824/
The costs shawn WHHW
Approved: (Director, Hausing) Date:
x

form HUD-53001 {10/96)
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Capital Fund Program Close Out Schedules

ﬁnh Modemizat L5, Daparimant of Houslng OMB Approval Mo 25TT.0157 (exp. 0G/31/2020)
ﬂl tion and Urran Development
Cost Certificate Qffics: of Puialic and Indian Housing

Capital Fund Program (CFP]

Puiiliz roporting burdan for ihis ool ol brrk s In avermge F hours P saponse, incisding tha Sma for seviewing insinecFons, esanching
edaling dots scureas, galhaiing snd mainisining the dala needed, and complaling and reviasing he coll of information. Gend commants rgasing ths
Furdien eslimals ar any cther sspect of ihin colection of informalion, incuding suggestions for reducing this burden, o the Repors Managesan| CHicar,
Fwtmmmtzﬁ?m-ﬁm:mmmwnﬂmm_usqumwmmmhmﬁm
D.Eﬂlﬂ-!ﬂﬂ:lmlwlﬂrlﬂmwmmnwlmilnﬁimrﬂwﬂmhnmhﬂfmmmhlmnﬂma
walld O3 conbrel nmkar.

Do ok gendd Lhls form to the above address,

Thia coliection of Infe#mmsen fadiines that esch Publc Housing Aulhenty (PHA] submil infasmaion i enabie HUD io inifals T Bical cleast procsss. The

inforralion wil B ussid By HUID b et mme whesher tho moderrazation grant s pssy i be audind avd closed cut. The infommasion is exsantal for audit
verfcobon and [aca) coss syt Raspansas by ol uired by negulsfion The Inkemaion reguealed does nol nlity.
PHA Mame: Maodemlzaton Fropect

Cincinnati Metropoditan Housing Authorily OH10R04502-18

The PHA hereby cariifies bo the Depariment of Housing and Liban Davelopment as fobows:

1. _That the wolad amoun! of Modernizalion Cosl {harein called the “Actual Modamizalion Cost) of the Modemizalion Granl, is a5 shown below:

A Funds Approved ¥ 220,002.00

B Funds Disbursed B ¥ 2208,002.00

C.  Funds E?fnmdu_d-{-kum!m&mlzaumﬂnd# ) § 22909200 S
0. Amaunt lo be Rmp;uad [A-C) o 1 0.00 o
E. Exassof ﬁmds‘ast-ursm {B-C) 5 0,00 -

2. That all modarmization work in eonnestion with the Medemization Grant has bean compleled;
3. That the entire Actual Modemization Cosl or Rabiities Iheredfor incurrad by the PHA have bean fully paid;

4.That there are no undischarged mecharics', lsbarers’, conlraclors’, or ralarialman's liens against such madernizaton
work an file in any public office whare the same should be filed in arder bo be valid agains! such modemizalion wark:

5. Thal lhe time in which such lens could be fled has exgpired: and
6. Thal for any years in which ihe grantes is subjact 1o the audit reguirements of the Singla Audit Act, 31 LLE.C. § 7501 ei seq_, as
amended, the grantes has or will perlorm an eudit in comgpliance wilh said requiramenis.
7. Plaase mark ane
" A Ths grant will be inclueded In the PHA's next Fscal yoar audit par the requirements of the Single Auwdi Acl
— B, This grani will not be incleded in the PHA's nexd fiscal year audit per the regurirements af lhe Single Audit Act
Thiarey ewrily Wl w1 S infermalion SAIEd iin, 48 well 43 By Nl aton proveded [ Be Docomparlears harsmiin, 1s e and sccwsin
Waming: HUD Wil prosecels tslse daims and skiemenis, Comnicion may ressd i criming aodor dvil penallies. [18 U B.C. 1007, 1900, N3 I U EC 3T, M02)
Marne & Tite of Authorized Signatory type or print clearky):
Gregary Johnson, CED
Signaturs of Exacullve Direcior [or Authorizod Dasignes): Date:

PoaWlileaomly yrr
Theﬂoalﬂn‘ﬂﬂezjl;hlppmudfmmdltw

it af, Office af Public Housing) Daba:
J:,.\F- X gi? ; ?fﬂfm

The costs shown ahaove agres costs (if box TA or 78 is marked):

Approved: (Director, DfMce of using) Date:

e HUD-E3001 {#0455)
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Actual Modemization L5, Departmant of Housing DMB Approwal No. 2877-0957 [axp. 0343172020}
b d Urban Davelopmant
Cost Certificate Oifice of Public anrsd Indian Housing

Capital Fund Pragram (CFP)

Pubfic reporting burden for s coliscion of inkormalion is astimated o awerags 2 hows par respanss, incuding Lhe lme Tor revissiey insiucions, ssarching
exining deis soaes, galnering and meinainig U cala reeded, s compietng and smdesing Lhe cabection of informalicn Send coimunesis feganding this
buden aslimate or any oter aspect of s cobechion of nlormation, incuding Suggesiions for pegucirg this burdsn, In P Aepars Mansgement Ocs:,
Paperwosk Red uction Project (2577-0044 and 0157}, Office of Infommation Technalogy, LS. Degarment ol Housing and Urtan Devalaseran, [ H
Dﬁm&m&dmhmmmwmw speniod, and & person Is nal reguined ko respand o, & collection of Infomation unless thal colestion displays a
walid contrd ru 4

Do nat send this fam to the sbhove sddress.

memdmmmmhM:MWM:MM|mhuM|Hunbnmniﬂmwu The
mﬂIMUMWHUDNMMMHmhmummgm The indormalion i aesestial for audl

warfication end [lagal close o poi I ol | Iigal l}w
PHA H:.Iru: pakio ajact Mumbar:
Cincinnati Matropalitan Housing Authorily OH12R004502-17

The PHA harety certifies io Ihe Depariment of Housing and Urban Developmant a8 folows;
1. _Thal the lolsl smeunt of Mederizalion Cost herein calied Be *Aeiual Modernization Cost) of Ihe Madermization Grant, is 85 shawn below;

A Funds Appreved 3 203,824.00
B Funds Disbursad § 203.824.00
_G Funds Expended (Achsl Hudnn;tm;n Cost) " § 203 824 .00
:u Ameanl b be Recaptured M—EI § 0.00
-r'i_ Excess of Funds Disbursad (B-C) 3 0.00

2. That et modernizalion work in conneclion with the Modernization Grand has been compieted:
4 That the enlire Aclual Madenmization Cost or liabilliles thersfor incurred by the PHA have baen fully paid,

4.Thal fhere are no Lmdlsch:gd rrachanics’, laborors', conbractors', or malerial-men's liens against such medernization
wark on fils in any public where the same should be filed in order ko be valid against such medemizalion work;

5. That the Ema In which such lizns could be fied has expirect; and

6. That for any years in which (he grantee is subject to (he Audit requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 US C. § 7501 el seq__ as
amended, the grantae has or wil parfarm an sudit in complance with said requiemanls.

T. Please mark one:
A This grent will be included in the PHA'S next fiscal year audil per the requirements of he Single Audil Act.
I B Tnig grant will not be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the raquirements of he Single Audit Act

I hereby corbfy hal all tha leizrmnlion staled horein, os well as any Infomalen prviaed in e OoCOmpaNTEN] herwwih, |8 o A S0
Warming: D wil prosaculo iso caims med Slawments Conviclion may resull Iy sfminel swdier ol poralies. (18 050 1009, 1040, 1812, 31 LS 6. 328, 3802)

Nama & Title of Authoried Signatory ftypa ar pring cleary):

Gregory Johnson, CEO
Signaure of Executive Direclor for Autharlzed Designea): Dabe:

A - L T
X D nry )3
For HUD Use Only &

Vi & .
Loy TP ™ Shaq

ra i
ﬁnmumm:hmmmuﬂhﬁm costs (if box A or T8 |s markad):
Approved: (Director, Ofics of Ha 1]
X
ol

Date:

forn HUD-S3001 (10098}
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OHIO AUDITOR OF STATE
KEITH FABER

CINCINNATI METROPOLITAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
HAMILTON COUNTY
CLERK’S CERTIFICATION

This is atrue and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

isan Lubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
FEBRUARY 6, 2020

88 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215
Phone: 614-466-4514 or 800-282-0370
www.ohioauditor.gov
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